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28 14
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2023
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20 15
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2022 10

25,034 93.42

2,153 8.03

1,666 6.22

62 0.23

42 0.16

35 0.13

18 0.07

1,138 4.25

144 0.54

54 0.20

30,238 112.84

3,441 12.84
26,797

3,496 100.00

80/398



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
2022 10

) (¢ ) (¢ ) O

Ginnie Mae 4.458 2067 20 2,510,599.41 | 2,451,936.52 2,427,165.10 | 9.06)
Ginnie Mae 3.172 2070 10 20 2,231,896.53 | 2,138,795.05 2,116,671.57 | 7.90)
Freddie Mac 3.912 2034 15 2,087,441.76 | 2,068,104.18 2,052,415.75 7.66

U.S. Treasury Notes 3.250 2024 31 1,973,779.25 | 2,000,000.00 1,954,609.38 7.29
Freddie Mac 4.112 2037 11 15 1,667,223.68 | 1,658,410.65 1,653,114.52 6.17|
Fannie Mae, TBA 4.000 2052 11 1,197,558.59 | 1,250,000.00 1,194,042.98 4.46)
Fannie Mae 4.086 2042 25 1,053,120.71 | 1,044,030.64 1,026,301.22 | 3.83
Federal Home Loan Bank 3.305 2022 11 18 998,441.67 | 1,000,000.00 998,253.99 | 3.73
Ginnie Mae, TBA 5.000 2042 11 996,757.81 | 1,000,000.00 973,007.81 | 3.63

10 |Fannie Mae, TBA 4.500 2052 12 942,148.44 | 1,000,000.00 937,578.12 | 3.50)
11 |Fannie Mae 3.986 2049 25 843,892.91 847,399.14 827,223.92 | 3.09
12 |Fannie Mae 4.500 2039 11 853,020.69 803,715.13 778,346.74 | 2.90)
13 |Freddie Mac 2.500 2051 940,661.48 896,589.55 741,019.28 | 2.77
14 |Ginnie Mae 3.053 2065 20 706,895.38 706,414.16 695,948.42 | 2.60]
15 |Fannie Mae 2.500 2050 11 790,917.50 749,477.59 618,737.57 2.31
16 |Freddie Mac 3.862 2042 15 616,740.65 613,020.67 606,184.33 | 2.26)
17 |Fannie Mae 3.500 2049 10 708,348.91 688,082.35 602,651.48 | 2.25)
18 |U.S. Treasury Bills 2.901 2022 12 598,560.00 600,000.00 598,281.25 2.23
19 |Ginnie Mae 4.571 2071 10 20 596,498.81 552,593.76 564,460.88 2.11
20 |Ginnie Mae 4.341 2066 20 542,610.23 485,534.57 494,273.80 1.84]
21 |Fannie Mae 2.000 2038 25 515,102.36 510,629.55 461,497.80 | 1.72
22 |Ginnie Mae, TBA 3.000 2052 11 444,531.25 500,000.00 435,429.69 | 1.62
23 |Freddie Mac 2.500 2051 438,289.35 491,859.77 406,461.61 | 1.52
24 |Fannie Mae 4.500 2039 434,653.05 409,752.30 396,716.50 | 1.4
25 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 3.000 2052 25 459,483.35 443,326.41 358,477.10 | 1.34
26 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 3.000 2052 25 444,315.31 434,097.17 351,014.27 | 1.3
27 |Fannie Mae 2.500 2051 422,456.75 398,961.01 329,055.07 | 1.23
28 |Freddie Mac 2.500 2050 12 408,150.10 385,911.93 318,061.56 | 1.19)
29 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 3.000 2052 25 368,692.37 360,932.07 291,852.41 | 1.09
30 |Ginnie Mae 4.500 2049 20 309,802.21 299,709.56 281,784.02 | 1.05)

2022 10

2022 10
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2023

10,934,662.85 1,426,645 10.24 1,336

2016 10
5,552,622.63 724,451 10.26 1,339

2017 10
2,339,399.12 305,221 10.37 1,353

2018 10
2,415,551.77 315,157 10.61 1,384

2019 10
8,653,726.26 1,129,052 10.83 1,413

2020 10
14,075,963.78 1,836,491 10.78 1,406

2021 10
18,728,482.45 2,443,505 10.47 1,366

2022 10
2022 18,357,037.90 2,395,043 10.71 1,397
18,160,672.37 2,369,423 10.59 1,382
18,104,812.55 2,362,135 10.56 1,378
18,162,067.25 2,369,605 10.59 1,382
18,786,428.23 2,451,065 10.50 1,370
18,797,376.14 2,452,494 10.51 1,371
18,793,352.80 2,451,969 10.51 1,371
18,720,165.18 2,442,420 10.47 1,366
10 18,728,082.04 2,443,453 10.47 1,366
11 18,767,629.76 2,448,613 10.49 1,369
12 18,711,929.28 2,441,345 10.56 1,378
2023 2,492,514.03 325,198 10.61 1,384
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537,432.16 76,079 10.07 1,426

2016 10
385,970.32 54,638 9.88 1,399

2017 10
380,374.47 53,846 9.74 1,379

2018 10
377,871.29 53,491 9.68 1,370

2019 10
351,651.56 49,780 9.74 1,379

2020 10
347,235.10 49,155 9.61 1,360

2021 10
331,896.46 46,983 9.19 1,301

2022 10
2022 343,697.63 48,654 9.52 1,348
339,587.59 48,072 9.40 1,331
338,256.29 47,884 9.36 1,325
339,012.25 47,991 9.39 1,329
335,528.77 47,497 9.29 1,315
335,138.94 47,442 9.28 1,314
334,357.44 47,332 9.26 1,311
332,385.71 47,053 9.20 1,302
10 331,921.02 46,987 9.19 1,301
11 331,932.55 46,988 9.19 1,301
12 333,160.67 47,162 9.22 1,305
2023 334,189.56 47,308 9.25 1,309
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13,973,514,725 10,118

2016 10
7,233,859,229 9,989

2017 10
3,099,529, 665 9,871

2018 10
2,386,586,502 9,824

2019 10
1,376,161,185 9,901

2020 10
1,263,677,229 9,818

2021 10
1,044,380,678 9,410

2022 10
2022 1,203,153,557 9,736
1,189,220,526 9,624
1,182,777,900 9,589
1,181,094,354 9,614
1,150,849,229 9,520
1,149,626,140 9,510
1,100,032,354 9,488
1,046,633,274 9,430
10 1,044,358,176 9,410
11 1,043,356,771 9,401
12 1,045,807,545 9,423
2023 1,047,082,966 9,434
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1,692,503.070 624,292.860 1,068,210.210
(2015 10 29
1,692,503.070 624,292 .860 1,068,210.210
2016 10 )
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
(2016 11
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
2017 10 )
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
(2017 11
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
2018 10 )
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
(2018 11
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
2019 10 )
633,555.600 62,118.946 799,189.022
(2019 11
633,555.600 62,118.946 799,189.022
2020 10 )
532,233.014 25,662.884 1,305,759.152
(2020 11 1 2021
0 N 532,233.014 25,662.884 1,305,759.152
483,160.738 96.537 1,788,823.353
(2021 11 1 2022
0 N 483,160.738 96.537 1,788,823.353
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53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
(2015 10 29
53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
2016 10 )
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
(2016 11
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
2017 10 )
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
(2017 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2018 10 )
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
(2018 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2019 10 )
0.000 2,928.973 36,121.519
(2019 11
0.000 2,928.973 36,121.519
2020 10 )
0.000 0.000 36,121.519
(2020 11 1 2021
0.000 0.000 36,121.519
10 )
0.000 0.000 36,121.519
(2021 11 1 2022
" N 0.000 0.000 36,121.519
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1,807,009.751 425,916.898 1,381,092.853
(2015 10 29
1,807,009.751 425,916.898 1,381,092.853
2016 10 )
119,621.154 776,564.932 724,149.075
(2016 11
119,621.154 776,564.932 724,149.075
2017 10 )
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
(2017 11
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
2018 10 )
0.000 71,051.229 242,944.370
(2018 11
0.000 71,051.229 242,944..370
2019 10 )
0.000 103,947.160 138,997.210
(2019 11
0.000 103,947.160 138,997.210
2020 10 )
0.000 10,282.091 128,715.119
(2020 11 1 2021
0.000 10,282.091 128,715.119
10 )
0.000 17,725.745 110,989.374
(2021 11 1 2022
0 N 0.000 17,725.745 110,989.374
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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2023 2024 29

100
100
10,000

0.55 0.5
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NYSE

60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
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NOCP
BMA
BMA
100
10 31
5,000 1972 Exchange

Control Act 1972 BMA
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EEd i
LRRL AT (R L]
Gianle Mas
2.500% due O8S20,/2051 (b) 5 342 5 48
1.500% due 13/20/2051 (b 1,084 163
3.000% due 09,20/2050 90 78
3.000% due 01/20/2067 164 157
3.053% due 02,/20/2065 06 636
3.173% due 10/20/3000 2,138 2,117
3.500% due 10/20,/2049 10 ;|
35000 due 01,20,/2050 12 11
1.5000 due D4,/20/2050 g1 80
3.995% due 09,/20/2066 14 217
4.000% due 11,/20/2040 51 a7
A4.00004 due 09,/20/2047 32 30
4000 due 104/20,/2047 39 a7
4.000% due 11,/20/2047 10 9
40005 due 08,/20/2051 a9 89
A4.341% due 09202066 486 A
4.458% due 08,/20/2067 2,452 2427
45000 due 11,/20/2046 150 141
45000 due 02,/20/2047 113 107
4.500% due 03,20/2047 15 15
4.500% due 08,/20/2048 46 45
45000 due 09/20/2048 10 b |
4.500% due 04/20/2049 300 282
45000 due 03,/20,2050 T B
45006 due 04,/20,/2050 78 T4
4.571% due 10,20/2071 553 564
Ginnin Mas, THA [2)
30000 due 11,01,/2052 500 435
A.000% due 11,01/2052 100 a2
A4.000% due 12012052 150 139
50000 due 11,000, 2042 1,000 a73
f o ivinl Lol vy M
(MR $28.631)
HE R T
2.750% due 04,30,2023 200 193
3.250% due 08,/31,2024 2,000 1.955
M EEESSH 1153
(R 2,174
Citigraup Martgage Losn Trust
2.500%% due 05,/25/2051 B8 ]
G5 Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
2500 dun 02,/25/2052 B8 (]
JPMargan Moitgage Tewst
3.000% due 01/35/2053 443 355
3.000% due 04/25/2052 434 351
3.000% due 05/25/2052 361 . ]
E—H—F « Ao X EREH 1.138
(PR S 145D

40 S B, BB
Bt e 7 i’ it ¥ ;. )
Fadersl Homa Loss Baak
3.305% due 11/18/2002 (d) 1,000 o938

Awstinlia and Mew Zraland Baaking Greup Lad

2.580% due 11,001,022 35 a5
Bank of Nova Scetia

25806 due 11,/00,2022 3 3
Cinibank A,

1.580% due 11012022 ] 30
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WEES i
CREL 1] (R 4l
DBS Bask Lid.
2.580% due 110172022 5 18 4 18
JPMargan Chase Bank H.A.
2.580% due 11,01/2022 40 40
MUFG Bard L1d,
{02 1056) dhue 11,/01/2022 ¥ 137 1
Rayal Bank of Casads
2.580% due 11,/00,2022 5 39 39
Sumitoma Mitsul Bankisg Cerp.
25500 due 11/00/2022 EN] i
Sumitoma Mitsui Trust Bask L1d.
(0.2 700%) dhue 11701,/ 2032 ¥ 1] [
25800 due 11,/01/200F 5 3 1
27

2.901% due 12,/01,2022 ﬂﬂ] BO0 588
S R Y B 1,823
(0 PR 40,824
B EEERS I a 1125% § 30,142
(IR 932481
ST U T g T

{eh0.5%) (133)
MR 2 T A, B
FnimREEES LU, MR [3,218)
B 000 5 26,797

B R RE A R S R

YoM, FROERCESTA S ERHIERER LT 52 2lhS,

(6} FEREI0NNE NEO SN R L SR EESOMNOEST, AR SR, B LENREe oL S 0RO L D AR h
S
b ERR, A FLA Rl (BT Ny Evd, ) ERRRR RN 2TTRE,

W R,
d F—aierr, R TORE D LR,

e R b Ul
HEN 4] o (AR Wik S Db
v Farnie Maz, TBA 20000 11/01/20652 52,000 & (2,235) &  {2.128)
o Farnie Mar, TEA 2.5000% 11/01/2052 1,750 (3,276) {3,070)
BOS Farnie Mar, TBA 30000 110172037 200 {185) (184)
PG Farnie Mar, TBA 25000 11/01/2052 500 {a24) {a10)
(1] Fannie Mae, TBA 2.000% 11/01/2052 500 {#09) (394)
(1] Farnie Mae, TBA £.000% 110172052 1,000 {534) (404
MEC Fannie Man, TBA 2000 11/01,/2052 1,500 [1,311) {1.314)
0 0 A (3 AN [8724) & (8409
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A LU O B R | o

LUFR, 22R0A 31 RMED, BENCE SNSRI E 0l o SRR LA S (S S RosETR S,

LR S AN LT

g Bl RIS Hns WEDZhd. TOEORE BREELS —baf-
BEH SO erIkie ki 2EME  WERIAH (29 * —E
= 25— 7 o 7 — FILSINE
BO% E] L o & o % (538 § (338 $ a6 § (5382
oG o 0 o (410) {10} o (a10)
5N o 0 o {1.303] {1,303 o {1303
MSC 1] 0 1] {1,314 {1,314) o {1.314)
HFANRBLUE RS MRS 28 [} [ [ [T

Al o mai— e — bR, REE RTINS S iR d . (MR D e e, (AN S TR OlOR RIS S ms R Ay —iE,
R e W SR A — R R R A D SRR OGS S TR S he S A — IERER T S T, B M iR
EOES [+ r—RRsy CEMnzE,

mgml NARTRAMS. RRFOREEAMRIsE FAT, IRPSFLoesxThot, BERARL. HSRAFRF ST, BE-ME LR LTS -E8
MEFTUZ L BR0,

Lot a3
LIS, Treasuny 2-Year Note December Futures Shart 12/ 2022 13 4 56 % 5 ]
LLS, Treasury 10-Year Note December Fubunes Shart 1272022 F 14 i 4]
ekt s 0 $ = ]

2 e WS | RS
ExEF s ulragl b d e (A7 8.79) b X BHE ) il AR
! ] 3-msanth USD-LIBOR 0.350% 064162023 5 2,500 5 E 5 BO 5 1 & ]
5% ) 3-Manth USO-LBOR 1.500% 12/15/2028 2,500 {419) 1238} 0 (3
= F-Manth USD-LIBOR 1.0HE 0302032 kil kS 13 1 i
] 3-Marth USD-UBOR 2.008% 02082032 400 66 66 1 o
nem Secured Overnight

Firancing Rate 20005 12/21/3004 2,200 {108} 1 o (3
wi Secuned Overnight

Firancirg Rate 12505 12/15/2008 415 (B0} (61} ] i1
Eib Secured Overnight

Financing Rate 1,750 06152029 3,850 {487) 1333} 1] {10
=m Secured Overnight

Financing Rate 1.758% 03162032 300 48 4B 1 o
EiL Speured Overnight

Financing Rate 175008 06/15/2032 2,850 {477} {112} a 10
i Secured Cvernight

Financing Rate 1,750 06152032 1,500 L] 136 5 ]
a2 Secured Overnight

Financing Rate 2.553% O6f15/2032 500 50 50 2 1]
&m Socutad Dvermight

Firancing Rate 2313% o7 /082032 4,600 553 553 17 0
] Secured Cvernight

Finanting Rate 18400 071572032 1) 128 1ne 3 i
s 1] Secured Overnight

Fimancing Rate 2.99EK% 0916,/2032 500 3z 33 2 o
2 Secured Overnight

Financing Rate 3.275% 0062032 00 L] ] 3 1]
= Secured Owvernight

Financing Rate 20003 12212032 o003 133 1 3 o]
AT 5 FREEI s a5 w5 3 s @y
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ST 57 R BT Y 0 o ST P IR R ST A4 AL

EFRE, 3022410 31 5 MR LR 0 4 4F o T E S A R A b e S el U A PSR L LR RER G I T

B

HEEIOA T AIRE, Bk FACREN, FBRGRT VAR SRELSLFRTRECHRL LI ERT VAP FELOHRE LTEARLA TN, vAF—
HERSCET DEEREEC TR, HERREAT EEORE [VAF—RRH) ¢8MoZ L,

AT U AT R &BT VAT AR
RS SR
s ] grE e ffl
[N AT uT wH
FFrmir b N i FFrwis E= EXEy ait
EREMT U AT g T EdE
Loy i ok Pt
T U AF g SRS $ 0§ [ | % 43 % [ 0% 3 % [£E]}

WA SEEEIE, RAMRE =P ET S, ORI, MR AT SERGED TERRIS I CERRE $REOZE,

1) e U AF g R RS &R VAT s A
BWT-RIE
m#A MIEMEEE S ()
HEH (A7) i S | i e 1. Al
vl 11/2022 3 0 ] 17 & [ 5 0
A SREERHES (R
HEN (A.4E) il | B P d - Al
BOw, 112003 EUR 110 5 110 3 i H] o
B0, 1242022 b m EUR 110 o 2
HUE 1142022 EUR 112 4 111 1 o
DR 12f2022 § 112 EUR 112 o (1
MBC 1172022 105 104 o 0
M 1172022 EUR ] 5 4] 0 1]
MYl 1102 H] 107 ELR 11 i 1]
RBC 112022 EUR 110 5 110 1 o
REL 1242022 S 110 EUR 110 o i1
SCX 11/2022 1 1 o o
UG 1112022 108 i i ]
H [ ] [

J (w3 BLUFZ T ARETHEN

A FMBUE S (R
HEH (A7) i | i e 5 e BR S Al
B0 1172022 1Y 12 5 0§ 0 3 [
BPS 1172022 3 2,655 Y 383,803 o [t
BPS 1142022 By 3BT 5 2,601 o o
BPS 1272022 - 2,601 Py 385,275 o o
BRLC 112022 2,659 383,803 o {76)
(=4 1142022 1 116 0 o
MEC 112022 Iy 3,433 5 L] 1 0
MEBC ¥170002 - 10 iy 1,482 L] Li]
M1 ¥172022 IFt 401 5 3 o o
RAY) 112022 H 1177 P 169,304 o {38)
RBC 11/2022 485 70,051 0 {14)
L= /2002 Y 385,857 5 2,596 0 0
5ex 1272002 ] 2,596 P 3sasT o 0
TOR 1172002 1Py 382,319 4 2,600 8 L]
TOR 12£2022 H 2,600 P 381,040 o {28)
LIAG 1112022 1,015 145,852 o 133)
& 1] ] [266)
BTN [ 78 270
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AT ira
HH S 2m HRXE

HMEN sl bond nEaaltiny g FREH e (AR Mrae'  BEEE FE
Secured Cuemight

B Put - OTC 1-Year Interest Rate Swap  Finanting Rale ed | 5.500% 09182023 2600 5 6 % 5
Secured Ovemnight

= Put - OTC 2-Y¥ear interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate = 2.034% 02282023 1,000 & a4
Secured Ovemight

B Put - OTC 2-Year Interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate = 1933% 03012023 1,000 6 18
Secured Cvemight

LB Put - OTC 30-Year Interest Rate Swap Finanting Rate | 3380% 04062023 100 2 5
Secured Chomight

Cex Put - DTC 30-Year Interest Rate Swap  Financing Rale =il 31285% 04142023 100 b [
Secured Ovesmight

GLM Put - OTC 1-Year Interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate 24w 5500%  09/18/2023 2,400 5 4
Sepured Overnight

MYC Put - OTC 10-¥ear Interest Rate Swap Financing Rate it 1] 4,000 01,/06/2023 200 2 3
Setured Ovemight

MYC Put - OTC 30-¥ear Intereat Rate Swap  Financng Rate | I348% 04132003 100 3 [
Segured Ovisnight

MYC Put - OTC 30-Year Interest Rate Swap Financing Rate a2 3.225% 042002023 00 3 7
Sequred Cvemight

MYC Put - OTC 30-¥ear Interest Rate Swap Financing Rate =Zm ENEE 042002023 100 2 o
Setured Chvemight

MYC Put - OTC 30-Year Interest Rate Swap Finanting Rale & II00% 04212023 100 3 7

WAL m i % [T 184

Lk nd B

T L E=il FLITh
MEH ERh D FHT EMEE TR (ISR SEas S W
Segured Overnight
BOA Put - OTC 1-Year Interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate X 5,7500% 0a/ 18,2023 1,300 & 2 H] 2
Secured Dvernight
BOA, Put - OTC 1-¥ear Interest Rate Swag  Financing Rate ¥iL 60D0% 09/ 18/2023 1,300 2 {1)
Secured Chermight
CEX, Call - OTC 2-Year Interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate = 1.534% 0238/ 2023 1,000 {6) o
Secured Overnight
CBE Call - OTC 2-Year Interest Rate Swap Finandng Rate b 1.433% 03/01/2023 1,000 (&) o
Secured Cwverrright
OB Pul - OTC 2-Year ntesest Rate Swap  Finanting Rate £ 2 Y 37500 04,06, 20723 60O {2) 19
Secured Overnight
CBK Pul - OTC 2-Year [nterest Rate Swap  Finanting Rate Hin 3,750% 41412023 B0 {3 5}
Secured Overmight
GLM Put - OTC 1-Year interest Rate Swap  Financing Rate Eih 5.750% 0a/18/2023 1,200 {2 2
Secured Overnight
GLM Put - OTC 1-Year Istesest Rate Swag  Firanting Rate i 6.000% 09182003 1,200 (2) {1}
Secured Overnight
MYC Fut - OTC 2-Year Interest Rate Swap  Finanting Rate XL A790% 4/13/2023 600 {2} {5}
Secured Overnight
MYC Put - OTC 2-¥ear Interest Rate Swag  Financing Rate EH. 4.000% 420/ 2023 1,200 15 {14}
Secured Cwermight
MYC Pul - OTC 2-Year Intesest Rate Swag  Finanting Rate Wi 4.000% 042112023 BOD 13) {7}
& (3s) £l 154y
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MAYC 0 30 i 0 ] {30} [F] {301} 0 0 1]
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Statements of Operations (cent) Yaar Ended Dctaber 31, 2022
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Finaneial Highlights jcom.) sor Ended Octaber 31, 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund disausied in this report {each a "Fund™ and collectively, the ™ Funds™), which also indudes each dass of umits of that Fund (each a "Clase”™ and colfectvely,
the "Classes”™), is a senes trust of FIMCO Bermuda Tast B (e “Trust™). an open-ended unit st established under the lavws of Bermuda as a multi-senes st
pariuant to a trst deed exsaied by Wincheder Global Trust Company Limited on December 1, 2003 (3 amended forn time to time, the "Trust Deed™). Efecte &
of the dise of business (Exstern time) on September 29, 2017, Maples Trustee Senices (Bermiada) Limited (the "Trustee™) was appanted as tustes of the Trust
Pacific Imeestment Management Company LLC ("FMCO®, the “Manager™ or the "Imeesment Addser™) is the sponsor of and was responsible for structuring the Trust
Thee Trust is sbiect b regulation and supenision & provided for in the Investment Funds Act 2006 and related rules relating to standard funds

The terms. of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to establish further funds in addition to the Funds.
curently m dperation as of the date of i repon

References to unitholders {sach, a "Unitholder™, and collecBvely, the "Unitholders ™) in, or urits of {or an imvestment in), the Fund shall mean Unithiolders of the Fund

who hold units, or dasses of units (a5 applicable), which are atributable to that Fund

1l

The Funds presented in this report are lisbed bl

Ofkeed onby b bupak wath & Fund of Funds” coucre, & debesd in e ndis of the v moers Toe: Axicuon,
Jugan, o in vy sthee juideson

PEMCD Bermusda Bark Loas Fund &

FRMCD Beemusda Bank Loss Fird B

FRMCO Beemuda Bark Loss Furd

PRMCO Bermuda Bank Loss Furd D

FEMCO Ber muxds Income Fund [

FEMED Bermuda Dynumiz: Muls-fzvei S raingy Fond
FEMCD Bermuxdy Low Dusanon bcome Fund

PRMCD Emprging Bord Incom e Furd I

PRMCD Emerging Bord Ineom s Furd B

PRMCD Bermuda Bank Lo Fured M1

PRMCD Bermusda Emunging Mariem Bioned Fund (M)

PRMCD Beemusda Gkobal Aggeagane Ex-Japan Bond Furd (M)
FRMED Beemusdn lncome Fund (W)

PRUICO Bermurda 1.5 High Yl Fund i)
FEMCD Bermuda U5 High Yald Fundi 11 ()
PRUC Emerginig Bord brcom ¢ Furd )

PEMICD Bes mixdy B enging Murkas Bondf Fund B
PRMCD Bermusda Gobal Aggeegase Ex-Japan (Ve Ba doad Bond Furd
FRMCD Beemusda Globad Aoggpegans Br-Japin Bond Fured

PRMED Bee mudt lncome Fund A®

FEMCD B mush Morigege Oppr s Fund™*

PEMCO Ceore bevome Corparete Biond Fund SET-007*

FEMED U S High Yield [ ervBeckoe d Fend B

FEMCO U5, High Yeld Fundl

PRMCD 05 High Yidd Swaangy Fund

PRMCD U5 High Yl Swangy Fund

FRMCD Weld Bigh [roome™=**

Oiered only 1o osher Funds soseres @y an underlying inves men | wehiche: for such Funds

e —

Cfiered 10 Japanese ard iher evesms

PRMCD Eror Tors bormgage Income Ofwed 1o Japaness and orher invesees. Ureg: of the EUR, JFY and USD Dl are afered momionl ivesmes i
Juguets by vy ol bl ot nhevaagh # che e 0 Jipan, and sy e ellened 1 ooher o e ot e
deatenen ol the Maragee Bk o the BUR, JFY and 050 Clions wall be rwicied 19 only thise inenioe: wha st

mppraeed by e Matage

FRMCD Emergng Bord (Y enHadged) Incom & Fard
FIMCD Emergng Bord Incom e Fund

PEMCO U 5. High Yinld fen® pcoe b Fund

FRMCD LS. High Vel Fund

OHered anly 43 Fend of Fund tyre Japasscs invig imend wric cegunosd onder e | swiooraming ke tmand
Tnen and bvvesim e Company of Jupes {aspanes e bnves sent Tngs") whic wall oller sher umiss 1o the public in
Jagan wbver by wary of puibie; ol g or pra w placement and which ww maraged by FIMCD Japan L or gdwe
aimilay (ow roe ) BENAc VI BT 0GR | g ) Coorm [k ] 3 ubgect 0 e Tube of the Invesmans Truss
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is 3 summary of significant accounting policies consistently
folowed by the Trustin the preparation of its financial statements in
conformity wath accounting prindples generally accepted in the United States
of Amenca {"L5: GAAP™) Each Fund is reated a3 an 1ETVESAITER | COMpamy
under the repoating requirements of LS, GAAP The preparation of inandal
statements in aocordance with U5 GAAP requires Management 10 make
evtmates and ssumptions that affect te repomed amounts of Jstes nd
Irabilinies and divdodure of contngent astets and Bakilities ar the dace of the
financal stazements and the reponted amounts of indreases and degesses in
net Jsens from operatons dunng the reporing penod. Acnial resulls could
ditfer from thote esmmates

i) Acquired Funde The Trustee and Manager may apphy 2l or 3 poetion of
the asets of §) FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, FIMCO Bermudia Bank
Loan Fund B, PFIMCO Berruda Bank Loan Fund C and PIMCO Bermuda Bank
Loan Fund D; i} MIMCO World High Inoome: (i) PIMCO Barmuda Global
Anggregate Ex-lapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund; Gv) FIMCD Bermuda Income Fund & and
PRACE Barmuda Income Furd D iv) PIMICO L5 High Yield {Yen-Hedged)
Fund, PIMCO US. High Yield Fund, PIMCO US. High Yield Strategy Fund, and
PIRACO LS High Yield 51ral:-5;§,- Fund 1) () PIMICO LIS Hagh Yield {Yen-
Hedged) Fund 1l and PIMCO U5, High Yield Fund 1] (i) PIMCD Emenging
Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund, FIMOO Emerging Bond Income Fund,
PEbAC0 Emerging Bond income Fund 1, and PIMCO Emerging Bond income
Fund I (ezch referred to heren & a "Fund of Funds” of ~Acquining Fund™,
which imvests in other Funds) to the respective aedit of §) FMCO Bermuda
Bank Loan Fand (M) () FAIMCO Bermuds Emenging Markets Bond Fund (M),
(il FINACO Bermuds Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M); (W) PIMCO
Bésrrudta Income Fund (M); i) FIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M); (s}
PIMCO Barmisda L% High Yield Fund B (M); G} PIMCO Emerging Bond
Income Fund (M) (refemed 1o herein as.an " Acquired Fund(s)” . Any sssets so
appted will be held i such Aoquinsd Fund(sh a5 if receved directly. Where
Agteld are L0 dpplbed, the Acqured Fund(s) will record the isue of units to e
relevant Aoguining Fumd at the ssue price per unit of such units and will
repunch ase Sisch units a1 thie repinchase price per unit of Sisch units a1 the
timwe af repurchase. Accordingly, the abding of the Acquinng Fand to achies
its investment cbjective will depend upon the abdity of the spplicable
Anduired Fund 1o scheeve i investrent -ijl‘.‘(l.iﬁ.“ Thiene Can be no surance
that the imvestment dbjectve of the Aoquansd Fund will bie achieved

Rancs shown in Ehe Rnanoal E-::_Ij'lllgl'lts oo ol mdude EXENSES ij e
Anigiired Furd(sh See Note 9, Fees and Expentes, for furthes information
regandng fund fess, 2 applicable

(b} Securities Transactions and |rvestment Income Securitied Famsachions
are recorded a5 of the trade date for finandal reporting pusposes. Securnities
purchased or sokd on 3 whendssued or delayed-delivery basis may be

satled beyond a standard set@ement period for the security after the trade
date Redized gains and Ipsses from securities sold are reconded on the
identified cost basis, Diidend income is reconded on the ex-dividend date,
encept certaan diidends Fom forelgn sengities where te ex-dvidend date
mary hiawve passed, which are reconded as 5000 a5 a Fund & informed of the
ex-dhidend date. Interestinoome, adusted for the aoetion of discounts and
AMCIZAtH0N of premisns, & reconded on te dooud basss from sertlement
date, with the exception of secunities with a forwand starting effective date,
wihere interest inoome is recorded on the aooual bass from effective date. For
Comvertible securites, prerniums atmibutable (o e comverson featue are mol
amonized. Estimated tax labed Bes on oertain fodeion Senmities e fecondd
on an accnua bass and are reflected as components of interest income of net
change in unresized appeeciation (depred 2on) on invesements on the

Staterments of Operations, a5 appropriate. Tax lisbdites realized as 3 et of
such security sakes are refeded a5 a component of net redized gain (oss) on
irvesstments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on
mortgage-related and ather asset-bhadoed securitiog, if amy, ae reconded a5
compaonents of interest income on the Statements of Operations

Dbt cibdigation s may be placed on non-accru s sams and reaged intened
incame imay be reduced by ceasing current accruds and writing off intenest
receivable when the collection of 28l or 3 portion of interest has become
doubifil based on consistently applied procedures. A debt cbiigation is
remdned from non-aomel Stats when the FSS0er resumes mberesl paymments
or when collectatality of interest is probable

k) Cizh and Foreign Currency  The finandal statements of each Fund are
presented uang the oumency of the primany eoonomic emironament in wiich it
operates (the “funcionsl qamendy™). The funcional corency for eadh of the
Funds is listed in the below table

The market vaues of f‘ill'fa_l‘;ﬂ Sequnilies, Qumency Frdcins. and cher Fsers
and liabilities are rarslated into eadh Fund's functional qumrency based on the
current exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of securities
and inconme and expense items dencminated in foregn aurendies, if ay, ane
trandated into each Fund's redpective funcBonal cumency a1 the exchange
rate in effect on the ransaction date. The Funds dio not separately report the
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from dhamges in manket prces on
secunfies held. Such dhanges ané scluded Innel tealized and net changes in
unrealized gain or loss fom investments on the Statements of Operations
The Fuends may imvest in foreign oumendy denominated secuites and may
ERgape In Toregn Ouremy rarsacicns eithir on 4 4pal (cash) basis a1 the
rate prevaling n the cumency eofange market at the tme or through 3
forwiand foreign currency conract Realized foreign exchange gains of losses
anang froe sabes of spol forsign curmences, curtency Gaing of bornges realimd
buetwvesien the rade and setternent dates on seaanties rarsactions and the
difference between the reconded amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign
withhcddng fades ard e functondl aurendy equevalent of the amaunts
achpally recéived of paid ane induded in net realized gain or 1065 on foreign
curnen Gy trantactions on the Statements of Operations Net unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses riang from dhanges in foreon exchange rates on
Toreign denoeminated assets and Babdites ather tham Fnvestments n secunibie
held at the énd of the reporting péniod are induded i net change in
unredlized appredation or depred ation on foreign aemency assets and
likilies on the Sanements of Operatons

The Het Astet Walue ("NAV") and fotal refurns of ertain Funds (or Classes
Thereal, &% applecable) are peesented in B curnency fof which thie NAY 15
reparted (b ™ MAN currency™) a4 detailed i each Fund's Oflening
Wernorandum (the "Crifering Memorandum™). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the ttal retum in the NAY qomency, the
beganning and ending NaVs are conerted wiing the period beginning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and disiibutions are comverted using the
exchange rate at the Gme of the distibuion See the following table for the
HAY cumrendy of each respective Fund

Functznal
FrandChem KAV Cenmmey Py
PMCO B dy Bk Loas Furd (M) LS. dolle U5 delly
PMCO Batrruds Bank Loss Fusd &
=[G 5. doflr L5 dellwr
L] JIEY] Jparaes ven L5 dolls
= JlsE Japanma yen L5 defler
= YUFM Jipatees LL5: dellst
= YAlsh Japaesa ven U5 delly
Sraga | Bagary | Dok F1. 2037 1
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Notes to Financial Statements

B W
PEMCD Binrmady Bank Loan fund 8 PMCO Bermuds 15 High Wield Fund I (M) Jxparme yen W5 dellsr
= F AD AR Fakan Aok 15 dollw PIMCO Cowm Ircemee Coopor e Boned Fusd J000-10
- ¥ AL Jparena yon WS dollw = 50 15 doler U5 dolls
= TEAY Jagaten ety U5 dolly PIMLE] Eervaigpna Boond [an-Hedgad) Ineomsa Fund Japategn v L5 delly
LI Jagareme yen U5 dofiw PMEO Eemarpng Bond lcoms Fund Jpatan v LS dells
= YHAUE Joparemn yony U3 doly PICO Ermarging Bond lncoma Fund (M) 15 dolle LL5. delly
= VORY LA U5 dofly PIMLD Ervasigpng Bustel baiese Fund |l
PELICT] Borrasdta Blark Loan Fund © - JAUm Laparge wn U5 dellar
- ¥ [CARDN Jmparems oo U3 deflx " R Ligasema yen U5 dells
PIMICT B arreapds Bank Laan Fund 0 - JICAm Japaraga yen 115 dells
= Y bliodd Jpars vt U35 dolls = JCRHT Jagasama yen U5 dellr
PEMICO) B prmaxda Dymamec Mok i=ssm 0 Smamegy Fond = JIpm Lapargs ven U5 defiwr
= JUn Haparee yen U5 deliy LI | il ] lgaree yen L5 dolls
= |50 115 dells 15 dells = JERW Jagataga e U5 dells
PERICT) Blprmasdda Ervens goneg M ark o Biond Fund (W0 U5 dolla U5 dolly = JMIN) Jipatees LL5: dells
PUICT] Bt Ervosw g W nck ess, Biond Fusad 11 = JTHY Jipaen L5 dellyr
- et LIPTY Jmparess ven 5 dolly NGO Emaigeng Bond lnzome Furd (1
= It LIPY, Hadgad) Japcaren s 115 dolls . JIEUR Japariga e U5 deliw
PRRICT] Bevmasdn Gohat Aggragate Ex-Japan [T i i = JIGEF Lmparen yen 115 dellw
Hidiged) Bood Furd gk e — . Jusn Japosesa yen U5 dolta
PERICT) B ey Gkl Aggragane B -Japan Bond E = PNICD Short-Taem Margags Incoma
e Leparese vy U5 dolle T Fum U5 dolls
PRI Blrmasda Glabal Aggragats Ex-Japas Boed i LI 4 Jaganeme yen 115 delflr
Fusd ) o [ oI, Hadged lpeomayen | US doke
FEMCT) Blrmads Income Fund (M U5 dolly U5 dully =50 U5 deliw L5 dolly
PEMICT Bormadis Ineame Fund & PMCOW S High Yield (fen-Hedged) Fond Jmarema yen U5 dells
- FLIFY) Japaree v S dolls MMCO WS High Yield (fen-Hadged Fend || oo ven 115 dolls
L) F S 15 dellw 5 dolly PBICO LS High Yield Furd J AR i LG dellw
L] JLPY) Japarema ven 115 dofls PIMCO LS Hugh Yeld Fund S vean s d;:l.l.y
= D Japaresa yen U5 dollw PMCOU S High Yield Smamgy fund
L K RIS 5 dollx Li°5 dolls " JU#T Jpanms wn LES. dells
= MAURY Adond Japatess von U5 delly . J LY, Hedgedh Japawes v L5 delly
L M AU Advesony) 5 dolle U5 doflw ® JIUEH 15 dellr U5 delle
= KNUFI Jugarise o U3 dolly . U Japarigs ven U5 dellw
= NSO Lipateme yma U5 dells 5 YLUPY, Hedged) Jparme yn L5 delly
= KN s 115 dolly U delly RMCO 5 High Yield Soasegy Fund 11
= PUFY Jagaree yon U5 dollx L Japanonn yen L5 deflw
= {JUPr% Jppar yon 05 dolly . ¥ ERL) lgasme yen U5 dells
= ROM Japanss oo U3 delly LI ("1, I ganns yen L1 dellsr
= RSO 15 dollw 1§45 dells 5 FITAY Jmansn v U5 dellw
= SUPYW Jagarens ven U5 dole PMCO W Hgh I rotmes 5. deller U5 dolls
= Tum Japaregs yen U35 doll * EMecovs Apri 13, 2027 the D changad its name from J GAUB) o J [ICNH)
- B2 UPY] Juparems ven 5 defly
: "':'I::':f ';;;:’I:m Il'_' g :x {d] Mudticlass Oparatiens Each (Rass of a Fund -:-He:-_»::l bey the Trust has
. X050 U5 det 15 del rights i the a_srﬁlsu.'d the Furd equal o that -:-fu:-mer_ Qlasses of the sams
. TOEW FOIE U5 dells Fund, a5 applicable. except for spedric sssets and gains and bosses designated
- ¥ ArEm Lpanee v 15 dolls 10 & (Rass rel Alng 10 QeETency h?d; N CperFions, Moome, non-Class spedfic
= TUPY LA U5 deliy expenses, and non-Class spedfic realized and unreabized capital gains and
PR Brreada Income Furd D loveses are alipcated to each Class of units based on the relative net assets of
PR T Ausnakon dolis 15 dollsr eadh Class of e respective Fund, a5 spplicable. Class spedficexpenses
T e SRS 5 dolly curneny indude managemen?, advisony, administrative, agency and
PRRICT) B orrmydha Lowy Diarancn dncoem Furd distribytion fizes, where applicable
= BOSH L5 dolly Bt I e} Distribution Palioy The follawing table shows the antidpated frequency
PR Blorsiriia Mca i e Copariescns T of dis ributicers for =ach Fund. Distibutions bom each Fund may be dedared
= kn1liPY Hedged Fracamntn 15 dels af disiebutions for &ac .J_n Sfibkions o each R By eclared
PR apstach vk U5 dolle and disiributed to Unitholders anly upon the authonzation of the Manager,
= J SO Jmpanss yen U5 dolls which authonzaton may be withheld a1 the Mangger's dismretion
- 50 15 dolla 15 dolls
PR Blrmandn [ 5 Magh Yield Fusd (W0 115 dolly 115 dollw

Brw | Bagay | Dopdsr 3. 2037 n2
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Declared and Paid Manthby
PMECD Bexrvusdla Baek Logn Fured A
PAMECD Beermuds Bark Loan Fund B

PAMCD Beurrusdy Back Loan Fued C
FAMCO Beerrusdla Back Loen Fued O
PAMCD Berrrusdly bncoma Fursd A

= FLUEN

L i1 ]

= U

LI N1 §

- N UF

= NAED

= NHOED

= SUFH

= KUPM

LI 1 ]

= YUPY

L] L]

FIMED Barmruda Inoerms Fund O
PIMED Bermudas Mortgags Dppoe unite Fusd

= JUFY
=) Em
= U3

FIMCD Emesgang Bond [Yer-Hadged] hcome Fund
PIMCD Erva gite) Boead Breame Fond

FIME0 Emargrg Band bneome Fand I

PAMECD Emesgereg Bond Incema Fued 11

FIMCO LS Hagh Yool [YarHedged) Fund
PO LS Hagh Yinkd Fusd

PIMED LS. High Yield Sxamgy Fend

FIMCD L5 Hagh Yield Sramgy Fend I

PRACD Wearld High Incame

PAMECD Brzmuds bncoema Furd A
= [
[ 150 ]

Divc Lasred and Paid Semisnnualby:
FIMCO Bestrrusda Dynamo Mulb-dstet Stategy Fund

PAMCE Bestrrustls bncoems Fund A
L] P UP
=  AUPM
FIMOD ShertTerm Meomgage lnoame
= HH
LI |
L] J UPY, Hedged

= 50
The Menuger dees not expect ta daclare distributions wath reipect to 1hese

Funds {or Elasses thewesd, il applicable), but may, in its diereson, declare
ansd

dis tributions to the Unitholders at a
FPIMCT Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (W
FIMOD Bermuds Emesgng Warkets Bond Fusd (M)
FIMCO Besmuds Emergng Markets Bond Fend B
FIMCD Barrrada Gt Apgragats Br-Japas [Van-Hedged B Fiisd
FIMCD Bermuda Global Apgregat Ex-Japesn Bond Fund

The Manager does not expect to declars dintributiom with respeei to these

Funds [or Clisews theraad, If spplicable, but may, in its dncretion, declarn

and disiributions to ike Usitholders ai fima.
FIMOD Barrrasds Global Sggiagete Ex-Japen Boad Fund (W)
PIMOD Barmada bnoome Fond A

= KMEH

= M UPY Advong)

s M UEDAdEnnd

= TN
= pagrn’
= Wush
= IR
Fild O Barrevada brcome Frend (M)

1WA O B ot Lewst Dhorasian Frncomme: Fursd
FIM D) Bawrreada Morigage Dpporemines Fund

= iner LPY Hedgedd
FRCD Barmeada U5 Highs Yl Fund M)
FIM DD Barroada U5 Hgh Yakd Fund B (M)
FIM D Core Income Corpoeate Bond Fend 2020- 00
FIM CO) Ermez ping Bond Inceme Fured (M)
FIMOD 15 Fagh Yiald [Yen-Hedged) Fond Il
FIMCD UL S High Yietd Fund 0

* Ay i tribuy Bone wath recpent b Gl 112 DY) Units ol tha Fusd vell B declanad in
aeoedaten varth  letee sy esment beswesn the Masager snd the rnestar i sush Cles

Drsmbutions, if amy, wll generally be made fnom the relevant Fund's (of
Class's, of applacable) net ivestment indome. In addition, the Manager may
Authoize the payment of net realized capital gains available bor dstribulion
Aodbonal distdutons may be dedared 55 the Mandger deems appropnate
Dhsmrioutiors. pasd with respect oo amy' Fund (or Class theneot, if spplicabie)
will fedhuce the MAN of asch Fund or Class thereol, of applicable). At the
disretion of the Unitholders, cash disributions from a Fund for Class therecd,
if applicable) muy either be reinvested in additanal units of & Rend (oe Class
theread, if applecable) or paid to a Unitholder in cash, Cash payments wall be
paidin the NAV currency of the Fund. Each Fund (te Class thereaf, if
applecabde) ey declane fur ther dismibutions d considened neckssany in onder
1o maentain a reasonatile level of distribuGons far a Rend (or Olass thereod, if
appficabde) In the event that there i< inadequate net income and net reaized
capital gans o pay a dstibution of 2 Fund (or Class thereof, if applicatie)
rasquired by the Cfermg Memorandum, the Manager may pay & dstrbution
consisting of a portion of the capital of sudh Fund {or Clags thereat, if
appficable) Distrbutions. not collected within six years from their due date
will lapse and wall acaue 1o the benefit of the relevant Fund {or Class thereaot
il applicable)

i} Isswe and Repurchess of Units Subisquent 1o 8 Fend (or Class heneod, if
applicable) commendng business, Units of each Fund {or Clags thereof,
Appfecable) may be issued by e Manager on 3 continuous Dasis ot the Nel
Aot Value per Unit of that Fund {or Class thensal, if applicable) at the time
of siech tssue, subgect to the night of the Manager o it appointed agent, in
the sole disareSon of the Managee, to termporarily suspend sudh issue. Undess
staned atherwise in e redevant OBeing Memaorandum, for eadh Fund for
Class thereal, it applicalie), the isue price per Unit for such Units will be the
et Asset Walue per Unit determined on each Dealing Day caloiated as set
Torth Delow under " Detesmenation of Met Asser Value™; provided that, o a
st o purdhase Units in A form acceptatie to BBH & not recened by BBH
pricr b 12300 noon (Eastern time), the iswe price per Unitof the relevant
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Fured {or any Class thensaf, it applicabie) shall be the Mel Asse Value per Unat
determined on the next Dealing Day, In the case of repurchase of Units o
tesmmination of the Funds in the Trust which are registered in Japan for direct
distributicn in Japan, the Units of sudh Funds thall b repurchased from
Unitholdess in cash. o repurdhase in kind may be allowed in sudh Funds
Except as ofhenwize prowided in the relevant Offesing Memorandum, payment
of the repurchase price will be made by the Trusiee or its appointed agent by
bank transfer generally within fwo (2) Business Days after the Dealing Day
upon which the repurchase notice is received, or deemed to have been
received, by BEH, athough under certain droumstances, payment may take
up to eight (3) Business Days after such Dealing Day. Unless stated othenw ke
in the refevant (ffering Memorandum, the Funds are nof subject 1o
subscripion of repurchase fees; provided, howeser, 3 distibulor sppoanted in
the jurisdiction where 3 Fund ks distributed may dharge subsaiption or
regurchase fees in such amounts a5 agreed with the Manager and the

Trustes

I} New Aecounting Pronsuncements ard Regulatory Updates in March
2020, the Fnanda Acoounting Standards Board {“FASE") fssued an
Accounting Standands Update (" ASUT), ASU 2030404, which prosddes
optional guidance ko ease the potentia accounting burden assodated with
transitigning away fom the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR ™) and
ofer referere rates that are expeched fo be discontinued . ASU 2020-04 is
effective for certain reference rate-related mnract modfications that our
during the pericd March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 In March
2020, the administrasor for LIBOR announced the extension of the publication
of @ majoeing of the LISC LIBOR settings 1o une 30, 2022 In December 2022,
FASE igauied ASL 20F2-06, which indudes amendmenits b extend the
dueration of the LIBOR trancition refef (o Degember 31, 2024, after which
entities will mo longer be permitted o apply the rederence rate refiorm relief
Management is continuousy evaluating the potential effect a disconBinuation
of LIBOR could have on the Funds’ investments and has detemined tat it is
unikely the ASLTS adapion wall hade a matena Wmpact on the Funds’
financial staements

In sne 2022, the FASE issued ASU 2022-03, Fair Value Measurement (Topic
BI0), which affects ol entithes that huve inaestments in BOUITY SEOUNES
rmeasured at fair value that e subject b0 a contractual sale resiriction The
amendments in ASL 2022403 darify that a confraciual resticion on the salke
of an equety security s ot gonsidened part of dhe wnitof sooount of the equity
sequrity and, therefore, is not considered in measuring the fairvalue. The
amendments also require sddiional dsdosures for equity seosites subjed o
contractual sale restmictions that are measured 31 fair value in acoxdance
with Topic 820 The effective date for thi smendiments in ASU 202203 o
for fiscal years beginning after Degember 15, 2024 and interim perods within
thise fiacal wears. ALENIS e, management i5 ealuating the impbcations of
these chamges on the finandal statements

3. IRVESTMERT VALUATION AHD FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(a) Irvestment Valuation Poligies The price of a Fund's units is Based on
the Fund's NAV. The MAV of 3 Fund, of each of its Classes, a5 spplicable, 15
determined by dnidng the watal valoe of pertolio imvestments and other
assets atfributable to that Fund or Class, kess any Rabilities, by the tatal
number of units cutstandng of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Deding
Dy (2% discribed in the e end Offering Memnceandum of he

Trust), Fund units ane ordinarily valued a4 of the dese of regular rading on
the Mew York Stock Exchange ("NYSE Close ™). Infomnation that becomes
kncwn 1o thi Funds or their agens after the time 34 of which NAV has beem
cabaulated on a parsadar day will not generally be used 1o rerraactvely adjust
the price of & security of the NAY determined earier that day. Each fund

retervies the right to dhange the Gme a5 of whidh its NAY is caloulated it
the Fund doses earier

For pupotes of calaulagng NAY, portholio securites nd aifier astets for
which market quotations are readly seilatie are valued al marketvalie A
market quotation is readly awalable onfy when that quotation is a quoted
price quriaciursted) in active marke s for idenncal invesments that he Fund
Can a00e4s At the measurement date, provided that a quotation wall nod be
readity avalable if itis not reliable. Market value is generadly determined on
the basis of official dosing prices o the last reported sales prices. The Funds
will noemally use prigng data for domese equity securilies retenved shortly
after the NYSE Close and donot normally take into account rading,
dearances o setdements that take place after the NYSE Close. Investments
for which market quatations are not readily available are valed at fair value
&t deterrnined in good faith at the Manager of persons acting at their
direction As 3 general prindple, the fair valee of 2 sequrity or other assetis
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ransder 3 liabsliny
in an crderly ransaction between markel participants at the measurement
date. The Manager has adopted methods for valuing securities and other
a5t in croumstances wihere market guotes ane not readity available, and
higs th responsbility fl:r-’dww'";l the Tair valuation methods, The Menager
may valee Fund portfolio securities Sor which market quodations are not
readly avalable and other fund assets utilidng inputs fom priding senices,
quiekation reporting systens, valuaton agents and omher thind-party sounces
{bogether, " Prigng Scurces™). A foreign fhon-U S ) equity security fraded on a
foreign exchange or on more than one exchange is typically valsed using
pricing infoemation from the eodhange considered by PIMCO to be the
parnary exchange. Hruebervaue pnong s used & tomagn (non-US ) equty
sequritywill be valued s of the dose of trading on the foreign exchange, o
the NYSE Close, if the WrSE Close ocours before the end of trading on the
foreign exchange. Domestic and foreign (non-1.5.) fed income Securites,
mon-excthan e traded dervatves, and edquity options. are normally vialued on
the barss of queotis obiained froen brokers and deakins of Pridng Sourges
using such data I'E'ﬁfil.'!-'"g thie peicipal markets for those Secunties. Frioes
obiaimed from Pridng Scurces may be bated on, among other thing,
iformeation provided by market makers of estimates of marke! values
abtained from wield dyty relsting o Fvesiments of seasnties wath dmdar
charactenafics Certain food income wdurnBes purdhased on & delaped:
delivery badis are marked o market daly unl setthement at the fonwand
settlement date. Exchange-raded oplions, xoepl squily oplions, fulres and
opiti s on futues ane valued at the setfement price determined by the
relevant exchangs, quotes oblained from a quotation reporting system,
established market makers of Pricing Sounces. Swap aqrecmen(s e valued
an the bass of macke-based prices supplied by Prichg Sounoes o quote
obiltaired from brokers and deabers. A Fund's investments in open-end
managemnent investment companies, other than eadhange-fraded funds
(TETES "), ane valued an the NAVS of sudh invesirents

it a fareign (non-U 5 ) equily secuty’s value has matenaly dhanged after the
clivte of the Security's primary exchange or pindpal market but before the
WYSE Clome, thee Seaurity may bee valued at fair value bated on procedure
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-UL5. ) equity
secunities that donot rade when the NYSE is opsen are dsovalued at fair
vaue With respect Lo foreign (non-L05 ) equity securilies, 3 Fund may
detesmine the Lar value of investiments bated on information provided by
Pricing Sources, whidh may remmmend fair value or adustments with
referenoe bo ather Secuities, indioes or st In condenng whether Lai
vauabon is required and in determining far values, the Manager may, among
ather ghings, consider significant events (which may be considered to indude
changes in the vaue of U5 sequrities of sequities indices) that oour after
the dote of the relevant market and before the NYSE Clote. A Fund may
ulilize modeling tooks provided by third-par ty vendors 1o determine fair valuss
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of foreign (ean-L15 ) securifes. Ror hede purpases, mless othensice
detemnined by the Manager, any mavement in the appiicabie referance indix
of instrument (" zeng nigger™) between the earlier dose of the applicable
ferdign radket and tie NYSE Clode may be deemed ta be 4 Soreficant eent,
prompting the spplication of the pridng model {effectively resulting in daily
fair valuations) Foreign exchanges may permit rading in foreign (non-U 5 )
equity seities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
resullin a Fund's portiolia imrvestments being atfected when Unithobders are
unable to buy or sell units

Senior secured floating rate loans for which an actve secondary market exsts
to @ reliabde degree will be valued at the mean of the last available bediag:
prices in the market for sudch loans, as provided by a Pridng %endce. Senior
secured floating rate laans for which an active secondary market does not
exist to 3 reliable degree will be valued a1 fair value, which is intended to
approsimate market watue. In valuing 3 senior secured $oating rate boan at
fair valige, the factors considered may indude, but are not limited o, the
folowing: () the cedtwortfiness of the borower and any infermediate
participants, (b) the terms of the loan, ) recent prces in the market for
simelar lpans, if any, and (d) recent prices in the matket for instruments of
simelar quality, rate, period untl nest interest rate reset and maturiny

Ievestments vialued in qamrendes other than the fenctional arrengy

ol a Fund are converted 10 the funchionad airency using exchange rates
obtained from Pridng Sources. As a result, the value of such investments, and
in furn, the KAV of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of qumrendies in relation to the functional currency The value of investments
traded in foretgn markets or denominated in armendes other than

the funcional qumency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trustis
nok apen for business. As g result, to the extent that a Fund holids foreign
(mon- U5 ) investrenas, thevalue of those irvesiments fisy chane af brmes
when you cannot purchase, redeem or exchange units and the value of sudh
imvegtments will be reflected in the Fund's next caloulated Ray

Fair wabaation may require subjective determinations sbout the value of 2
sequrity. While the Trost's poibcies and peocedures are intended to result in a
cabadation of 3 Fund's NAY that fairly reflects sequrity vaiues a5 of the time of
pricing the Trust cannot ensyne that fair values determined by the Manager
of persons acting at thedr direcion woubkd accurately reflect the price that

& Fund could obtain for 3 secutiny if it wene 1o dapose of that security 35 of
the: time of pricing Jor instance, in 4 forced of disressed sale). The prices
used by 3 Fund may difer friom the value that would be realized if te
securites were sold

(b) Fair Value Hierarchy 15 GAAF desaibes fair valae as the pnce that

a Fund would receive o sell an asest of pay 1o transfer 2 Babilityin an orderly
transaction between market partidpants at the measrement date. It
establishes a fair value hierarchy that priceitizes inpuis tovaluation methods
and requires disdosure of the far value herardny, separately for each major
category of assets and libikties, that segregates fair vaue measurements nto
leweds (Lewal 1, 2, or 3} The inputs or methodology used for valuing secanties
are nolb negessanly an indication of the risks assodated with investing in those
securiies. Levels 1,2, and 3 of the fairvalue herandy are defined a5 follows

# Livel | —Quabed prices (umnadusted) in acthe markets of sathandgss for
identical assets and Rabilities

= Level 2—Sagnificant other observable inputs, which may indude, but are
not imited to, guobed prices for similar assets or lizhilties in markets that are
active, quabed prices for idenScal o aimilar assets or liabilities in markets that
are nok actve, inputs other than quoted prices that are cbservable for the
assets of ablies (such as interest rates, yield curves, wolatilities, prepayment

speade, loas severities, credit ks and detault rates) or ather market
cormobeorated inputs

= Level 3—Significant unobsenvable inputs based on the best information
availablein the drosmetances, to the extent obserdable inputs are not
available, which may indude a5 semptions made by the Manager or persons
Acting A1 their derecrion that ane ied in determining the fair value of
IFVESETREN LS

Acgets or liabilities categorized as Level 2 or 3 a5 of peniod end have been
transfermed between Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period due fodhanges in
ihe method utilized in viluang the invesiments. Transfers from Level 2 to Level
3 & aresdtof 2 change, in the nomnal aurse of business, from the we of
valuason methos used by Pricing Sources (Level 29 to the we of 2 Broker
Cuate of valuaton technique which utilizes sigrificant uncsenvable inputs
du 10 an absence of curment of reliable market-bated data (Level 3)

Transfers from Level 3 o Level 2 are g result of the avallabiliny of cument and
refiatie manoet-based data provided by Pridng Sources of other valuation
techiniques which utilize ggnificant cbservable inputs

I acoordamce wath the requirements of LS. GAAP, the smounts of manshers
inand out of Leved 3, if material, are disdosedin the Motes to Schedube of
Irivestmeents for each respective Fund

For fair valuaBons uang significant unobienable mputs, U5 GAAF requires
to disdose transders into and out of Level 3 of the fair value hieranchy and
purchases and issies of Level 3 ssets and Babilites during the period
-’-Eﬂliﬂﬂﬂ"ﬁ'. U5 GAAP requires quanbiatnee mIormanon reganding e
significant unobservable inputs used in the determination of fair value of
assets of Hakilities categonzed as Level 2 in the fair value hierardhy. I
accondance with the requirements of LS. GAAP, 3 fair value hierarchy, and if
matenial, detals of significant unobservable inputs, have been induded in the
Hotes 1o Schedule of Envestments for each respective Fund

fed Weluation Technégues and the Fair Vialue Hierachy

Lewel 1, Level 2 and Level 3 trading assets and trading liabilides, at
tairvalue The valuamon mechods (or ~rechnigqaes”} and iﬂ}‘il"'i-’ll'lllﬂﬂlﬁ‘.-
used in derermining the far values of portiolo securiges of ofher assets and

i ilitied, catedporiznd s Liwel |, Lisvel 2 and Level 3 of the fair valué hisranchy
are as follows:

Fiied Bncorme securites induding corporate, comvertible and municopal bonds
and nates, LS. govermment agendes, U%S. tnesury obligations, sonefeign
Isspes, bark logns, comvertbke prefemed Secunities and non-L1.5 bonds are
mormally valued on the Bass of quotes obtained from Brakers and dealers o
Prvcang ources that use broker-dealer quotations, reported frades. of
vauaBon estimdates from their intem al pricang modets. The Freang Sounces”
Irnérnad rodes wse inputs that ane observable such a3 msuer denails, ntenest
rales, yield curves, prepayment speeds, aedit idesspreads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar atats Seamities that use dmilar vauation
techneques and inputs o5 desribed above are cansgonzed a8 Livel 2 .0f the
fair valie hierarchy

Fized Bncorne securines punchased om 3 delsped-gdensery batis of 34 4
repurnchase commitment in 3 sale-buybad randaction are rarked to markel
daily until settlement al the forwand setiement date and ane categonized a5
Lewel 2 of the far value herardry

Mortgage-related and asset-badeed sequrites are usually msued a5 Separ ate
Tranhes, or dasses, of sequnties within each g These sequefies ane alw
noemnatly valued by Friamg Sources that use broker-geser quatatons,
reported trades o valuation estimates from their intemal pricing madels. The
prcing madels for these securities wudlhy condider tranche-leel alfributes,
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aprent market dats, estimated cash fows and market-based yield spreads for
each tranche, and incorporate ded collateral perfomanice, as avalable
Maortgage-related and asset-backed seqwities hatuse smiar valuation
techmigues shd infats & deterbed above & categonzed a5 Level 2 of the

fTawr value hierardhy

Comemon sacks, ETFs, exchange-traded nates and finan o dervatie
Instrurments, such 4 fubores contracts, righls and warrants, or opfions on
Tutres that are traded on anational seqmities exthange, are stated at the
fast reported sde o sattlement price on the day of valuation. To the extent
Lheste securities afe acihvely fraded and valuation adjustments are not applied
they are categonized s Level 1 of the fair value hieranchy

Imvestmaents valed (fenominated) in aarmendes other than the funcSonal
amrency af a Fund are converted 10 the fanctional cumrendy uiing éxdhange
rates (currency spot and forward rates) obtained from Fridng Sources. As a
result, the MAY of & Fund™s units may be stfected by changes in the value of
Qurendes i relation to the hunctional aarendy. The vaue of searities Iraded
in foreign markets or denominated in aamencies ofher than the funclonal
cwmency mary be affected significantly on a day that the Trustis nof gpen foe
burginess. Valuation adjustments may be appled 1o certain seqanties that are
sobely traded on a foreign echange to account for the market movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NY5E Close. These sequrites
are valued wang Pridng Sources that consider the comrelation of the rading
pattems of the foreign secunty 1o the infraday trading in the US. markets for
imvestments. Securites uting these valuation adjustments are categorized as
Lewel 2 of the fair value herandy Frefemed seounities and other equities
traded on inactive markets o walued by reference 1o similar insruments are
also categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierandwy

Ecquity-Inked securites are valued by referendng the last reported sale o
settiemnent price of the linked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adustments are applied io the last reported price to
convert the Binked equity’s rading cumenay to the contradt's seltling oumency
These investments are categonized as Level 2 of the far value hisrarchy

Imvestments in registered open-end Frestment companies (other than ETF)
wiill b valued based upon the NAYS of such investments and are categonized
a5 Level 1 of the fair value hieranchy. Investments in unregistered open-end
Irneestment companies will be calodated based upon the NANS of such
imeestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NAVS e
observable, calaulated daly and ane the value at which both purdhases and
sales will be conducted

Valuation adustments may be applied to certain exchange iraded futures and
options to aoount for market movement bebween the exchange setdement
and the W 5E dode. These securities are valued wang quoles oblained from a
quotation reporing systern, establiched marke? makers or Priding Sources
Finamdal dervatives wsing these valuation adustments are categorized a5
Lewed 2 of thee fair value Meraschy

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal derivative
instruments, such as fonward foresgn qEmency contracts and opticens conlracts,
dierive their value from underling assel prices, indices, reference rates, and
ofher inputs or 3 combination of these factors. These confracts ane nosmalhy
wabyed on the basks of quotes obtaned fram 3 quotation reporting system,
established market makers ar Pradng Sounces (noemally determined & of the
e 5E Close) Depending on the product and te terms of She transaction,
financal derivative instrurnents can be valued by Pricng Sources wsing &
senes of techniques, induding simulation prding modsts, The pridng models
use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as quoted
prices, issuer detals, indices, bidfask spreads, inserest rates, implied

wol atilities, yield curees, dradends and -?xd'ange rates. Anandal dervative

imstnurments Ehal wee similar valuation technsgues and inpuls 3% desoribed
abiree are categorized ai Level 2 of the fair value Fieranchy

Centrally desred Saapd and over the counber syags denmee thest value from
underbng assel prices, ndices, reference rates, and other inplts of 3
combimation of these faciors. They are valued wsing a broker-deaer bid
quitatian of o market-based prices provided by Pricng Sounces. (nommally
dutermined &% of the NYSE Close). Centrally deared dwaps and over the
counber swaps can be valued by Pricing Sources using a senes of techriques,
induding dmulation pricing models. The peicing models may use inputs that
are obrserved fnom sctrely quoted markets siech a5 the owernight index swap
rate, LIBOR forwand rate, interest rates, yield curves and aedif spreads. These
securilies are categorized & Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

‘When a fair valuation method is appdied by the Manager that uses sqnisicant
unobsenable inputs, imestments will be peiced by a method Sat

ke Banadger of persons acting at their direction beliese peflects Tair valee and
are categonized s bevel 3 of the Lair value hierardy

Prony ricing procedunes ser te bace price of & fixed income sequrity and
subrsecuen ty acfust the price propartionally 1o market value dhanges of a pre.
determined sequrity deemed 1o be comparatde in duration, generdly a s
Treamiry or sovereign node based on countryof issuance The base price may
b & broker-deader quote, bansadbon price, or a0 intemnal value a5 derived by
anabysis of market data. The bace price of the security may be resat on a
periodic basgs based on the avail sbility of market data and procedures
appeowed by the Valuation Cveraght Committes. Significant dhanges in the
uncbienabie nputs of the procy pidng process (the base pice) waald result
in direct and proportional changes in the fair value of the seauity. These
sequriies are categorized a5 Leved 3 of the fair value hieranchy

ff third-party evaluated vendor pricng is not available or not deemed fo be
Indicative of fairvalue, the Manager may elect to obdain Erober

Cuates directly from the broker-dealer or passed-throgh Broker Quate from
a third-party vendor In the event hat fair value & based upon asingle
soerced Broker Quote, these sequrities are Caiegonled as Level 3 of the far
value hierarchy. Broker Cuotes ane typically received from established market
partapants. Although independenty received, the Manager does not hawe
the ransparency 1o view the underhing inpaits which support the market
quotation. Significent changes in the Broker Quate would have direct and
propartional changss in the fai value of the security

Refierence instrument valuation essmates fair value by iliang the comelztion
of the seqnty toofe of more broad-based secuntes, market indices, and'or
other Bnandal instnuments, whiose pricng information ks readily available
Unobservable inputs may indude those used in dgorithm formulas based on
percentage change in the reference instruments andfior weights of each
reference mitrument. Significant changes in the unobservable inputs would
resultin direct and proporional dhanges in the fair value of the seaurity
These securities are categorized as Llevel 3 of the fair value hierardyy

Common stock equivalent valuafion estimates far value by apphng an equity
adustment based on chservable comparable companies’ equity value
vaiances. Siqnificant changes in the unobservable mputs would result in
direct and proportional dhanges in the fair value of the seaurity, Thess
senunities are categorized i Level 3 of the fair value Reranchy

Thie Discounted Cash Fiow mode i bated on future cash fiows generated by
the investment and may be normakized based on expected invesment
performance Fulsre cash fows are discounted 10 present vaue using an
appropriate rabe of retum, typically calibrated o the initial ransacion date
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Pricing Model and'or other market-
based inputs. Significant changes in the unobrenable inputs would resut in
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direct and proporticnal changes in the Lar value of he searily. These
securities are cabegorized an Level 3 of the fair value hieranchy

Thie Corrgear bie Coempanies model i+ based on application of vahiaton
eusltipies. from publkidy raded comparable companies o te finandak of the
subject company. Adustments may be made to the market-derived valuation
rustiples hased on differences between the comparable comparies and the
subject company. Significant dhanges in the unobsenvable inpuls would resull
in direct and propostonal chamges in the far valse of the security. These
secunities ane categoeized & Level 3 of e fair value hierarchy

The Cormpar able Transactions model is based on application of valuation
migdtiptes. from cbservable transactions comparable to the security of
company. Adjusirnents may be made to the implied comgarable ransaction
misitiples. based upon differences between the obeerved ransactons and e
subsect company of seqrily. Sgnificant changes in the unobsenable inputs
woousld resudt in diredt and proportional dhanges in the fair value of Se
securily. Thess ssqunities ane categorized & Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Shoft-term debit insurments (aach 38 Commiencdal papen) having a remeEnng
ralurity of 60 days or less rray be valued an amortized cost, 50 long as the
amonized oot value of such dhon-term debt instruments is apprasdmately he
same & the fair valee of the instnument as determined without the use of
amantized oost valuaton Thess searities ane categorized 38 Leved 2 or Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy depending on the soprce of the base price

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a} Delayed-Delreery Transections Certain Funds may purchase of sell
securiies on 3 delaymed-delivery bays. These ransactions ol 3
commitrnent by a Fured o purchase of sell securities for a predatemined price
of yiehd, with paymment snd diliviry taking place beyond the customany
seftiement period. When delgped-delivery iransactions are outstanding.

a Fundwill designate of receive &5 Collateral liqued &5sets i a0 amount
sufficient ko meet the purchase price or respedive obligations. When
purchasing a seasity on 3 delayed-delivery basis, 2 Fund assumes the rights
and ricks of ownership of the seaurity, induding e risk of price and yield
flectuations, and takes such flectuations into account when determining its
HAY. A Fund may dispode of of rersgotiste 3 Gl aped-defivery rantaction
affter it is enfired into, which may result in a reakized gain of kst When

4 Furvd has sokd & secunity on & delayed-dediveny basis, the Fund does nat
participate in future gaing and losses with respect to the sedarity

b} Inflatior-indexed Bonde Certain Funds may imvest in inflation-indewed
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fised income securities whose prindpal

wiue is pericdically adusted by the rate of nflation The inferest rate on
these bonds is generally fixed at lssuance at 3 rate lower than typscal bonds
Croer the life of an inflation-indexed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on a prindipal value, which is adusted for inflation. Any increase o
decrease in the prindpal amount of an inflation-ndexed bond will be induded
as inberest ingome on the Statements of Operations, even though investors do
not recene thelr princpal undil maturity. Repayment of the original bond
pvinapal upan manunty (as adjusted o inflation} is guarameed in the case of
1% TIFS, For bonds that do notprovide a similar quarantee, the adjusted
principal walee of the bond repaid at manarty may be less @izn the orginal
prenapal

] Loan Participations, Assignments and Originations Cestain Funds may
irvest in cirect deb? instruments which ane interests in amounts owed 10
fenders or lending syndcates by corporate, governmental, or other bomosers
A Fund's inwvesments in loans may be in the foem of paeticdipations in am o
assignments of all or 2 portion of loans ki thend parties of investments in o
anginations of loans by the Fund. A boan is often administered by 3 bank or

ather Snandal instintion (the "lender™) that o & s9ent for all holders The
agent administers the tems of the loan, &5 specified in the loan agreement

A Fund may investin multiple senies or ranches of a loan, which may hawe
varying terms and carry different asodianed rsks. When a Fund pordhases
asshgnments from lenders it acquires direct fights against the bomowers of the
loans. These boans may indude parfdpations in bridge loars, which are loars
f3ken out by bomowers for 3 shaort period (ypically less than one year)
pendng arrangement of more permanent nandng through, for example, the
issuance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
atquisions

The types of keans and related investments in which the Funds may irvest
indiude, among others, senior loans, subordn ated loans {induding second
lien laans, B-Hotes and mezzarine [oans), whole loans, commendd real
estate and other commendal loans and structured loans. A Fund may
ofiginate loans or acquire direct interests. in boars through primary loan
digtnbutions andfor in pivate ransactions. In the case of subordinated boars,
there may be ggnificant indebitedness rarking shead of the borrower's
obdigation to the holder of such a loan, induding in e event of the
boeroaver’s insolvency. Mezzaning |loans are sypacally sequred by a pledge of
AN eQUAty intenest in the mongage bomower that ewns the real estate rather
than an interest in 3 mortgage

IrvesBments in bodns may indude unfunded laan otsnmitments, which ane
contractual ebligations for funding Unfunded loan commitments may mdude
revolving credit fadilities, which may obligate a Fund to supply additiona cash
12 the bomower on demand Unfunded loan commitments represent 3 fumure
obligation in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
not be wtili ped by the bomower, When investing in a loan partidpation,

& Fund has the right to receive payments of princpal, inierest and sy fees o
which It is entithed only from the bender selieng the loan sgreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lender from the bormower. A Fund may
regeive & commiiment fee based on the undrawn portion of the underbing
lirve of credit pomtion of & boan. I cenaln drowmstances, & Fund may receive a
pendity e upon the prepayment of aloan by 3 bomower. Fees eamed o
paaid are recorded 25 3 component of interest income of inferest expense,
f'i'i{lEIZIIi'-'?'r:'. on e Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are refecied 34 2 liabiiny on the Stameements of Asters and Lisbdines

{d] Marigage-Aelated and Other Asset-Backed Securities Certan Funds may
irvest in mortgage-related and other asset-badoed secunities that directy or
indrecthy represent 3 parSdpation in, or are seared by and payable from,
lans on real property. Mortgage-rel ated securities are geated from pools of
residential or commendial mortgage loans, incuding morgage koars made by
savings and boan instituons, morigage bankers, commerdal banks and
athers. These seouriies pronide & monthly payment which consists of both
inberest and principal . inferest may be de temined by foeed or adustable rates
The rase of prepayments on underhing mortgages will affect e price and
volatlity of 3 mortgage-relted seourity, and may have the effect of
shortening of extendng the effecive duralion of the security relathe towhat
was anficipated at the tme of purchase. The timely payment of principal and
interest of certan morgage-related seainities is guaranteed with the fidl faith
and aedtof the U S, Govenment. Fools oreated and quaranteed by non-
gowemmental issiers, induding governmend-sponsored corporations; may b=
supporied by various fomms of insurance of guarantess, but there can be no
assurance hat private inmrens of AQUARIENDOFS Can meel thee ol Ganons uncer
the inurance pobded of Quaranites Aran gerents. Many of the pks of
Irvesgng in mortgage-related seunites seqred by commerdal monigage
[emans reflect the effeces of [ocal and other econimic conditions on real estate
markets, e abelity of tenanis bo make kase payments, and the sbikty of 3
propesty [0 aftract and retsin tenants. These securies may be ks liquid and
rnay exhibit greater price volatility than other pes of morgage-related or
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afer atsel-backed securites. Other dsset-badoed securnties ane reated from
maiy fypes of assets, induding, but not limited o, auto loans, acoounts
recetvable, sech as aredit cand receiables and hospital acoount receivables,
e dcuaty foans, studenl loans, boat Boans, mobde home loans,
recréational vehide boans, manufactured housing koare, angafl leases,
computer beases and syndicated bank koans, The Fund may invest in amy level
of the capital siruciure of an issuer of morigage-badked or asset-baced
securities, induding the equity or "first [ovs” ranche

|} Collataralized Marigage Obligations ("CAMOS") are debt abligabions of 4
legal entity that are ool aterali zed by whole mortgage loans of prvate
rcgage bonds and dhvided into dasses. CWA0S are stiuchured into mudnpie
dasses, often reberred 10 as "ranches”, with each dass bearding a different
stated matunty and entided to & differént wchedule for pamnents of prindpal
and interest, induding prepayments. CMOs may be less baund and may exhibit
grisater price volanlity than other types of mongagefelated of assel-badosd
securifes

1A Stripped Martgage-Becked Securities ("5MEST) are defrvative midn-dass
Frecigade secanties SMBS are usualy structured with two dasses that neceive
different peropartions of the interest and peincipal distributions on 3 pool of
rciigage a5se1. An SMBS will have one dass tiatwill recenve all of the
inenesl (the mnterest-cnby of ~107 dass), while the other dass will recene e
entie prindipdl (the prindpal-only or “PO" dass) Fayments received for K5
are inclucked in interest income on the Statements of Cperations. Because no
el il bet piecenved 1 thit misturity of an 10, sdustments e made to
the cost of the security on.a monthly basis untl matunty These adustments
are included in inferest income on the Statements of Cperations Faymnents
ricendid for POs ané reated as reductions 1o the cost and par value of the
securifies

(g} Callateralized Debe Obligations ("C00s ™) inchude Coll steralizned Bond
Obiigations ("CB0s"), Collateralized Loan Obfigations ("CL0s™) and other
simelarly suchured secmities. CBOS and CLOS e types of aser-baded
secunites. & CBO i & natwheth o badced by 4 dersifiad pool of high rigk,
below investment grade fooed income sequnties. A CLO s a tust fgecally
coflateralized by 3 pood of loaes, which may indlsde, among others, domestic
and foreign senior sedured loans, senior urseoured laans, and subordinane
corperate loans, induding boans that may be rated below imvestment grade of
equivalent unrated loans. The risks of an investment in 3 C0O degend largely
of e type of the Collaberal deurites and the dass of the COO inwhich

a Fiend irvests. In addition 1o the nommal risks assaciatid with food ncorme
sequnities danussed elsewhere in tis report and the Funds' Offering
Mhsmranaum (e g, prepaymentnsk, dedirsk, Bouiditg mik, manket sk,
serwctural sk, Wegal ek and intenest rate risk fuiech may be sacetbated if
the inferest rate payabde on a stuciured finandng changes based on

it piles. of d‘ﬁngﬂ 17 ANRENeST FA0ES Of mrvedsely 10 changes in intenest
rated]), CBOs, CLO%, and ot COOs carry addticnal fsks nduwdng, but paol
Iimitesd 1o, (1) the possibaity that destributions from collateral seaibes will not
be adequate 1 make nierest o other payments, &) the quality of the
coilateral mdy discling in vaue of detauly, (i) the risk that & Fund mury imes
I CEDs, Clld, or ather CD0s that ar subordinate o other dasses, and (v
the complex structure of the sesrity may not be hully understood at the time
of inviestmient and ey produce depubes with the isdser of unexgpected
Irmeestment results

{H Paymant Inind Securities Cerlan Funds may invest in payment an-king
secunites (TFKLT). PIKS mdy giee The issuer the oplion ateach inbenes
payment date of making interest payments in either cash and‘or additional
debl seounties. Those addinonal debt seoanties usually hase the Same e,
nduding maturity dates and intenest rates, and assodated nsks a5 the
oniginal bonds. The daity market quotations of the ofigingl bonds may indude
the socrued interest irefered 1 35 & “dany peice ™) and Tedire 4 pro (ks

adustment from the unrealized ppredation of deprsGation on imvestments
tovinferest receivable on the Statements of Asse1s and Liabilities

Aestricted Securities Certain Funds may hold imeestments that ane subyesct
10 legal or contractual restrictions on resale Thede securities may be soid
pivedbely, bul muy be requared o be regestened of exemphed Tom such
redpstration befone being sold o the public Private placermient secunties an
genérally contidered 10 be resricted. Dispireal of resticled investments may
Irrveeve: Timse-Consurring negoiabons and expenses, and prompl sale at an
AccepRible price gy be dificult to sdveve. Restricted imestments held by
the Funds at October 31, 2022, a5 applicable, are dsdosed in the Notes 1o
Schedule of Invesiments

) Swrucrured Notes Cenain Funds may inwest in stnuciured notes and other
refated instruments, which ane privately negotiated debit oblagatians in which
Nk principad andf or intenest is detemnined by reference w the performance of
a benchimark: asser, marked of intefest rate {an "embedded index ™), wch &
selected securitees, an index of securities or specied interest rates, of the
differential performance of two assets or markets, such 5 indexes reflecting
bonds . Structuned instrurnents may be isued by corporations, induding
banks, aswell a5 by governmental agendes. The tenme. of such stnuctured
imstruments nomually prowide that their principal andfor interest payments are
1o b adfjusted upavards of dowemaeards (ot ordinarily not below zero) to
reflect changes in the embedded index white the stuctured instruments ane
oulstanding As 2 resull, the interest andior principal payments that may be
mage on 3 sruciured product may vary widely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the wolatility of the embedded index and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on prindpal andior interest payments

] LS. Gowernment Agencies or Government-Sporsared Enterprises

Certain Funds may irvest in securiBes of U%. Govemment agendes or
govemment-sponsored enberprizes. LS Govemment securifies are
ablgataons of and, i certain cases, quarantesd by, the LS. Government, its
agendes or instumentalities. Some U S Government secanties, widh a2
Treamury bulls, notes and bonds, and seqrifes quaranteed by the Govemnment
Hational Maorigage Awodation (GHMAT or "Ginnie Mae™), ane sppcted
Lry the full faith and credit of the U5, Govemment; others, sudh as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
beoemows from the LS. Depantment of the Treasury {the “ULS, Treasury™): and
aothers, such as thase of the Federal National Mortgage Assodation (7 FRMA™
of ~Fannie Mae™), are spported by the disoetionany authonity of the 15
Government 1o purchase fhe agency’s obligations. U 5. Govemment securities
iy indude Zero Goupon Secunnes, whidn do not drstn babe interest oo a
curment basis and tend B be subject to 3 greater risk than interest-paying
sequnities of similar manmities

Gowernment-related guarantors. (e, not backed by the full Esith and cedt of
the %, Govenment) induds FNAA, and the Federal Home Loan Morigage

[ FHon (TFHLMCT or “Fredde Mac™). FHMA & a govemment-sponsored
corporation. FNMA pundhases comentional (e, not insured or quarantesd by
any govemment agency} residential mortgages from a list of approved
sellerssenicer which indude state and federally chartered savings and loan
aseodations, matual s figs banks, ooremendd banks and Tedt unions and
maitgage bankers. Pass-through securities rssued by FNMA are guaranteed as
fi Gimaely payment of peindipal and interest by FHMA, but are not backed by
The full faith and credin of the U5, Government, FHLMC issuses Partidpation
Certificates (" PCs™), which are pass-through secuitses, each representing an
undivided interest in a pool of residential mortgages. FHLMC quarantees the
timely payment of interest and utemate coltection of principal, bt PCS ane nog
Backad bry the full taith and credt of the LS. Govemment

i June 20019, FHMA and FHLIMC started issuing Unisorm Mortgage-Badved
Seurives (T UMES™) i place of ther current offerings of TBA-chigble
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securiies (e "Singe Searity nitatwe) The Sanghe Securily initiatve sesks
Lo sspport the overall liquicityof the TBA market and aligns the
characterscs of FNAAA and FRLMC ceriificates. The effects that the Single
Securty initiatve may have on the madoet fof TEA 3nd ofher martgage-
backed securities are wncerlain

Rcill-rnineg Straneges can b uted whie 4 Furnd Seeks 1o extend te
expEralion o maturity of 3 position, such as 3 TBA searity on an underhying
asset, by doding ous the podition befiore expiration and opening a new
position with respect 1o substanfially the same underying asset with a later
expiration date. TBA securities purnchased or sobd ane reflected on the
Staternents of Assets and Liabidities a5 an asset or Bability, respectively

(' Whendssued Transactiens Certain Funds may purdhase of sell securifies
on g when-ssued basis. These ransadions ae made condionaly because a
secunity, dthough suthonzed, his nol et been Based in Se rare
Transactions 1o purchase or sl sequrities on 3 when-ssued basis invole

a commitment by & Fund to gunchase or sell these seaurities for a
predetemined pros of yield, with payent and deliveny taking place beped
the customary setfement penod. A Fund may sell when-issued sequnties
before they are deliverad, wiich may resul in a realized gain or loss

{m) Bank Obligetions Elank obfigations in whidh 2 Fund may invest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fixed time deposits
Certificates of dapogit are negotiable certificates isaued against funds
deposited in 3 commencid bank for a definite period of Bme and eaming a
spedfied resurn. Bankers' acceptances are negotisble drafts or biks of
exchange, normally drawn by an irporter or exporter 1o pay for spedfic
merchandise, which are " accepied” by a bank, meaning in effect, that the
bank, uncondifionally agrees to pay e face valug of the insrument on
rafanty Fooed ime deposits are bank obigations payabse at 4 stated
mabrity date and beaning interest at a fixed rate Fixed Gme deposits may be
withdrawn cn demand by the investor, but may be subject to eardy
wathdrawal penalthes which vary depending upon market condticns and the
remairing maturty of e cbkaation

6. BORROWIHGS ARD OTHER FIRARCIHG TRARSACTIONS

The following disdosures contain information oo the Funds” abllity to lend or
Ercamow cash of Securities 1o the extent permitted wnder the Offering

Mesmar gk, wihich mdy De viewed a5 Dormowmg of fﬂ'l-flll‘-ﬂg IF3sacn O
Iy the Funds: The locstion of these insiruments is desorbed below. For &
detailed desaiption of oredt and counterparty risks that can be assodated
with bommowangs and gaher finandng ransactions, pledse see Note 7,
Prinicipal and Caber Risks

{4} Repurchase Agreements Cerzin Funds may engage in repurchass
agreements. Under the terms of 3 typical repunchace agreement,

a Fund purdhases an undertying debt obligation {collateral) subject o an
obligation of the sefier to repurchase, and 3 Fund to resel, the obiigation at
an agreed-upon price and ime. In an open matrity repurchase agreement,
there is no pre-detemuned repurchase date and the agreement can be
besmmina ted by the Fund or counterparty al any time. The market valse of the
coflaneral mirst b egquaal bo of exceed the 108l mount of the repurdhase
gbligations, ndodng inderest . Repurchase agreements, induding aconued
infeqest, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities Inferest
eamed is recorded 35 4 component of interest income on Se Satements of
Operations, In period of inoeased demand for coflateral, a Fund may pay 3
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense 1o the Fund

(b] Rewerse Repurchese Agreements Certan Funds may enter info reverse
repurchase agreements. In a reverse replrchase agreement, 3 Fund delvers 3
secunty in éxchange for cath 1o a finandalinstituBon, the counterparty, with
& simataneoys agreement o repurchase the same of substantially the same

sequrily a1 an agiesd upon price and date. in a0 open MAlunEY feverse
repurchaze ageement, there i4 no pre-determined reparchase date and the
agreement can be terminated by e Fund cr counterparty at any ime

A Fund is entifhed 1o recens: prind pal and interest payments, if any, made o
e sedurity defivered to the counterparty during the termooff the agreement
Cash received i exchange for seapities deliversd plus acowed interes
payments to be made by a Fund to counterparties are reflected a5 a liability
on the Satements of Assets and Liabdities. Inlerest payments made by a Fund
1o counterparties are recorded a3 & component of inférest expense on the
Statements of Operations. In periods of ingeased demand fior the sequrity,

3 Fund may receive a fee for use of the security Ty te countesparty, whidh
may result in interestincome 1o a Fund, A Fend will seqregate asets
determined to be Bouid by FIMCO or will otherwise cover its obligations
uander reverss repurchase agreements

e} SalwBuybacks Certain Funds iy enter inta finandndg ramaction
referrid 1o 34 salebuybadky’ A saledivbacdk financing ransaction conssts
of 3 sale of 3 security by a Fund 1o a finandal instituson, the counterparty,
with & smultanecus agreement b repurchase the same o substantially the
same security al an sgreed-upon price and date A Fund is not entitled to
receiee prindpal and nterest payments, it any, made on the seqrnty sold to
the counterparty during the term of the agreement, The agreed-apon
proceeds fof secanties 1o be repur chased by a Fund ane reflected a4 a liatalty
on the Satements of Assets and Lisbdities. A Fund will recognize net income
represented by the price differential bebween the price received for the
transfemed sequity and the agreed-upon repurchase price. This is commonly
rederred to 35 the “price drop”. A price drop consists of i) the foregone interest
and inflationary income adustments, it amy, a Fundwould have othenssse
recerved had the security not been sold amd (1) the negatiated Bnanding tems
bebween @ Fund and counterpaty, Foreqone enberést and infatonany income
adwsbments, if amy, are reaorded as components of interest income on e
Statements of Operations. Interest pavments based upon negotizted finanding
terms mace by 4 Fund 1© counberpanies ane recorded &5 & componsnt of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In periods of indeased
demand for the security, a Fund may receive a fe2 for use of the seoarity by
the counterpeety, whoch may resul [ in inberest income b0 3 Fund, A Fund will
segregile aser determuined 10 be Bquid by PIMCO of will othenwate Over i
obligations under sale-buybadk ransactions

] Short Selea Certain Funds may enter into shoet sales transacions. Short
sales are transachons in which the Fund selfs 3 security that it may not owm

A Fund may make ot sales of secunties to ) offsst patential dedlines i
long positions in sirndar securifies, (i) 1o ingeade the fleibility of the Fund,
(i) for investment return, () as part of a nisk arbitrage srategy, and {v) a5
part of its overall portfolio management sirategies imvohing the wse of
derivalive instnsments. When a Fund engages in a short sae, itmay bomow
the security sold short and deliver it to the counterparty. The Fend will
ordinatily e 1o pay & fee of premiumm bo bommow 3 security and be obligated
10 repaay the lender of the SEUney Ay dhvidend or inferest that aooyes on the
sequrity during the pericd of the loan Sequnities sold in short sale ramactions
and the dividend or interest payable on sudh seawities, if amy, are refected a5
payable for shoet sales on the Statements of Assets and Uiabilities. Short sales
expose the Fund to the ride that it will be reguired 8o cover its short position
a2t a tame when the secunity or other asset has appredated in value, thus
resulsng i onses to the Fund. A short sabe 15 "aganst the box” if

et Fumd ol s i ans o ol of heas the AGhL 00 S0quire e seunty told
short, or securites idenBod to the seority sold short, a1 no additional cost

A Fundwil be subject b additional risks to the extent that it engages in short
Salies that are ndgd " Boainst the booc” A Funds o6 on & short Sale coubd
theonetically be unlimited in cases where the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, o dose out its short posison
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{8 Lima of Creclit PIMCO Barmuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered into & 364
day senior unsecured revohing medit agreementwith the Bank of Tokyo-
Wtsubishi UFJ, Lod {"MUFGT) and o comremend s banks 1o be uldized for
Lesripaikany punpodes 1o fund Unitholdes sedemplicns of bor other shai-term
Iequidity purporses, MUFG serves 25 both a bank and a5 an agent for other
banks that are partes (o the agreement. FIMCO Beemuda Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays finanang dhanges based on a combinancn of S0FR-bated variable
pluss & credit spread The Fund also pays a fee of O 30% per annum on the
unuted commitment amounts, The agreement was renewed on August 19,
2022 and expares on August 18, 2023 wnless extendsd or renewed, Thereis a
masimum avaiabie commitment amount for PIMCD Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equal to §15, 500,000, Prior to August 19, 2022, the madmum
Avislabie commitrent ameund fof the Fand was 545,000,000 and ge Rund
paid a fee of 0 275% per annum on the unused commitment amounts
Commitment, upfront and interest fees of $137 379 paid by PIMCO Bermuda
Eank Loan Fund (M) are indidied in interest expense in the Statements of
Operations

During the period, there were no bomowings on this line of cedit

6. ANAHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMERTS

The following dudcsures contan infarmation on e and why the Funds use
finandial derivative instrurments and how fnancal derivative irdrumsnts
atfect the Funds’ finandal posstion, results of operations. and cash fows. The
location and Tar valee arcunts of these instniments on the Statermnents of
Assels and Lisbikties and the net realized gain (oss) and et change in
unredized appredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations, eadh
categonized by type of finandal demeatnee contract and relabed risk éxposiure,
are included in 3 1able in the Motes o Schedule of investiments. The Snandal
derivative mstruments cutstanding as of perind end and the amounts of net
reglized gain (loss) and net change in wrrealized appredation (depredation)
on fimana 3l dermvative indtruments during the period, as didcsed in the
Mates to Schedule of Investiments, serve a5 indicators of the volume of
finandial derivative activity for the Fumds

{a} Farvward Foreign Currency Contracts Certan Funds may engage i
Terwednd f"‘_'ll'{'-g"l CUSTERCY CONFCS in connection with setting planned
puerchases of sales of seaxities, b hedge the cumency ixpoiure 35000 aled
with some or all of a Fund's sequrities or & part of an investment sirategy A
fomwedid I'-.’.N’t‘-[!l CLETCY CONTACT IS AN Agreemeen | betaden B0 par e 10 by
and el 3 currency at a s price on 3 futune date The made value of 2
Tonwand foresgn currency coniract fuctuates with changes in forsign arrendy
exchange fated. Forwand frshis N QUTERGY CORIFACRS ane Mddked 1o market
daily, and the charge in value 55 recorded by & Fund a4 an uninedioed gain of
loss. Redized gains or losses afe equal to the ditference betwesn the value of
the contract at the Sme it was opened and the value at the time it was dosed
and are reconded upon delivery of recspt of the Qemency. Thete conlracs
mary irvabeé market risk in excess of the unrealized gan o logs reflected on
the $atements of Assets and Uabilities. In addition, a Fund could be expased
ter risk: if the counterparties are unable to meet te terms of te confracts or if
the value of the currency changes uniaworably to the functional armency. To
mitigate such risk, cash of seamities may be exchanged a5 collaterdl pursuant
to the terme of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Class, may Aso enter into forward foreign
cumency contracts designed to offset the effect of hedging a1 the Fund level in
ondier 1o heave the hedged Class with an spsurne 10 aurendes ather than te
functional carrendy. There can be no guarantee that thete Class speafic
forward foreign currency contracts will be suctesshul

b} Futisres Cantracts. Certain Fundé may enter into fuhures contracts. A
fghanes CoNTAct is an agreement 1o buy of sell & Security of offver assel for 8
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sef price on & luture daee andis raded on an exchange A Fund may use
futures contracts 10 manage its exposure to the secuities markets of 1o
micwements in interest rates and asmency values The primary fisks assodated
with Bhe wuse of futires contracts are the imperfect comelation between the
change in market value of the seqwities beld by a Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the possibility of an iliquid market Fulures contracks
are valued based upon ther quoted daily sextlement prices. Upon entering
inbor & fubares contract, a Fund is required b depasit with its fubanes becoker an
amount of cash, U% Govemnment and Agency Obligations, o select sovereign
debt, in gooondance with the inifis margin requirements of the brokeror
exchange. Fubures oonBas ae marked 1o market daily and bated on such
mawements in the price of the contracts, an appropei te payable or receivable
fior the change in value may bs posted or codected by the Fund (" Futures
Wariation Margin™). Fubures Variagion Margins, if any, are dsdosed within
centrally deared financial derivative instruments on the Statements of Assets
and Liabdities. Gains o bosses are recognized but not considered redized until
the CONTracts expare of dose. FUlUres 0on acts irvolve, Tovaning degress,
risk of loss in excess of the Fulures Vanaton Margn induded within

enchange traded o centrally deared fnandal derivative instnements on the
Statements of Assers and Liabilities

i) Optinne Contracts Cerfain Funds may weite or purchase options o
enhance retums of to hedge an exsing position of future investment Certain
Fumds may wiite call and put opticns on securities and fnandal derieative
imstrurmenits thesy owm or in which fhey may invest Witing put options tends
t indrease a Fund's exposure o the underfying instument. Writing call
options lends to decreate 3 Fund's apasure 10 the wnderhing instrument
‘When a Fund writes 3 call or put, an amoumt equal to the premeum received is
reconded and subsequenty marked to market to reflect the qument value of
the option written. These amounts are Indieded on the Statements of Assets
and Lighdities. Premiums received from wiiting opions which expire are
treated a5 realized gains. Premitms receihed from writing oplions which are
exerirsed or dosed are pdded to the procesds or offsel against amounts pad
on the underhying futuges, swvap, securily of aamency Farsaction 1o determine
ihe reatized gain or foss. Certain options may be writien with premiums o be
determined on & future date. The premiuems 1oF these options are based upon
irnplued volankily parameters s apecified tefmis A Fund a5 & wiiter of an
opticn has i control over whether the underhying instnament may be sold
("cal "p o purdhased (gt ") and a5 3 result bears the market risk of an
untavorable dnange in the prce of the instrument undermng the willen
option. There is the risk 3 Fund may not be able to enter into 2 dosing
transaction because of an iliquid market

Certain Furds may dso purchaze put and il opticns. Purchasing call oplions
fends to increase a Fund's exposre 1o the underhying nstrument. Purchasing
put optons tends 1o dedease a Fund's exposure to the underhing instrument
A Fund pays & prerium which i nduded a5 an a5sed an the Soeterments of
Aczets and Liabdities and subsequently marked to market to reflect the
curment value of te option. Premiuns paid for purdasing options whidh
Expire are reyted a5 realiped logses Cerkan oplions may be purchatedwith
premime b be determined on a future date. The premiums bor these options
are based upon implied volatility parameters at spedifed erms. The risk
Atsoaaied with purchasendg put dnd call options i5 limited 10 Bie prémium
paid, Fremiurms paid for pundhasing options which are exerased of dosed ane
aoded 1w the amounts paid or offser aganst the procesds on the underying
IPrvestmeent transaction to detemmine thi realized gain o loss when the
underhying ransaction b exetubed

Credit Default Swaptions Certan Fumds may wiite of purchase aedit default
swaplions to hedge eposure to the qedit nisk of an investment without
rmaking a comemitment to the undedying insmument. A aedt default swaption
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s an opfon 1o sl or buy credt protecion 10 & pedahic reténence by entering
intp a pre-defined swap agreement by some spedified date in the fhare

Foreign Currency Optiens Certan Funds may wiite of puschase foresgn
CETency options 1o be uded a5 & short of long hedge agand possible
warlations in foreion exchange rates of o gan exposre 1o foreign aurrences

Inflatien-Capped Options Certain Funds may wiite o purchase inflation-
capped oplons o ennance retrns of for kedging opportundties. The purpose
af purchasing inflaton-capped options is 10 protect 3 Fund from inflation
erosicn sove & Certain rate on a given notional expesure, 4 floor can be
wsed o giﬁ downside protecson 1o investments in inflaton-Srked products

Imterest Rate Swaptions Cemtan Funds may wnte of puncha e inbérest rate
swaptions which are oplions 1o énter into a pre-defined swap agreement or
1o shorten, extend, cancel or oshenwise modty an existing swap ageement,
Ery sowme speified date in the fubure, The wiiter of the svaption becomes the
counderparty 10 he saap if the buyer soendses. The interest rale Svaption
agreement will spedfywhether the buyer of the awaption will be 3 fed-rate
recefver of 3 fited-rate payer upon exencse

Dptiens on Exchange-Traded Futunes Cantracts Certain Funds may wiite of
perchase oplions of exchange-raded Rutures Contracs  Fulunes Option ™) i
hiedge an Existing podtion o future invesiment, Tor Spscul 3ive fumpotes of 1o
manage exposure o market movements. A Futires Oplion is an option
COnArECE in iwhich the underking instnument is 4 single futunes coniran

Optians on Securities Certan Funds may wiite or purdiase opdions on
Seunies ko enhanoe relurms of boedge an -:A.Iﬂl'il‘-g pisition of fuure
fmestment. An opEon on 3 sequnty uses a spedied sequrity s the underdying
Instrument for the opSon congract

| Swrap Agresssents Certan Funds may imvest in avap agreements, Swap
agreements are bilaterally negotiated agreements between a fund and a
counderparty 1o exchange of sy ap imvesiment cash flows, atsets, foregn
QuTendies of market-Enked retums at spedfied, future intenvals. Swap
agreemen s may be privately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deared
through a dend-party, bndwn a5 a cenfral counterparty of dervatives dearing
onganization {"centrally deared swaps™) A Fund may enter into assed, oredit
default, cross-orrendy, interest rate, total refum, vanance and other foms of
FA0 BQrEEmEnts b Manage 15 exposure to qedl, asrendy, interest fate,
cormmidity, equity and infation risk. In connection with these agreements,
sequnities of cash may be identified as coflateral or margin in accordance with
the: temns of the respective swap agesments 1o provids 25525 of value and
recoarse in the event of default o brankrupioyinaohvency

Cenrally deared swiaps are matked to market day based upon valuations a5
detemmined fom the underhying confrad or in aocordance with the
reqguirements of the central counterparty or derivatives dearning organi zation
Changes in market vale, if any, are reflected a5 8 component of net change
in wnrealized spprecation {depredation) on the Statements of Cperations
Draily changes in valuation of cenirally deared swaps ("Swap Variaion
Margin ), if any, are disdosed within cenirally deared finandial denvative
instrumenss on the Statements of Assers and Liabilities, OTC svap payments
receied of patd a1 the begnung of the measurement perod are indiaded on
the Statements of Assets and Uabiifes and represent premiums paid or
receed upan entering into fe swap sgreement 1o compensate for
differences between the stited term of the svap sgreement and prevailing
market conditions (medit spreads, cumendy exchange rates, inferest rates. and
offier relevant Tactoes). Lpfront prermiums recehoed (pakd) ane initaly recorded
a5 Babelines (assets) and sulrsedqu ently marced 1o market o reflect ®e qument
wabue of the swap These upfront premieme ane recorded a8 readiped gaindg of
bosses on the Statements of Operations wpon termination or matriry of the
Sap A ligedstion payment recereed of made af the eminaton of the swap

is recorded % realiped gain of 1045 on the Statements of Operatons. Net
periodc payments received or paid by a Fund are indeded a5 part of realized
gains of losses on the Statements of Operations

For pusposss of applying certain of 4 Fund's invesiment polides and
restictions, swap agresments, like other derivative instruments, may be
vaued by @ Fund at market valug, notions vadue of Bl exposure walue In the
cate of a credit defsult swvap, in applyng certain of the Fund’s ifvestment
pofidies and restrictions, the Fund will value the qedt default swap atits
notional valwe or its full exposure valve { &, the sum of the notional amount
for the contract phus the market value), but may valise the credit delault avap
at magket value for purposes of applying certain of the Fund's other
irvestment poficies and restrictions. For examgple, the Fund may value credit
chiebaul sweaps at Tull exposure waluwe fior purposes of the Fund's credit quality
guidelines (if any) becawse sudch value in general batter reflacts the Fund's
acheal economic exposure dunng the term of the gedit default swap
agreement A3 3 resull, 3 Fund may, at imes, higve nolional exposure i an
asget dass (before neting) that i greater of lesser than the stated limit or
restricion noted in the Fund's Offering Memorandum In tis context, both
the notiona amount znd the maet value may b= positive of negative
depending on whether the Fand is seiling o birdng protection through the
aredit default swap. The manrer inwhich certain secunities of other
imstruments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphing imvestment
pcdiches and restrictions may differ fom the manner i whidh those
irvesstments ane valued by ather bypes of imeestors. Entering into swap
agreements involves, 1o varng degress, elements of interest, aredit, markel
and documentation risk i excess of the amounts recogri zed on the
Stavements of Ascers and Liatalites. Such reks ot e possiility that
there will b2 no Biguid mariet for these agresments, that the counterpanty o
The agreements may default on fts obligation 1o perform o dhsagree a5 o the
mearsng of oomraciudl s in the sgrecments and tat tere may be
unfavorable changes in interet ra s of the values of the astel upon which
the svap is based

A Fund's masimism risk of boss from countemparty aedit nisk is the dscounted
net viatue of the cash flows to be received from the counterparty over the
CONRraCt's remaEning be, 10 the extent that amount |5 positve The risk may
b ritigated by hanang & fastes nelbng arrangement betanen a Fund and
the counterparty and by the pesting of collateral to 3 Fund to cover a Fund's
Exposae [0 the CoUnTemarTy

T the extent 3 fund has a pticy to limit fe net amount owed 1o or 0 be
redeived trom a dngle counterparty under exisling s~vap agreements, such
limitaticn onby applies to counterparnties to OTC awaps and does not appdy 1o
centrally deared swaps where the counterperty is a ceniral counierparty or
derea tives, deaning organization

Credit Default Swap Agresmants Certain Funds may enter info et defauln
Swaps on corparate, loan, soveresgn, U5 munidpal of U5 Treasny istues to
pronide & measire of protection gainst detsulls of the issuers (e . to reduce
fsk whete & Fund dwns of hias expodure 0 the referenced obligaton) o 1o
ke an active lang of short position with resped to the hkebhood of
pariosar issuers default Credin default swap aqreements imeobve one pary
rivaking & stream of payments {refemed o a5 the buyer of protection) i
anaither party (the tweller of protecion) in exchange for te right to recee 3
specified return In the event that the referenced entity, obligation o index, a5
specified in the awap agresment, undergoes 3 Grtan Tedt enl As 2 seller
of profection on credit dedault awap agreements, a Fund will Generally fecene
from the buyer of protection a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the
Senap prowded Ehat there iS o crediDevent. A% The seller, 3 Fund wiould
effectvely adid beverage to it portfollo becauss, in addition to s tatal net
assels, the Fundwould be subject toimestiment exposure on the nodonal
amaunt of the swap
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It a Fund i 3 seller of protecton and 3 credt event ooours, 25 defined under
the temns of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either () pay ta the
Buryer of protection an amount equal ko the notional amount of the wap and
take delivery of the referenced oblgation, ather deliverable obligaticns of
underlying seqrities comprising the referenced index or (i) pay a net
settiement amount in the form of cash or secyrides equal to the noSonal
amount of the swap bess the recovery vatue of the referenced clligation o
uniderking seqrities comprising the referenced ndax. If 2 Fund is a buyer of
prodection and a cedit event goours, a5 defined under the termns of that
particular swap agresment, 3 Fund will either §) receive from the seller of
prodection an smount egual to e nosond amoent of fe swap and deliver
the referenced obligation, other deliverable obligations or underlying
secunities comprizing the referenced index or i) receive 3 net settlement
amunt in the form of cash o sequrities squal to the notional smount of te
swap bess the recovery vaue of the referenced oibligation or underlying
senurities compising the referenced index. Reooweny values are estimated by
atkel makers Qofrsidenng wither Industey standiard recoweny rates of entity
spedic facton and considerasons untl 4 credit svent ocours. If 3 oedit event
has comumed, the recovery value is determined by 2 fadlitated auction
wheretsy a minimum number of alowatie broker bids, together with &
spedfied valuaton meshod, ane used 1o Cloulite the sendement vilpe. The
ability to deliver other obligatons may result in a cheapest-to-deliver opticn
(e buyer of protecion’s right to dhoose the deliverable dbligation with the
Iowvest walue following a credt event)

Credt defaudt swap agresments on aedit indices imobve one party making 4
stream of paments o snother party in exchange for the right to receive 2
spedfied resurn in the event of a write-down, prindpal shoerfall, intepest
shortiall or default of all or part of the referenced entities comprising the
areditindex. & credit invdex s 3 basket of cedi insiruments of exposines
diesigned bo b repeesentaive of somme pan aof the aredit market a5 a whole
Thiede indices are made up of reference gedits thal ane judiged by 4 poll of
dealers 1 be the mostliquid enities in the credin default swap market based
o thie dector of the index Conponents of the indces may indlude, but are
ol rnited 1o, investment grade securites, high yweld seomites, aser-badoed
SEOunNES trm-nging market, andior vanous gedit raings within each sector
Credindeces ane rided using dedt cefaule seaps with andardized ter
nduding 4 foed spread and standand maturity dates. An indeomedit defaul
swrap references 3l the names in the inde, and if there i 3 defaull, the dedit
event is setled based on that name’s weight in the index The compositon of
this indices cdhanges peniodicaly, uiualy every s months, and for most
indites, each name has an aqudl weight in the index A Rend may use aedit
dedault swvaps on medit indices o hedoe a portolio of arechl default swaps of
B, wiich 15 e exprendve than it would be i buy manmy aedt dedault
swnape 1o adhiewe 3 simlar effect Crecht default swaps on ndices ane
instruments for protecting imeestors ownéng bonds against default, and
Irachisrs, s Shiern 0o speculate on changes in aedst quality

Implied credit spreads, represented in absolute terms, utlized in determining
thie ket wiloe of redit delasll Swap Agresments on Coeporate, loan,
soereigr, LS. municpal o LS. Treadury issues a8 of period end, if any, are
disdosed in the Motes to Schedule of Fvestments. They serve a5 an indicator
of the current status of paymentperformance isk and regresent the Rkelhood
or rigk of delsult for the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of 3
pariodar rederenioed entity reflacts the cost of buying/elling protection and
may indude upfont payments required to be made 1o enter nto the
agreerment. Wider dredit spreads repredent a detenonation of the refenenced
entity’s qedil soundness and a greater Bhelihood or risk of default o ather
credit event occuming as defined under the terms of the agreement. For aedit
default avap agreements on asset-backed sequrities and credit indices, the
quoted market proes and resalting values senve as the indicator of the qament
status of the paymentiperformance rigk. Ingeasing market values, in absolute

Terims when cofmpared i the noticnal amouni of the Swap, represent
detericration of the referenced entity's oredit soundness and a greater
likedihood of risk of default or other aredit event ooouming as defined under
e berrines of the agrésment

The madmum potential amount of fulure payments fundisoounted) that

A Fund &5 & Seller of probection could be recuared 10 make under a credit
debault swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Hotional amounts of eadh indvideal cedit default swap agreement
outstandng as of period end forwhich a Fund is the seller of grotection are
disdosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of investments. These potenbd amounts
would be parfally offset by amy recovery valuas of e respactive referenced
obfigations, upfront payments recesved upon enitering into the agresment, or
et amoun B recesned from the setthement of buy protection credit default
swap agreements enfered into by & Fund for the same referen ced entity o
enfities

Interest Rate Swap Agrasments Certan Funds are sulbject ba interest rate
frk expriuire in the nonmial course leLll.lri-Ll-!lg their Bvestment obyecives
The value of the foed rate bonds that & Fund holds may decresie if intemest
rates rise: To help hedge against this risk and to mantain its ability bo
Qe e INCOTE A1 presvasiing kel ranes, a Find may enber ino inlerest
rale SyAD AgFeements INTEnet rane Swad agreements invabve the exdhange
try & Fundwith another party for their retpective cesnmitment 1o pay or
recefve interest on the nofional amount of prindpal. Certain foms of interest
Fale Syap agreements mdy indude: () inbenesl rate cape, under which, i
return for 3 premaum, cne party agreed io make payments to the other to he
extent that interest rates encesd a specified rate, or “cap”, (i) interest rate
ficors, under which, in refurn for a premium, one party agrees bo make
payrnents ba the other b the extent that inferest rates tall below a spedtied
rate, or “floor ™, (Ei) interest rate collars, under which a party sells 4 cap and
purchazes a floor or vice versa in an attempd o protect itsalf against interest
fale memeemen s exoseding given mnimim of madmam lewvels, (v) callable
inberest rate swaps, under whidh the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consideration fior the right to ey terminate the svap tansacion in whole,
at zero cost and 3t a predetermined date and Gme priod to the maturity date,
(v} spreadodes, which allow the inferest rate svap wsers to lodk in the
forward differensial {or spread) between the interest rate swap rate and a
speecified benchmark, or () basis swiaps, under which o parties can
exchange varatie interest rates based on fltf".':f'fﬂHE';fﬁEI'll‘.- of mdney
markets

Total Retwra Sewap Agreaments Certain Funds may enter into ot retwm
SWap aQresments b gan of mikgate exposre o the underbying reference
Tatal retum swap agreements imvolve comemitments where single or mulSiple
cash fows are exchanged based on the price of an underhing reference asset
and on a fied or variable interedt rate. Total refum swap ageements may
irnvlve comemitmeents o pay interest in exchangs for 3 marketdinked retum
One counterpary pays out the total return of & spedific underhang reference
asset, which may induwde 3 sngle ssourity, a basket of sequriies, or an index,
and in retum recedves a fixed o vanable rate AL the matwrity date, & netcach
flow is exchanged where the tofal retum is equivalent to the retam of the
undeshying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As 3 recedver, 3

Fumd woould recesve payments based on amy posiive tofal refum and would
owe payments in the event of a negative total retum. As the payer, 3

Funed woculd Cve payTTENLS 0N a0 Dositive total retum, and swoould recense
Euyeni s in th mven ol & net negainve total retum

T.PRIRCIPAL AHD OTHER RISKS

la] Prircipal Risks [n the mormal course of butiness, the Funds (or Acquired
Fund{s), if applicable) rade finandal instruments and enter inko finanda

Sraga | Bagary | Dok F1. 2037 e

185/398



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Iransacions where risk of polential loss edsts die 0o udh things a4 changes
im the market fmarket risk) or fallure or @nability of the ather party 1o a
transaction to perform (redit and count erparty risk) See below for 3 detailed
disseription of tsbect pandpal fidks

Fund of Fonds Risk T the exctent shat certain Funds irvest substantially all of
Uhsif mespctivie tets in Acquired Fund(s), the niks sooasted with invesing
in thesi Fund wall be dosely related to the ridks assocated with the sedqurifes
and other irrvestments held by the Acquired Fund(s), The ability of the Funds
ter achiewe their respective investment olbjectives may depend upon e abilig
of the Acquired Rend{s) o achseve theif nespectie invesiment obyecived
There can be no assurance that the imestment objective of any Acquired
Fund{s) will be achieved. The MAV of an Acquining Fund will fluctuate in
respaise b changes i the respecive AV of the Acquired Fund(s) i whidh it
immests,

In the noeenal course of business, Acquired Fund(s) made fina noial instaments
and enfter inta finandal ransacions where risk of potential [o5s exdsts due 1o
changes in the market (market rigk), of failure or Enabdity of the other party to
2 ransaction o perform {credit and counterparty sk}

Market Risks & Fund's irvestiments in Bnanoal dervaive snstuments and
affer franddl indtruments expote the Fund 1o vanous ks such a5, but pet
lirnited 10, imberest rate, foreign fron-LL5) curmency, equity and commadity
Fisks

Ingeresr rate rek is the risk that foosd oo sequnties and other Rsruments
held by @ Fund may dedine in value because of an ingrease in interest rates if
el intenest rates fise, te vale of cenain fized income securises held by
A Fisnd would ksl decrease. A nocminal inlenest fabé can be desrbed as e
sum At real interest rate and &n expecied inflation rate. ntenesl rate
d!aﬂges an be sudden and u-'lpl-:dd.ath}. and a Fund My bose ey if
thee chamges are ol anlicipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able o hedge agaimst changes in interest rates or may chodte not to do o for
costor other reasons in addtion any hedges may not work a5 intended

Cheation is a medsure uied to detemmine the sensthity of 3 secunty’s price 10
changes in Interesh rates tat IOposates 3 960 !'iT:."‘.v yhedd, Coupdn, final
ity and Call Peanares, among ofer daracenstics. Comneaty is an
Acditicnal mesure wied b underitand A sscuritys o Fund's interesl rate
semstivity that measures the rate of dhange of duration in respanse 10
chaniges in interest raes. Fooed income securites wath longer duraticns tend
L b i Senied 1o chandged in interes rates, usually making thim mone
walatile than securies with shorter durations. A wide vanety of factors can
e intetest raties of yields of LS. Treasuny seourities fof yields of ather
bypees of bofedk) b0 rise (g.g, ceniral bank manetary polncies, anflation rates,
generd economic conditions, etc ) This is espedaily true under curent
condtions because inferest rates and bond yields are near histonically low
besridt, Thus, the Funds currengy face & heghbened level of rick assodated
with rising interest rates andior bord viedds. This could be driven by a vanisty
of factors, induding but not limited to central bank monetany polices,
changing inflation or real growth rates, general economic conditicns,
Increasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for bow yieldng
imeestments. Further, while U5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past three decades, dealer “market making™ ability has remained rel atively
stagnant Given the importance of intermediany "market making” in deating
a robust and active market, fimed income securites are qurently

facing increased volaiity and Bquidity ks, AR of these factors, collectively
anchior indvidually, could cause a Fund to lose vaiee, If the Fund lost encugh
waue, the Fund could face increased Unitholder redempions, which could
fusther impair its performance Also, the Fund may be adversely affecied
when 3 lange Uinitholder punchases o redeerms (2002 amoients of units, whidh
N 00O 3L Brry Tme 3nd mady IMpact e Fund n the $ame mannes a5 .3 gh

vilume of redemplion requests. Lange Uritholder ransactions may impact
the Fund's liquidity and net asset value, Such rarsactions may also nmease
the Fund's ramsaction costs o othensise cause the Fund 1o perfom
ditferently than interided. Maonstwér, the Fund & subpsct 1o the fisk tha
other Unitholders may make imvestment dedsions based on the choices of a
large Unitholder

Ta the extent that certan Funds may invest in tecurities and imstuments that
are economicaly Hed to Russia, the Funds are 2ibject to various risks such &,
but ot Fimited to politcal, econcemic, legal, marked and cumency rigks, The
riskes invchude undertain pobitical and economec polices, shorl-berm market
volatility, pooe acmunting standards, cormuption and dime, an inadequate
regulatory system, and unpredictable taxation. Imvestments in Russia are
parBodarky subject to the sk that further economic sanctions may be
impoged by the United States andfor other qountries. Sudch sanctions, which
may impact companies in many sectors, induding energy, finandial sendces
and defense, among others, may negatively impact 2 Fund's performance
andior atility to achieve its investment objective. The Rustian seourifes
market, & compared to U5 markets, has significant price wolatility, less
liquickty, & sraller market capitalization and 3 smaller number of traded
sequniies. Adverse Qurency exidh B108 1aes &re A nisk and e may be 3 lade
of avadiable cumency hedging instruments. investments in Russia may be
subject o the ridk of natonalzation or expeopriaton of assets. Cil, nasural
a5, metds, and tmber account for a signiBcant porion of Russa™s expolts,
leaving the couniry wulnerable b swings in waorld prices

A Fund may have significant exposisre to Issuers in the United Kingdom The
United Kingdom's withdrawa from the Buropean Union rmay impact Fund
returns, This dedsion may cause substantal volatility im foreign exchange
markes, lead o weakness in the exchange rate of the Britsh pound, resul in
& sustained period of maret uncerainty, and destabilize some or 31 of the
other Egropean Union member countries andfor te Eurozone

Foreign fnon-u05 ) securities in Bhis report ane dassified by the country of
incomporation of 2holdng In certain imstances, a security’s country of
ingoporation may be different from it country of economic exposire

it a Fund ireests directly in foresgn (non-1U 5.) qumendes of in securities that
trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U % ) aumrenicies, o in financd
dervative instumsents B3t provide exposure 1o foreign (non-L1S ) armendies,
it will be subject to the mdk that tose currendies will dedine in value relative
1o the base currencyof the Fund, or, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's base ummency will dedine in vale refative o the aurency beng
hedged Curmency rates in forelan counitries may Tucnsate significanitly over
short periods of fime for 3 number of reasons, induding changes in inferest
rates, interventon {or the falure tointervene) by LS. or foreign govemments,
central banks of supeanational entities sudh a5 the intemational Monetany
Fund, of by the imposition of aeTency goniras or ofher polifical developments,
ir the United $tates or abroad. As a result, 3 Fund's investments in foreign
QTN Cy-dencenin ated secunies may reduce the Fund's returns

The markel values of equities, sudh 25 comenon shocks and preferred seqmites
of equaty related investments suds a5 futures and cpSions, have histoncaly
risen dnd falken in periodic oydes and may dedine due 10 generd market
condBons which are not spedfically related to a particular companry, sudh a5
red or percerved adverse eqnomic conditions, changes in the general
outiook: for COMpOrate e aMngs, oh ages i ENCEesE O QUTency rates, public
health emergendes, sudh a the spread of infectios dines or deease, o
adverse investor senfiment generaly. They may also dedine due o factons
which affect a partculer industry of Indusiies, such 3 labor shartages of
inredsed prodecion coss and compettive conditons within an industry
Different typses of equity Sedurities may react dfferendy o these
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delopments. Bquity securites and equity refated investmen ts generally have
greater marke price vol atility than foed income securities

Thie Fumds may invest in oertain instruments that rehy in Sorme fasbon upon
LIBOR. UBOR is a0 average interedt rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Administragion, that banks dharge one another for the use of chort-tem
iy, The United Eingdom™s Rnsancal Conduct Authority, which regulates
LIEOR, has anrounced plans to ultimately phase cul the use of LIBOR. Thene
resmairs unoertainty regarding future wtilization of LIBOR and the nabare of
amy replacement rate {e g, e Secured Overnight Rnanding Rate, which is
intended 1 replace U5 dollar LBOR and measies the cost of overmight
basmowings through repurchase agreement ransacions collaterdized with
U4 Treasury securities). Ary potential efiects of the fransition away from
LIBCR o & Fund of an certan instouments in which a Fund invests can be
ditficult ba ascertain, and they may vary depending on a vaniety of fachors The
transition may A0 result in a reducion in the value of certain imsnuments
held by 3 Fund of a reduction i the efecivenass. of related Fund ransactions
such as hedges. Any such effects of the transgiton away from LIBOR, & well
a5 other unforeseen effects, Could result in losses toa Fund

Begnning in Januany 2020, gobal finandal makets have experiented and
may continue 10 epenience significant volatlity resulting from the spread of a
nowel coronavins known @ COVID-19. The outteeak of COVID-19 has
resulted in avel and border restricions, quarantines, wpgly dain
disuptions, ower consumer demand and general market uncertangy. The
global economy, the economees of certasn natons and individual issuers have
been and may continue to be adversely affected by COVID-19, parioulary in
leghtt of the interconnectivity between sconomies and Snanda markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds' performance. in addifion, COVID-19
and governmental responses 10 COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabilities of the Fends' seevice providers and drorupt the Funds’ eperations

Credit and Countarparty Risks A Furnd will be woposed o areditrisk ta
parties with whom it rades andwill als0 bear the nigk of setement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions
with a lange number of cusicamers and counlerparies on recognized and
regulable exchanges, where applicablie. OTC desivative transacions are
subject to the rigk that a counterparty to the ransaction will not fulfil its
contractual obligathons to the other party, & many of the profections afforded
Lo centraly deared derivative iransactions might not be avsilable for OTC
derivalive fransacticers. For desivatives raded on an exchange or through a
central counterparty, credit risk resides with the gedbvoriness of

the Fund's deanng broker, of the deannghouse 11sel, rather than with a
Counferparty in an OTC dervative ransaciion. Changes in requlation relating
to a Fund's wse of derivatives and related instnuments could potentialby limit
of impad e Funds abelity to invest in denvatives, imit the Fund's abilicy to
employ certain srategies that use derivatives andior adversely affect the valie
or perfomance of derivatives and the Fund. A Fund coubd lose money if the
issiser of quarantor of 3 Sxed income sequnty, of The Counterpearty (o a
finandal desivative nsruments conrac, reporchase agresment of a loan of
portfodio seqaities, s unable or unwilling to make Smely prindipal andior
infefest payments, o to athenaiss honor its obligations. Seoanities and
finandal derivative insruments are sublect 10 vaning degees of aedt sk,
which may be reflected in credit ratings

Shenilar o credit risk, 2 Fund may be exposed b counterparty risk, of the risk
that an institution or other entity with which a Fund has unsettled or opsn
transactions will default. FIMCO, 35 the Manager, minimizes counbeparty
Figk:s i the Funds theough 3 number of ways. Frice i entesing into
Lransachons wath & new oounterparty, the PIMCO Countenparty Risk
Committes conducts an extensive oredt review of such counterparty and mist
apprave the wse of such counterparty. Furthemane, pursuant to te tenms of
thit imderhing coniraa, to the extent that unpasd amounss owed b 3 Fund

eaiied 4 predetermined thieshold, such counterpasty shall advance collateral
1o a Fund in the form of cath or seourities equal in value 10 the unpaid
amaunt cwed to a Fund A Fund mayinvest such coflateral in securites or
atfief imirurments and will hypicaly pay inbenedt 1 the counterparty on the
collateral received. H the unpaid amount owed Eo a Fund subsequently
degredtes, 3 Fund woubd be reguized to refum 1o the counterparnty all or a
porion of the coll steral previcashy advanced PIMCO's atternpts to minimize
counderparty risk may, however, be unsuccesshd

Al ramsactions in listed sequnities are setdedpaid for upon defivery wsing
approved colnterparties. The sk of defaultis consdered mirmmal, as delivery
of securities sobd is only made once a Fund has received payment. Paymentis
made on a purchase once the seaumities hawe been deffvered by the
counterparty. The trade will fad it either party fails 1o meet its obligation

] Dther Risks I general, each Fund mdy b subyect 1o additona ks,
induding but reot imited to, risks related to government reguiation and
intervention in finandal markets, operatonal ks, riss amsodaed with
financial, economsc and global market densptions, and oyberseourity risks
Flease redier bo each Fund's offering doquments for a mone detailed
description of the risks of imvesting in the Fund

Market Disriptions Risk The Funds are sublect to investment and
operational rsks assodatedwith finandal, econcenic and other glotal matket
developements and disruptions, induding those antng from wa, temorism,
market manipulation, gevemment interventions, defaults and shuldowns,
political changes or dplomatic developmen s, public health emergendes
(such 36 the spread of infecious. diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalfemdronmental disasters, which can all negativedy impact the seouities
markess, interest rates, aections, secondany rading, ratings, oredit risk,
Inflation, deflaticn snd other faciors relatng to the Funds invesments or ihe
Managet's operatiors and cause a Fund o fose value. These events may have
acherse long-tem effects on the U5, and world economies and markets
generally. Thess events can Jlso impar te '.'.‘thl'":l':)gj' and offer operaton s
Syl upon which a Fund's sensoe providiers, induding PIMCO a5 the
Funds® imvestment adviser, rely, and could otherwize disrupt a Fund's senvice
providiers” abiliy to futfil their oiligations to the relevant Fund, For example,
he ipeead of an infectous repirstony dlned caused by & movel s1ain of

coron vt (kndwn a5 COMID-19) has caused volatiity, severe markel
IJIﬂ[!-{a-1=I}ﬂS3'Il:H!mId|'5' CORSIFAMIS in masmy markels and may adverselyf
afiect & Fund’s smeesiments and operabons

Government Intervention in Financial Markets Federal, state, and other
qovemments, ther regulatony agendes, or slf-regulaoey organizations may
T2k actions that affect the regulation of the instruments in wihich a Fund
irvessts, of the issuers of asch insiruments, in ways that ane unforeseeatle
Legslation oo requlation may 840 change the way in which 3 Fund itsefis
regulased Such legistation or regulation could limit or predude a Fund's
abliny to achieve its investment oijective. Furthermore, volatie finandal
markets can epose 3 Fund 1o greater market and liquidity risk: snd potential
difficulty in valuing portiolic instruments hetd by the Fund The value of 2
Fund's heldings s also generally subdect to the risk of future local, national, or
Global ecoreimec disturbances based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
ifwihiech a Fund smests. In addifion, it & nod centan that the LS. Govemiment
will ingenvene in response to @ futune market dsturbance and the effect of any
such fudure intenvention cannot be precicied 1tis ciffioult for issuers o
prepane 1or the mpact of future fmanaal downbums, Athough comparnees can
seek 1o identify and manage fulure uncer tanties through risk management
prOgrams

Regulatory Risk Rnancial enfities, such a5 imestment companies and
Irvesstment advisers, are generally subject to extensioe governiment requlation
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andinterention . Giemiment fequlation andéor inervention may dhangs the
way a Fund is requlated, atfect the expentes inourmed drecthy by a Fund and
the value of its investments, and limit andéor preclude a Fund's ability to
Adhieve its invediment abjectee. Govermment requlation may dhange
frequently and may hawe sgniicant adverse consequences, Moreover,
gowernment regalaion may have unpredictable and urintended effects

DOparational Risk An mvestmentin a Fisnd, like amy fund, <an ifeobve
Operatonal rsks arising Inom Taciors such & pEoCessing &nnors, Fuman emor,
Inadigquane of 1ailed mnternal of extemal processes, Tailunes in systenrs and
Lechnology, changes in personnel and eirocs caused by third-party service
provdders. The oonpmence of any of these falunes, erors or breaches oould
resultin & loss of mbormation, mequlatony Sauting, reputatonsl damage o
afher events, any of which oould hiave 3 material adverse eflec on 4 Fund
While a Fund seeks %o minimaze such events throwgh controls and oversicht,
Uit rrudny' 011 b Saibures that oould cau e losses to the Fund

Cyber Security Bsk As the wse of tedhnology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become potentially more siscepnbie
to aperadonal and informaton security raks resulting from breaches in oyber
security. & breach in cyber secunity refers to both infenticaal 2nd
unsnbenonal cyber events that may, among other things, cause a Rund 10
lose progeetary nformmation, wifer data corrupBon andior destuction o lose
operational capadty, resul in the unauthonized reledte o other misuse of
conbdential information, or otherwise dinupd nomial business opirations
Cyboer siscurity faikires of breaches may rewlt in Snancial bosses 1o & Fund and
it Unitholders. These failures of breaches may alw fesult in dsnpBons 10
bursiness operanons, potentally resulting in financal Iosses; i merference with
& Fisnnds ability 1o caloulate ks net 2450 value, prooess Untholder
tramsachons of cthenwre ransact business with Unitholders; impediments to
trading; violatiors of applicable privacy and ather Laws; regulatony fines;
penaltes; reputation sl darnage; reimbursement of ofer compensason coss,
addiionall compliance and ober Security As: management costs and atbier
adverse consequentes. in addition, substantidl costs may be incurred in onder
to prevent any cyber incdents in the fubure

B.MASTER HETTING ARRANGEMERTS

Thie Funds mury be Silyect 1o vanous netting arangérments. {~hases
Agreerments ") with telect counterpartied. Master Agresments govemn the
terms of certaln tansactions, and are intended to reduce the nounterpanty
assocuated with relevant randactions by speciying oredin progection
rechaniars and provding standardzation thatis intended 1o improve jsgal
cerrainty, Eadh fype of Master Agresment gowems certain types of
transachons . Dyfferent ypes of Hransacions mary be waded out of dfferent
begal entities or atfilates of a partcular orgarizasion, resulting in e need for
midtiple agreements with 2 single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
afe ipedbe 1 urnge operations of dtferent sl npes, they allow 3 Fund 1o
clorse out aned ek its tolal expoturne 1o 3 counterparty in e event of a default
with respect 1o all the transactions govemed under 3 single Master
Agreenent with a counterparty. For finandal repaming purposes the
Staternents of Astets and Liatilities generally present dervative assets and
liabilities on- 3 grods basis, which reflects the full risdes and ©xposures pricr o
netting

Master Agreements can 340 help limit counterparty nsk by spedhing
coflateral posling Frangements at pre-amanged exposure levels Lindsr mosl
Master Agreements, collateral is routinely rarsfemed if the ksl net exposure
Lo certain transactions (net of exicting collateral lready in place) governed
under the relevant Masier Agreement with a counlerpartyin a given acoounl
exceads 3 spedfied treshold, which typically ranges from zero to §2 50,000
depending on the cowntérparty and the typ= of Master Agreement United
States Treaamy Bills and U5 dollar cash are generally the preferred foms of

collateral, althowgh other Searitied ray be used depending on the terms
outlined in the applicable Master Agreerment. Securities and cath pledged as
collateral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Libelities as
sither 3 component of Ervestments 31 vialue (Learities) or Depasiis with
counterparty. Cash collateral received is not typically held in 2 segregated
accouni and a5 such is reflected 25 a lizbdity on the Statements of Assets and
Liakilities a5 Ceposits from counterparty. The market value of amy seourities
received a5 collateral is not reflected &8 3 component of MAY, The lund's
over dll enpoaine B0 counferparty risk can change substantially within a short
penod, asitis aflected by each ransaction sulbiect to the relevant Master
Ay eement

Macher Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
{individu ally and collectively " Masier Repo Agreements ) govem repunchass,
revirse repunchase, and saleduvbad: ransactions beteeen the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintain provisions fior,
among other things, initiation, income payments, events of default, and
maintenance of collatersl. The marel value of ransacions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged o recesved, and the net exposure by
counterparty a5 of perod end are disdosed in the Kotes to Schedule of
Fiveskments

Masher Securities Forward Tranzaction Agreements (" Master Fonward
Agreements ™) govem Certan fonward settling transacions, sudh & THA
securites, delaved-delivery or sale-buvbad: ransactsons by and

between the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agreements maintain provisions e, among other thendgs, initiation and
confirmation, payment and transfer, events of defaull, fermination, and
maintenance of oollateral The market value of forwand setifing ranmsactions,
collateral pledged or received, and the net edposure by counienparty a5 of
period end are disdosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Imvesiments

Customes Account Agreements and related addenda govem deared

derivg tives ramsactions such as fidures, opSims on futures, and deaned OTC
derivatives, Sudh transactions require posting of initial margin as detenmined
by each relevand dearing agency which is segregated in an acount at a
futures commission menchant | "FCM ) registersd with the Commod ty
Funres Trading Commisson (“CFTCT In the United S1ates, counberparty fidk
iy b reduced a5 creditoes of an FCM canmot have 2 daim 10 Fund 355815 in
1he segregated account. Portability of exposure in the event of an FCM
default scenano further reduces. risk 1o the Funds. Vaziation mangin, or
changes in marke valee, e enerdly exdnanged daily, Bul mdy not be
rietbed between futures and deared OTC demmeatives unless the paries have
aiyeed 103 Separate Hrangement in respect of fund mangning. The market
vaue of soammulated unnesized appreaanon (depredanon), imnal margn
poabed, amd amy wnsetted variation margn 45 of perod end are didosed in
ihe Motes 1o Schedde of vesiments

itenatond Swapl and Defvativies Astodation, inc Masher Agreements And
Credit Support Annecces {TI50A Master Agreements™) govern il ateral OTC
demregtivee e sactons entered indo by e Funids with select countempartes
B0 Master Agreennents malnten providons for general cbigations,
represeniatons, sgeements, collateral posting and events of defaultor
tefeRnaton. Events of temination indude conditions that mary entithe
COURLEMTTIES B elect b lermanate early and cause setderment of all
outstandng Fansactions under the applicatie S04 Maiter Agresment. Ay
election o temminate early could be material to the fnanaal statements. The
FOna Master Agresment may contain addiondl provisions that add
countenparty protection beyond ooverage of extsing daily aporsure i the
counterparty has a dedine in credit quality bedow a predefined level or a3
required by requlation. Similary, if requined by requiation, a Fund may be
required to post additon al colateral bevond coverage of dady exposure
Thiese amourts, if ary, may (or if required by law, will) be segregated with a
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8. FEES ARD EXPERSES
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Fres

Fund Maneg Advizary Hdm inis trative Agency Distribution
PIMCO Short-Term Merigage Income
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The franagement, advisony dnd Sdeanisrate Tees, if apgiicsble, ané pad manthly in amesrs o PIMCO b peoviding of amandging Tor the prosvision of advseey
administrative and tird-party serices inciuding audit, cushodiad, rusies, poritfolio aocounting, routine kegal, transfer agent and ,'rir!'.mj senices, The agency and
distmibartion fees, if applicable, are paid maonthly i &rears 0 reimburse fnandd intermedanes that peovide sendoes and destnbution relaong o he units af the
appdicable Fund {or Class theneof, a4 appiicable). In exchange for sudy feet, PIMCO will Bear the cost of varous sendce providers requined by the Trust and apgiicatie

Fund. PIMCC, and not Unithobders, would benefit from amy pice deaesse in the cost of such third-party serdces, induding deaegses resulting from an noease in net
assets. In addtion, with respect o Funds that ane subject to an admimisirative fee, PIMCO enerally makes proft cn sudh 3 fee

Brwa | Bagaay | Dopdss 3. 2037 i
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Notes to Financial Statements

As notied in the table abwowe, cemain Punds and CRasses of Funds e nol subjedt 10 management, advisony, admanistratve, agency o detibution fees. FIMCO Japan
Lid, FIMACD"S affiliate in Japan, is paid a fee from the Japanede Invesiment Trusts of other imvestment vehides tat investin such Rnds or Classes and a partion of
sipch fee is then allocated to PIMCO to compensate it for its sendces, & applicatle

The Funds
AgeNCy OF
(il oorses. of bomowing i
allacated or allocable o d 4pe
Maortgage Income. FIMCO has

w Clatses thereal, 3 applicable) may bear other sxpenses related bo their operation that are not covered by the management, advisory, admmistrative
ribution fees, induding butnot limited to: [} t3xes and governmental fees: (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portiolio rarsaction expenses;
ik g anbe expiene; () edraordinary egerses, indudng oosts of Bigation and indermnification expen e, and () sy opeises
Class of units. PIMCO has paid the organizaional edpenses asodatedwith the dreation of the Trust, except for PIMCO Shart-Term
aid the organizasions expenses assodated with the oreation of each Fund

PRACO Berrruda Income Fund A (the M (FY Adasory) and M (USD Advisond Classes), FIMICO Cone [noon rate Bond Fund 2020-10, FIMCO Shon-Temn
Martgage indome (the EUR, JFY, and USD Classes) and PIRCO Wodd High incorme pay on-going expentes related o the public offering of their units in lapan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WESIMENT Adaser i5 8 reldied parmy (o the Fends and is & maporty-owmed subdid any of Allianz Asset Mandgems
disdoded in Note 9, and docroed related party Tee amounts, if any, ane disdoted on the Statements of Atses and Lia

nil AG Fees paed 1o the related party, if any, are
L

Alkany Asset Management AG, & related party of the Trust, cwned 0005% of the net gssets of PIMCO Barmuda Dymarnic Multi-Asser Srategy Fund, 0.013%. of the
nen amsets of PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opposunities Furkd snd 0 678% of the net asets of PEMCO Short-Tesm Bortgage noome a5 of Ooober 21, 2022

Certan Funds are pemined fo purchase or sell seounties from of i certain relaed afifiatsd funds under spedied condilons outined in procedures adopied by the
Imestrrent Adiger The prodedures have been desgned 1o endure that army purchase of sale of secunties by 3 fund from of to another hund that 1S or could be

d an affiliae by virtue of hiving a cormon adviser (oF affilianed investment advisers), is effected 31 the Qwrent maket price. During the péniod endid October
28, 2022, the Fandish below engaged in purchases and sales of seourities among afiRated funds {amounts in thousands)

[Fund Puchas Saer

FHMCT Besrrreds Bank Loan Furd (U1 : B447 %
FACE) Barmudy Emer grg M ke Bond Fund 065 &0
FIMCD Besrrmads Errer o Warkars Bond Fund Il 20]
FAMCO Barvends Globad & gpragens Ex-Japan Bosd Fund (M) &7.560
FIRCD B bncomes Fend (M) 121,667
FRUC) Barmuada Love Diranon Income Furd 44170
FIMCL Barmuda LS High Yeld Fuad {40 k=l
FIMICT Besrrunds U5 Hagh Yeskd Fused @ (M) fee
FRUCO o Insorne Corposate Bosd irund 20 -
FEMCO Erv g Bond Fazoeme Fund (M) 1764

11. GUARANTEES AHD INDEMEIFICATIONS

Uneder Che Tawst's onganmizaticnal douments, Certan parties Gnduding he Tnestee and PIMCO) are indemnified against cerLain liabdiBes that may anse oul of
perfomnance of their duties to the Funds. Addtonally, in the normad courte of busi Rt B0 coniracts thal conkain a vane indemveficaion dasses
Thi Funds’ masimum espoiune under these arangements is urknosn &5 this would imvobve future dams that may be made aganst the Funds that hawe not yet

ooourred. However, T Funds hive nof had prior daime of brsses pursuant i these conracts

11. UHITS OF EEREFACIAL INTEREST

T Trusk mary 48 up bo 500,000, 000,000 units. The Fumds may have 4 wgnificant
assets of each respective Fund. Such concentrataon of Unitholders’ mtereies could ha i
withdraw substant 3l amounis of capital 51 the same tme. Subsaiplions and redermpions of units of the Funds are denominated in the Funds’ NAY qurrency and
commaerted b0 the Funds” funchonal curmency &t the spol rate on the frardaction date. Units of &ach Rind ane issued wathout par value. The Trustes, with e consent of
the banader, fmay n the future aeate and olfer an sdditional Fund o Chass o Classes of units

ha Mges in units of benefical inmeret wene &5 follows (unats ard amounts in sholsands®)

Foar Enced
Ohchoshanr 1, 009 Otk 31, 2002
Uinits Amaint LTI Ao

ecaipre for i gokd 0@ @ MM L H Rk NE s L WA 2 L)

Brena| Bagaay | Do 31, 2027 o
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Yigar Erwded Wisar Enadid Yisar Erbisid Woar Endesd

Chc ok 31, 2022 Ol 31, XE? Chetisbinr T, X002 October 11, 2002
Uirits AmoaEi Lirits Asmrourd Units Ao it Ao
i & Hia Wi L] Pl i Hia
i L Hi 136 N Wi [ His
K R 1 1 N LY KA e
i L N 1T NE Wi fidh Hia
W& Ml Ha L 13 an Rt i
CASH K& M N L NE M 1 1z
T UFY L e 0 1 N i T lif&
Wi L ha L ] f e W e
i M N ik i) 1504 L} li
K& [ Ha WA Ir 159 Rt K
Y {UEm L] ) &3 K1) N ik ik (MY

bswnd m v e ol
distritwtors i L) & Wik N Hil fidh Hia
FALD i L Wi L a2 832 fih Hiw
A [ T S NE M Wi W
i N Wi ] 15 B4 Wi Lo
KA i T L) 143 1087 A s
1 N Ha ik NR N Fip ] T8
lils [ ] il Nis Nk Hi Hif&
i L UL A i el L] Wi
J KR M N [ ] 1585 A i
YITRY W& M & L] 154 1845 R hit&
YUsm Wik L & T3 N Wi L LAY
Cowt of ety echemnd [{rr ]} 160, T840 Wi L N N i ik
¥ CALED L] N LE] WA . BN WA WA
KR e [rd= @550 K N A et
i M 117 [ N LY et i
hd L 6l (3505 N LY L KL
TlaLm i K Wi Wik B11 13450 Hird Hi
¥ (BAL) L Mt LT WA {5 [LLRLE Rt W
Y ICARDe i 0 Ha Kk N& Wik (E1H] (10 520
T UFY L5 s Ll B0 N& Hih ] Hia
Y {WLEND i L Ya W ] 12 BE R K
¥ {RUED 1] N W& Wk (18] (20574 K Wi
Y MAT L) [ e L) 3n L} WA K
T o] R N W] 123555 N Wi ] i
Nt [ceerees) Puuting from
Fundwrit rursctions By & AH5SEN [ I S [T TH nsen & (s ma # 13,704
i oo Woar Endad Yoar Endd o Endesd

(cteteor 31, K22 Chchiir 31, M Chctovir H, 2003 Orotoksd 1, 202
Uiilts Amoart LiFdts Aot Uiilts Amint Uit Amaun
T 1y T () v B ¥ R i W
et LIFY) i N4 W litk R Wik 4 T E50

Braqal Bagarr | Dgibar
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Notes to Financial Statements

Yiar Endéd

“far Cridesd ke i Yaar Erhid
Chchobvor 31, 002 Okchoteor 31, XEF Chctobor I, 2002 Oiotober 11, 20
Wilts Amoari Uits Aot Linits Amount Wt Ao
rat LIFY, Hadgad i N N Hik N& Wik 1 kil
| P & N 12 g3 N Wik Ttk ik
¥ ok -] Hi Na WL NE W K W
lesund i reivests vt of
eIt e K L Ya Rk N LY R4 K
Y fi¥oeld 1 k] W Wk N W R4 [
Lo ol o rechnmad L] L W R [ 1] {E3,540) Rtk Hik
rar LIFY) K& 1] O Rk NE Mk, BE) (V6,138
et LFY, Hedgad i [ HE& hk NE Wi [1:] (335
[£134,] Wi L ralil] 7 N W R K
Y fifeeld (v, ] Wi Wk NE Wi L] W
Nt [decras] rmubing from
Fund wit murmacion [ (=141] 11 I E 1 1] M|n o4 s B (B
Yaar Eneaed Wit Enadiod Yaar Ended Woar Ended
Octelor 11, X272 Dhctodror 31, A2 Ohctosbvind T, 00 Dtekse 31, 2022
Unidts AmoaEd Urits. Asourd Units Amoud Uirts Anou
Pt o i okl g ¢ INEn % & 1IN 1580 %
Cort ol i rahemad WAE  passm [
Mt oy Eeorema)
fulting kom Furd unit
TR T [ O T oo Wi nss & N4 ELig 0L 5
Yaar Ereied ikt Endid Yaar Ervhisd Yoor Ended
Dok 11, X022 Octoteer 30, ATZ Chctoter I, X022 Octobar 11, 20X
Lhrts Amoand Uit Amourd Undts Amaonmst st Amowrd
i E M Na ] KA 0 & 5248 A E ks
LEE 167560 H& Rk NE Wik R WA
b | 182730 NE& L] N& L] 7] N
K& Ml LU WA Ni® ik o i
k1] 154 N L] N Wis, 0 il
145 12188 N Wik N Wik 1 1]
E 5767 M L] NA& Mik Heh ik
1 AT Wi Wik N Wik L] Hia
15,158 50,148 N L] N&, Wik L] Wi
10,43 Ted B N ik N Y Kk Hia
K ) {17] 1207 N ik Fifh lidd
a8 m Ty [T% T WA [
1] 1] T Rk NB Wik itk K
i LG 2000 m [ [T m [ ia
3 UFY n '] Ry NE Wi R [
Braaal bagary | Dowbs 31, 305
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Notes to Financial Statements

iaar Erwdea Wi Enaid War Endad Woar Endsd
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Wy Amoard vty Aot Units Aot Ayl Amoderd
T LiFA) (v 11 Wi W N Y L] Wi
12 LF) B 2,06 L] L] NR W Ttk ()
WiEE g | |1} Ha L1 N Wi L1 i
K LFM L] k] N RiA N& Wik Tk iy
2.0 16736 Ha L) NiE Hig Rt i
HE F=100 ] LE Kk NE Wi Fk hia
YL 7] BR35T Ha L] NE N Feh hi&
Y fiver b K L H 537 N Wi R s
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FLFT % JEER N i N il ok L]
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¥ ILFY 13 B30 Wa lith e W Hh Hia
YIS 15 13682 N i NI Wik L] W
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G5 Hek 11 N Wik A W
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TR v Ha [ i Nin Wk ia
G381 N L] M W it K&
A L2 15 168 N Hig WA Wi
[42 540 M L] T} N L] Wi
B8 W L] NE L Fe'h &
I8 1351 Hi L] N Wik L] K
(i kv | H& 1111 N Nt 4 i
A, b W L NE Yk R Hik
e ud L] N Wk L] W
X UP [] (k] '] [ T3 Wi [0} Hin
X I gam 152 b5 Hi L N& ik Mt Wk
TILFY 114 a3mm Ha W NR Win Kk Hia
Y {Usm (%088 181 8441 W& n NR Wik [0 Hin
Y fsce kil 1] N it ST N Wi L1 11}
I UPY =] (£1] N Kok NE& Wik Tk hi
Nt s Hacroaea}
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T 528 & 1851803 nzm & (35 n@/n & A%’pn L7 6770

Sraal Bagany | Dowsbar 31, 3027
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements .

Yaar Erwdes i Erindied Yiar Ersbin Wi Enodesd

Outobr 31, 2002 Ckctobear 31, Koo Crctosbisr Y, 2002 Otobser 1. X002
Uniits Amourt Urits Aok Units Amourd Lirslts Amousnt
Coxt of i radnsmad 1158 B [387MM L L] ik N Hik a3 (BEZTH
J LIPY WA L] L] AN R s ik His
| LIF'E. Hisdiwdll KA N [} (785 N ik KA Wi
i ] N 1501 340 N L] A L)
it L W& Lo 47 £ 050 [ Iia
[T R i L] 1785 (32249 L Wi
A L) {115) H ) L L] L lh lia
R M {120 AR N LS WA i
KA N L] fik il mmn fh L
T L L L 1154 11 834 i hida
e & @30 \rEl LR k] 2.207) &3S [hamj : \T.835

seeh frling o e s dor Prinmcing]

7 Sy pibalior rwend (6 i g o Sy B Fond s ot ieeis ey S B o Se g
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FI 2OFF lecrgrae dam) B e

X g pia chlbi’ i |
Filrany I BT e ditd B (Eaies
® R e Nvamlee £ SO i Fbruwy 00 D003 iprmatnsr diy ! (i 00N o POETY S b Famaf A

a1 P Sl Pl i i gy A A0S o i ot

13. REGULATORY AHD LITIGATION MATTERS

The Fu

eeater

are of any matenal litigation or claim p=

re ot named &5 defendants in amy matenal ngaton or aibdiration proceedings andg are no
ed agans Hem

The foregoing speaks only s of the date of this report

14 INCOME TAX

Ny L
fard and

oter 31

arvd meay il reduine
% postions The Funds haw
 the major tax junsdictions

The Manad
finandial &

Srasa | Bagany | Oowsbar 31, 20027
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Schedule of Investments PIMGO Short-Term Mortgage Income

T FRINCFA FRINCFR
N1 AMOUNT VBLLE ST ViU
LTk (=10 L peees) L
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3500% dhs (ES/E081 04 P o 30 dos NO0D0S0 1 1l 2500% dus 11012032 n n
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TERA% dos DU ) 116 7] 5% dur (BT07065 i a7 {12703 e 110020022 ¥ H ]
T000% o 11252030 1 7 w4000 de NS00 al AT 2560% du TLONED22 s 7 EL
3000% doe DE2SEND ) i 1o 0% e CEMT a s ]
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3 14N o & 4. 000% thoe 112072047 10 g mnblanlio
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T SO0 d* (124, "\-_"'_v'.“ 0] T 11 4 5EY% due DET0D0GT Zi57 .1_-'?;' Cadt 318241
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A B00% e DEAH T4 3 3 HO00% de MROTRSD " TE et Bases 100.0% T
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4 00% dhe OLX/Z04E ) 155 4 000% dee MANEGT 100 g2
A R00% doe OTVO1HY 757 230 400% due 1ROUT0ST 15 13
465N de DAFEITMD 1000 1M 5000% due 1AOUZREE 1,000 573
A 000 de OTAN 000 410 W Tetal U5, Doverament Agrscins ]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income [Cont)

ROTES T0 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS:

A zero Balamce may refl ect 2etual amounts rewnding to less than ene thowiand,

{3) The allocation of Total Investments by gesgraphic reglon as of Goteber 31, 2022 s 111.5% of Met A ssets in the United States and other countriss comprising
of CUE% of Net Assets In aggregute.

b} Swecurity is aninterest Onby {90°) or 1O Strip.

{e)  Whan{ssued sesurity,

{d} Coupon represents a yisd to maturity.

[BORRTWINGS AND OTHER FIRANCRN0 TRANSACTIONS

Princigal Payahls far
Cauntrrgarty Oescripten Amuun Shart Sales
Bl Fanree Wlae, TBA 2 2 o
Bls Farnie Wae, TER
BOS Faorie Was, TBA
BRG Farnie s, TBA
- | Farree bhan, TER

x| Farves o, THA
ML Farre Was, TEBY
Total Shari Salles {31.4%) []
The: Yalireveg = 4 dusin @iy by Coun st pur by of the sirt & vahe of B rovereg a0 Qiher Franorg Trrsac o and coledeis! pedoadBrece iedd an of Ootobe 31 HET

Regurchase

Agrerment Pyl fur Tetl

Precesds. Reverse Payable for Bedrewings snd

fo ke Reporchaze Sale-Buybach Payakie far  Other Financiag Callateral

Caumtrrgarty Received Agresments Transatisns Shart Sales Tramsactises  Pledged{Receivedy Net Exposure’”’
Waiee Sacunvet Forvawd Tranginang Aptissest
i ] b b * 3 B £ noo#
i yr ] ] 2 1]
(5] 1] 1] g 1]
ML ] 3 1
Tatal Barrawdngs and Othee Finaneing Tr 5 [ [ [

Y Rt oot gt B i il e ekl bk
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Thow avwrage amvarl o GeTveTng avtRaning darny tw e s Octder 1, 2T e 7360 of @ vyt evege icberert s of UOFRN. Sorwge isrretaq mey inclide medbayier | Remertam e e iy
gty  bad dering The pared

FENANCIAL DERIVATIVE MESTRUBENTS: EXCHANGE-TRADED DR CENTRALLY CLEARED

Urraalized
#al Appreciatien Maristion Matgin

Dezcrigtisn Tul Cantricts DepreciaSan [ Liakilisy

% Trexpary 270w Mo Decembar Fupres Shon (K] ) ] 3 K] ! ]

% Tresbary 10-Year Hom Decenbet Fonrer T i 14 1 0
Total Fatures Cantracis § 70 [] i & []

nrealized

Pay.Recalve Waturiey Hstlenal Markst Appreciatien Wariatisn Margin
Flaatiag Rats Fleating Aate Index Fizwd Rate Date Amaunt e [Deprec iatien) ezl Liubility
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Fay FMoreh UEHIE 2800 g 43} 0
Senerae FMonsh I LECR L n n 1 [
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income [Cont)

Unrpalized
PayRective Masket Agprecistion’ i tig tien Margin
Flaal Rats Flaating Rabe Index Fitxwd R be Wil Dieprecistisn) hl'_1 LlllilllI
Fry Seounn] Ovwemghi Firgnoing Rne 1. 50% ] [TT 1] ] [ ] b & @
Hldren S 1. 758N L 1 !
ey 1. i “rm 1k o [}
Flszrm 1 1% 143 1% ] L1
e 1.303% 50 b i Ky ¢
Feerex P s 553 553 17 1
Flesree 1 Ber (v 13 | 1
Flaren | % 1 1 ¢
R Sabur] Oy 3 2T k7 B | [
Flazra™ i Chont o) Faruintangy Pl 2500 Al 133 i 3 i}
Total Swap Agresments & ain & 2 § ¥ B =k ]

The bllawing & 4 dum Bary ol The Bidte vk ind viciobon @aign of Becharg-Ted ded of Deasrally Cland Friatessl Deineibvt s Somenie &0 of Oedober 30, 2002

Cath of §550 hat been pledged as ¢clisteral for axchinge-traded and centrally cleared financial dedvative instruments a3 of October 31, 2022, Ses Nate &,
Master Netting Arrangements, in the Metes to Finanslal Statem ants for mors information regarding master netting arrangements,

Fisa neial Dariva tive ksdit Finaaeisl Darivative Lish it
Variatban B argin WVarlatian Margin
Blaric t Walug AL Magket Valus Lialsiliey
Porchased Swnng Werliten Swap
Optisns Fuiures Agresments Tatal Dgtiam Futmres Agrenmenis Total
Tatal Exchange:Traded ar Centrally Cleared & [ [ ] E § [ ] @ & 0 & ﬂg # M

¥ Mo sttt b b bt action) e acve dute Sam Nt 2 Toc e Trinie: et il bvesiiseit IPeitied 5 Vhi R bo il Susbamvinsts Jar Fun b alsreaee

fi FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUBENTS: DVER THE COUNTER

Settlemend Cunmency ta Cairency te Unrealized iz latimn M0eg recia tin
Caunteagarty Minth b O elivired ke Recobvid dgaan Lia bl vy
uy 110Nz [] I (4] 17 ¥ 1] ] ]
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Cureeney ta Caitensy 14 Winraalized Apprneiatisn e feeis tea)
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income [Cont)

The: folowing i @ summ iy by combsper ty of the mart o value of OTC Brenoal devete rsmamenis and ool teral pledged recenesd s of Ooiober 31, 3007

Financhal Deciwative Assets Financial Derivative Liakilities

Farwad Fonwaard

Faraign Tatl Farsign Tatal Net Markst  Callateral

Currsney Furehated Swap Dwer the Dt ency Writhes Swiap Drver thw Value 0i OTC Plegged! Mgt
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(FAIR VALUE OF FIHANT AL DERIVATIVE INSTRUBMENT S
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Fair Values ot Financial Derhrative Instruments en ihe Statemenis of Sssets and Liabilitles o of Octuber 31, 2022

Derivatives not sccounbed tor s bedging instruments
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income [Cont)

The Effect o} Finaacial Derivatide Ismtusments «n the Stetements o Operatans e the geriad ended Detaker 31, 2022:

Derivativis net sccsunbed for s bedging instruments
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2021 10 31
PIMCO
2021 10 31
30,084 3,925
0 0
2 0
0 0
216 28
0 0
TBA 26,312 3,433
63 8
56,677 7,395
1,777 232
10,050 1,311
2 0
278 36
3 0
413 54
TBA 17,441 2,276
17 2
0 0
7 1
1 0
6 1
60 8
30,055 3,921
26,622 3,473
31,390 4,095
0 0
10,052 1,311

(16) O]
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402 52
1,062 139
11,082 1,446
14,076 1,836

36

10

129

1,306
11.12 1,451
9.61 1,360
104.73 13,664

11,942
86.10 11,233

9,818
10.78 1,406
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PIMCO
2021 10 31
242 32
242 32
1 0
37 5
30 4
1 0
30 4
25 3
0 0
6 1
5 1
4 1
62 8
201 26
( 41 5
39 5
0 0
74 10
(867) (113)
12 2
(742) €D
(278) (36)
0 0
3 0
417) (54)
0 0
(692) (90)
(1,434) (187)

(1,393) (182)
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2021 10 31

41 5
(742) CH)
(692) (90)

(1,393) (182)
0 0

0 0
2,249 293
856 112
25,766 3,362
26,622 3,473

208/398



@
()

©

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PINCO
2021 10 31
N

11.34 1,480
(@ 0.02 3
(0.24) 31)
(0.22) (29)
11.12 1,451

() (1.94)

© (1.33)
402 52

0.87

0.85

0.13

0.01
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PIMCO
2021 10 31
A

94.71 12,357
@ 0.12 16
(8.73) (1,139)
(8.61) (1,123)
86.10 11,233

®) (9.09)

© (0.84)
11,082 1,446

0.87

0.85

0.13

0.01
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PIMCO
2021 10 31
A

10.83 1,413
@ 0.01 1
(0.06) ®
(0.05) @)
10.78 1,406

() (0.46)
14,076 1,836

0.87

0.85

0.09

n 0.01

@
©)
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2021 10 31

2003

29

BBH
BBH

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

2020-10
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 10 30 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2021 10 31
US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO

PIMCO
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PINCO 2020-10 2020 10 15 (
) 2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2020 10 31 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2020 11 1 2020 10 15
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
$ 2 % 5,568  $ 5,600
0 865 865
(1,511) 7,654 6,143
(1,479) 14,087 12,608
428,248 0 428,248
0 (75,871) (75,871)

$ 426,769 % (61,784) % 364,985
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2021 10 31
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) 2021 10 31

2021 10 31
2020 10 30 ( ) 2020 10 31
2020 10 30 ( ) 2021 10 31
2020 10 30 2020 11 1 2020 10 30
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
$ 0 $ 837 $ 837
0 (6,722) (6,722)
0 (3,610) (3,610)
0 (9,495) (9,495)
0 0 0
24,690 177,059 201,749
0 (8,486) (8,486)

$ 24,690 $ 159,078 $ 183,768
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

B-J 1605

B-J 1605

B-J 1609

B-J 1609

B-J 1612

B-J 1612

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO 2020-10
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
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1. ORGAH ZATION

Each Fund distussed in this report (each & "Fund” and collectively, the "FRunds ™). which dsoinduedes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,

the *Classes™), is 3 series tust of AMCO Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-series st

[purSs

%0 & st desd ecosouted by Winchester Globad Trust Comparny Limated on Decernber 1, 2003 (38 amended fnom tme o Geme, te "Trust Deed™). Efecive s

af the dioee of butiness (Eastem me) on September 29, 2017, Maples Trustee Services (Bermuda) Limited (he "Trustee™) wad appcinted as trustes of the Trus

Padfic imeestment Management Company LLE (TPICOT, the "Manager™ of the “imvestment Adviser™) i the spomsor of and was repomsible i struchring the Tnst

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. {"BEH ") has entered into an sgreement with Siate Street Corporation (“State Sreet”™) under which State
Friveshor Sendoes Butiress) which indides i custody, fund aocounting and sdmnistration, ransher doency. depositan, farion exchandg:

el will acguire BBH
mridee and Lequrines lemdng

seraoes. The TanSaCcnon if cpeched to be completed in the Bran quarter of 2022, subgect to customany dodn g condibons and regulatory Appneals

The Trust is subject 10 requlasion and superdision as provided for in the Irvestment Funds Act 2006 and related rules relating 1o standard funds

The tenms of the Tast Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the bManager, the power, in the future, 1o establish further funds in addition 1o the Funds

curreny in operation as of te date of this report

References to unithalders (each, 3 "Unitholder™, and aollectively, the “Unitholders™) in, or units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund shall mean Unitholders of the Fund
who hold umits, of dasses of units (a5 applncable), whach ane atinbutable 5o that Fund

Thie Fusnds pretentad i this reporT ane lished beiow
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PR Bermuds Bark Los fund B

FRNIC0 Bermiods Bank | gen fond €
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PR Brmcds broome Fund [

PARACTD Bgramgely broom# Fund E

PN Bermvuds Dy ¢ Mudofus ot Srammgy Find®
POACD Brawely L ows Do mcome Fnd

PN Emmrgengy B [ rcoovess Frand |1

PN Empegeng Bond Incoms fiond 10

1Dfarad

Desied by b bork weith 8 "Tored of Funk™ sincise, a2 debred w it rules of the v et Ties Assmsan,
Japan, of in any ot pmdoion
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() Barmsi Global Aggregum Ex-Japan I¥en Hesigeel Boed Fend
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PEMCD B i Term Morbgege looom e
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decrezen of the Manager, Units of de EUR, JF mnd 1550 Dlacps will be resircoed 1o enly thaee imeaion who are
appd by the lanagar,

| PiNBCID Esmegung B (e Hocigand bcome Fund
PN D Empeging Bod [ roomee Frond
PMCELL 5 Bigh b MarvHeckged Fend
PMCOU 5 Bigh Yild Fued
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2.SIGHIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following is @ summary of significant accouniing polidies corsistently
followeed by the Trust in the preparation of its financia statements in
confcamity with accounting peinciples generally sccepted in the United States
of Amenica ("0 5, GAAR™) Each Fund is treated 45 an imeestment comgany
under the reporting requirements of U 5 GAAF The preparation of finandal
statements in acoordance with LS. GAAR requires management i make
esfimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and
liailities and dischosure of contingent assets and liabiities at the date of the
financat satements and the reported amounts of incredsss and dednerses in
niet Feets from operatons during the reporting peod. Achual results oould
dither from those estimates

{n) Acquirad Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a portion of
the assets of §) FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fend B, FIMCO Bermuds Bank Loan Fund C and FINKCO Berruda Bank
Loan Fund Ox (i) PIMCO World High incorme; §ii) PIMCO Bermauds Global
Aggregale Bx-lapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund dnd PIMCO Bermuds Ghabal
Aggregate Bx-lapan Bond Fund; §v) FIMCO Bermuds incame Fund A, PIMCO
Esmmuda Income Fund D and FIWCO Bermyda income Fund E: () PINCO LS
High Yed I.'fn-n-l-éajlgr-:f: Fund, FIMCD LS I-t-._‘,h Tield Fund, PIMCO LS

High Yeeld Strategy Fund, and PIMCO LS. Hgh Yield Strategy Fund 1L {4)
PIRGCC U5, High Yield (Fen-Hedged) Fund 1| and FRACO LS. Hig Yeeld Fund
I; {wilh FIMCO Emerging Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund, PIMICO Emerging
Bond ncome Fund, PIMCO Emerging Bond incoms Fend |1, and FIMCO
Emerging Bond income Fund 11| {each refemred to hereim as a * Fund of Funds®
o T Aoquiring Furd ™, wiich imeests in other Funds) fo the respective dadit of
(1) PIMCO Berrmuds Bank: Loan Fend (M §i) PIMICO Bermuds Emenging
Markets Bond Fund (M); §ig) PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ec-lapan
Band Fund (M); (i FINCO Bermiada income Fund (M); () PIMICO Barmuda
s ng: Yiedd Rund (M 1) PEMCO) Berouda LIS Hagh Tueld Fund BN}
(vt} PIMCO Ermeriging Bond Incorme Fund (W {referned §
" Acquered Fund(s)” . Any asiets so applied wall Be held in wach Acquired
Fund{s) a8 if receved directly. Whene aseets are 50 applied, the Acquired
Funi{s) will record the issee of units 1o te relevant Aoquiring Fund af the

Fasue guice per urdt of sudh units andwill repunchase such units at the
repurchase price per unin of sch units &t the Bme of repundhase. Accordngly,
the abdity of the Aoguiring Fund 1o achieve ils investment chjective will

depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
Irvestment oljective. There can be np assurance that the investment obgecive
of the Aoqguired Fund will be achieved

Ratios showvm in the Finandal Highghts do not indude spenses of the
Acquired Fund(s). See Note 9, Fees and Expenstes, fof further infomation
regarding fumd fees, as applicable

&) Securities Tr jans and | Inceme Securities ransactions
are reconded as of the rade date for finandal reporting purposes, Sequrities
purchased of sold on & when-zisied of delaped-delnaeny basis may be

settled beyond 4 standard sefthement pericd fof the security alter the trade
date. Realized gains and lostes from sedanties sold aré recorded on the
identified cost basis. Dhvidend income & reconded cn the ex-dridend date,
eept cenain dhidends from foresgn sequnities whene the ex-dvidend date
rriay e passed, which are reconded &5 5000 45 2 Fund is indomned of the
ex-chyidend date. Interest indome, djusted for the aooretion of daomns and
amortization of premiums, is recorded on the acowal basis from settement
date, with the exception of seqrities with a forwasd starting effective date,
whiere interest income is recoeded on the acoual basis from effective date For
ooeredtble sequrities, premiums attibatable 1o the comversion feature are not
amortized. Estimated tax liabdiies on certain foreagn seamities are reconded
on an acoudl basis and are reflecied a: components of interest income or net

change in unredized Fppredation (depredaion) on investments on e
Slatements of Operations, as appropriate. Tax liabei%es realized a5 a result of
wch sequrity sales ae reflected 25 2 component of net redized gain {oss) on
inveitments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on
roftgage-rélated and other asserbacked securities, if amy, are recorded as
components of interestincome on the Satements of Operations

Dbt obiigations may be phaced on non-Booual SLUs and related interest
e My be reduced by Ceasing Qument SConeats and wWriting off interest
recereatde when the collection of 1 of & porton of innenest Ras Do
doubtiul based on congstently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
remaeeed from non-aoonuat status when the issuer resumes interest payments
or when coliectabllity of interest is probable

The Enandal statements of PIMCO Care Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020
10 induded in this report are for the pericd from October 15, 2020 dnceplion
date) fo Ochober 31, 2021 Accounting policies were oonsistently apgibed for
th: pereod ended October 21, 2020 and theough thi year-ended Chinober 31,
2021 Activity af the fund during He pericd ended Cctober 37, 2020 nduded
capital contribution s, imesiments and operaling geedes incurred bo st
and operate the fund. The Statement of Chamges in Net Assets Tor the period
from Qctoder 15, 2020 (date of inception) through Octaber 31, 2020, B the
wear-ended Ocrober 31, 2021, and for the pedod from October 15, 2020
{date of inception) through Gciober 31, 2021 is as follows:

IRl
e sl g | Eentar Tl
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Pt Charga e e L 4]’2 ] II?& 1 &

The finandial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-hsset Strategy
Fund indieded in this report are for the period from Odober 20, 2020
(ncepBon date) to October 31, 2021 Actounting polices were consistently
Fpplied for the pericd ended October 31, 2020 and theough the year-endied
October 31, 2021 Activity of the fund during the period ended October 31,
2020 induded capitd confribuSions, investments and operaling expenses
Incufred 10 41 and operase the fund. The Statement of Chianges n Net
Assats for the penod from October 30, 2020 (date of inception) thiough
Cctober 31, 2020, for the year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the pesiod
from October 30, 2020 (dane of inception) through Ocraber 31, 2021 15 as
foll oot
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Ied Cagh and Foreign Currency  The friandal statements of each Fund are
presented wsing the qumency of the pimary economec emdronment in whath 0
operanes (the “functional cumendy™) The functiona currency for eac of Bhe
Funds 15 lishad in the below table

The market values of foreign sequrities, qamency hoddings and other assets
and Eabilities are franslated into each Fund's funconal curency based on the
curment exchange rales eadh business day. Purchases. and sales of sequnlies
and income and expende ibems denaminated in foreign cemendes, if any, are
trandated into each Fund’s respective funciional aerency at the exchangs
rate in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately report the
eftects of changes 0 fonegn exchange rates from changes an market preces on
secufifies hld. Such changes are induded in net realided and net changes in
unrealized gain of (a5 rom festmen s on te Statements of Opefatns
Thie Funds may ireest in foresgn curmency denominated securities and may
engage in forelgn qumency wansactions either on a spot (cash) basks at the
rate prevaling in the qurency exchange market at the time o hrough a
forwrded foreign aurrency conirad. Realiped forengn exchange Qans Of losses
ancieng from Sied of spol Meeigh QurTences, QUFERCY RS of [osses realized
bemwesn the rade and setfement dates on sequities transactions and the
ditference between the reconded amounts of dvidends, interest, and foresgn
withiolding taces and the functional currency equivaient of the amounts
achually received of paid ane induded in fet redired Gain or kods on foragn
curency transactions on the Statements of Operatons Net unreali 2ed foareign
exdhandge gans and losses aising from changes in foreign exchange rates on
foreign denominated assets and lahilities other than investments in secwities
Feld at thes end of the repoeting penod are induded in net change in
unreslized Jppredation of digredation on Rrsgn ummenty d4e and
Iiabulities of the S1atemenits of Opefamon:

The Met Assel Viakae (THAY " and 1013l retams of certain Funds {or Classes
thereaf, a5 applicable) are presented in the ourency for which tie NAY is
reported {the "HAV qumency™) as detailed in each Fund’s Offering
Memaoeandum (the "Offering Memorandum ™), Foe the purposes of the
presentation of the MAV and the totd return in the MAV currency, the
beginning and ending MAVS are comverted using the period beginning and
ending machange ranes, respecinvdly, and distnbubons ane convertsd Liing tee
exchange rate a1 the time of the dismmbition. See the iallowing tabde for the
HAY curmency of each respactive Fund

FundClasa:
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IRAY Curr sy c

Functisnal

FIM DD Bermady Bank Loan Fuad (M} U3 dollar U3 dolla
P Bermusda Bark Laas Fusd A
- F 150 US dolly HE dolle
*  JUFn Japansss yn U3 oy
+ Jiusn Jopanece yn LS doldw
«  TUM Japaneseyn LS doly
V0G0 Jipaneceyen U3 doly
FIMCD Bermasda Bank: | oam Fusd 8
«  FlAUD Fatrdhan doflar | UGS dols
. T (AL} Japinaga e LS dolls
® ¥ [BRL) Japanegs yen LS, dols
] ¥ [MEN] Japansgs yen L5 dolls
® ¥ [RB) Japanes yen LS dolls
® ¥ [TAY) Japanee yen U5 dolla
FIMOD Bererasdy Bank Losm Fund C
* ¥ ICUE Japanece yn UE dolle
FIMCI Bermuida Bark Lo Fusd O
» ¥ (Wackd) Japunee von US dollw
FIMOD Bermads Dyrarme Ml i-Ased Suetagy Furd
] JUFT Japansgs yen LS dollsr
s 150 U5 dolint US dolw
FIMCD Bermasda Erveer g M bers Aond Fund (M0 U35 dollw U3 dolls
FIMOD Eormudy Emer g M ket Bond Furd |
«  IetlPYl Jopanss yen LS dolls
w  ImrUPY Hidosd) Jigianmia yen L3 dolls
= aans Exl
mﬂm‘:&h! Agarogaee Ex Jagan Y- Jiganiacd yin U dolls
FIM (0 Beremasda Globad Apgregacs Ex-Japan Bond Fund | Jupansss yen U3 dolly
Ir;:l[ﬂﬁa%l:ld:al.ﬁq;lb;xnldwm Bard Fund Tipaniss pan U5 del
PO Bormuda Income Fund 841 US dolier US dollw
FPIMCD Bormipda Incomea Fund &
« FUrMg Japaneeyn U5 dolw
«  Fs U5 dofia U5 deollw
« JUFA Jopenese yn U3, dully
W J s Japanee yen UE dolls
. K & U5 dollar U3 dolle
& MUFY Adaorg Japanme ym U3 dols
= BMUSD Adveand US doliy US dolw
" N LFY Japanese yn S dolla
« Nz Japanese yn U5 dolw
* KN D35 LS ol U dollw
+  PUFM Jopeneseyn U3, dollw
«  Oorn Jupanees yan U3 dolly
- R LIPY Japanese yen L% doly
«  SUFT e yen U3 dolls
. Japanete yen U dolls
. U3 dofly U3 dols
. LS dollw WS dolly
. Japanee yn U dollw
. U5, ol WS, dollw
. Jopanees yun U35 dolly
- Jopanegs e U5 dollw
. Japsnecs yin LS dolls
il O Barerwda income Fund 0
« KN (A0 Faztrdien doflar | LS dola
+ ¥ Wadd) Japanees yen U5 dolls
FIMCD Bormuda Income Fund E
W B-1 1605 P Japsnee yen Japanes yen
«  B.J 1605 (050 Japanee yen Jopanme yen
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Fimztiadal
Faurd Clais: Ny Cumrncy Duany

# B 1608 LPY Japaness van Jeganese von

. B 1800 U5 Japanese yan Jipaneis yah

o B+ 1612 UPY) Japanese yen Japaness yan

» By 1612050 Jzanecs yen Jupanss yan
FINICT Baerrardy Low Durason Bacome Fund

+  BSH 1.5 dola U5 dole
FIMCE Baemnisds Morgags Copormsine: Fond

e ImelIFY Hadgadl NE- gt WL dollar

« JUPM Jmeneseyen | U3 dolu

- JFsm Japaness yan U5 dollsr

=« 50 1.5 dolls U5 dodlar
FIMCT Bastmuds 115 High Yiebd Fuesd M) 1.5 dollx 1.5 dollar
FILICT Besrmuseda LS. High Yiald Fusd I [M] Ja;m_ﬂ s U 5 dollar
FIMCD Cove brcosmes Comporats Bond Fond 2020-10

« 15D 1.5 dolla U5 dollar
FILCT Emengeng Bond | ¥en-Hisdoed Ingoma Furd Japaness yan U5 dolar
FILICT Emengeng Bond Income Fend Japaness yen U5 dollar
FIMCD Ererging Bond Incarms fand M1 1.5 dolla 1.5 diollas
FIIC Emergung Hond Indarms Fund B

® iyTEa ] Japiiss yai U5 dollar

® J{BALY Japaness yen U5 dollar

Japaness yan U5 dolar
Jipariens yun 15 dolar
J apdEas yin U5 dollar
Japanes yan U5 dodlar
Japaness vai U dollar

® JiAE Japanese yan U5 doflar
® J{TRY} Japaness yan U5 dollar
FIICD Emergany Bond Incame Fand B
«  JIEIR Japanese yen U5 dolar
* J|GERY Japanese van U.5 doflar
w J{Us Jaganse ven 5 dollar
FILICD Shait-Terim Mios gyage bacame
« EHIR Ewo U5 dollwr
LI i | Japanecs yen U5 doder
*  JPYURY, Hedgad) Jupaniess yen U5 dollar
« Uid .5 ol 1.5 doflar
FIMCOLE S Hagh Vil (Yen-Hedged) Fond Jupanese yan L5 dodlar
FIMCO 105 High Yeskd [en-Hadead] Fund I Jinpiias yah U5 dollar
PRGOS S Hagh Yield Fund iganiess yen Il 5 dollar
FIMCO 115 Hih Yoald Furd || Jpaness van U5 dollar
FIMCO LS Hah Yald Sramgy Fand
« JUFD dopanseyen | U5 deler
*  JLUPY, Hadged Japaness yan U5 doller
« JUED U5 dolly L5 dollar
« YO Jpaness yan U5 dotlar
# ¥ LIPY Hesdiedh Jinpniins yati U5 dollar
FIMCO S Hagh Teld Sramgy Fand ||
. Yauo Japaness yen U5 dollar
® ¥ [ERL} Japaness yen U5 dollar
* VMM Jipaness yen U5 dollar
- ¥ ITAY inpaness yan L5 dollar
FILICE Would High ncome 1.5 dolly U5 dolar

id] Midticlass Operations Each Class aof 4 Fund oftered by the Trusthas
rights bo the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for spedfic assets and Gairs and krises designated oo & Chiss
relating to curmendy edging operastions. Income, mon-Clas spediic expenses,
and non-Class spedific reakzed and unredized capetad gains and losses are

ghocated bo each Class of units based on the relatve net assets of eadh Class
of the respective Fund Class spedific expenses cumently indude
management, advisory, adminisirative, agency, amd dismbution fees, where
applicable

e Distribwtion Pelicy The foll owing table shows the anficipated frequency
of distritmtions for each Fund Dstributions from each Fund may be dedared
and distributed o Unitholders only upon the autheei zaticn of the Manager,
winch 4 uthon Zatn iy b wathheld ar the ?w!,]lial‘;-;l'-_-. et

Dezlared snd Paid Manthhy

PACD Bl Bank Locen Fiond &
FMCO Berrmuds Bark Loen Fend B
PMCO Berrrods Bark Losn Ferd ©
PHCT) Breeroiadly Bank Lown Furd 0
PIRICO Barrrds Income Fand &

+ FUM
* F (UG
s I
» JsD
«  KUPA
+  NiusD
LI LR
s SUFY
+ LU
. L4l ]
YLPYY
(i |U:{:'
PED Bearmads dncome Fand O
PAMCO Bamuds borgage Dppartenibes Fund
«  JUPY
& Jiso
* (Ln)

PACD Emmasagerg Bond (Yen-Heediged Ircamss Fund
PBCT Esneigang Bood Incomes Fard

PAMCD Eevneginsg Bond Income Fend 11

PG Eemmagersy Bond incame Fond (0

PMCOW 3 High eld [Fen Hedged) Fund
PAMCOUS High Yield Fund

HMCO WS Hagh Tekd Strategy Fusd

FAMCOUE Hagh Feeld Stramgy Fusd ||

PMCO Woarkd Bigh Ircome

Declaed and Paid Buarierhy

PMCD Bemids Income Furd &

«  OOUrs
PYMICT) B vt Wncormes Fiond £ (e oviadad shat thes deadend yaald chall b no beghier thess
b por BenLm DV vy oaymar rodieng parniod)

Declared and Paid Semiannually

FMLCO Eemrds Dynamc: Muln St Sramgy Fund

PICO Eprrauda dncome Fond &
*  FUPY
» RUM
AMLCD Short-Teim Mo gage bacome
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The Manager dors nat expect to declare dtributions with repect 1o thesa
Funds (or Class e theresl, il applicable, but may, in itz discretses, declare and
pay distributoss 1o the Unitholdes af asry time,

PRICD Bermeds B sk Loan Fand (M)
PRI Bermeuds Emenging Mk s Bond Fund (M)
PRIID) Bermeada Emengeng Mk ess Bond Fund 11
PRILD Bermada Global Aggeegass Ex-Japan [Yen-Hedgedh Boed Furd
PRSI Bermroda Gobal Aggegem Exdapan Bond Fond
PRED) Bermeda (obal Aggeegens Ex-Jdapan Bend Fund (M)
PR Bermmsda neaime Fand A
- K (LS
- W UPY Advasoegh
* B USD Adveongh

. TLPT)
- U s
* W
- ZEM

PRILT] Besmmada rcme Fandl (M)
PID Bermuda Low Duraton |noome Fund
PINIET Bermusda Morigage Opparsenes Fund

* | LFY Hadged)
PRRUCD Bermasds 15 Hegh Yiedd Frnd k)
PRED Bermmods LS Hugh Yiekd Fund B (M)
PRLD Corn Income Corgorase Band Fusd 2000-10
PRI Eme g Bond Inoame Fusd M)
PRACO WS Fagh Yiskd [VerH edgad) Fund ||
PRUD U5, Hagh Yiekd Fured 1

* Any dositubone with respact fe Cles U 0500 Ure of e Fond vl be declred &
oo darca with 4 ke sgpaement batnveen the Masger ssd Ba weet tor 0 such (e

Distribmisions, if any, will generally be made from e redevant Fund's {or
Class's, if spplicable) net investment ncome. In adddion, the Manager may
Authoeize the payrment of nel redized capital gans adaalatie for dstribution
Adchtional deributons mdy be dedined 45 the Manager detms spprogra
DistribuSons paid with respect 10 amy Fund (or Class tereof, i applicable)
will reuce the N&V of sudh Fund (or Class thereof, if applcable) At the
discretion of the Unithohders, cash distributions from a Fund {or Class thereod,
if applicable) may either be reinvested in addiionad wnits of a Fund {oe Clas
therect, if applicable) or pad to 3 Unitholder in cah. Cash payments will be
paid in the MAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {cr (lass theregf, if
appiicabds) may dedare further distributions if considened neceseany in onder
to mamntain a reasonable kevel of distribu Gons for 3 Fund {or Class thereof if
Appiecabie), In the event that there i4 inddequate ol ifcome and mel realixd
cagatal gaird 10 pay a detribution of & Fund (or Class teenedl, if appicabie)
requined by the Offering Memdorandum, the Manager may pay 4 dstibution
consisting of 3 portion of the cagital of such Fund {or Class theneod, if
apphcable). O ributions not collected within six years Tom thelr due dase
will lapee and will acorue 1o the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class theseaf,
i agplicable)

il News Accounting Prenouncements and Aequlatory Updates In Manch
2020, the Anandal Accounting Standands Board {"FASE™) istued an
AccaumBng Standands Updase ("ASUT), ASU 2020-04, which provides
optional quidance 1o eass the potential accounting bunden assodated with
franticening away from the London hterbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR™) and
Qs reference rates that ane expected bo be discontinued The ASLE s
effecte mmdiately upon rediate of the updane on March 12, 2020 feough

Decormber 31, 2022 AL this tme, management is evaluating the implicamons
of these changes on the financa statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

f# Investment Valuation Policies The price of 4 Fund's units  based on
the: Fund's NAV. The NaV of a Fund, of eadh of its Classes, a5 appiicabde, |5
deterrened by dindding the ol value of postiolio imvestments and othes
Fisels amrbutable 1o hat Fund or Class, liss ary Rabilites, by the totd
rurmier of units outstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
[y (a5 desaribed in the aevent Offering Memogandism of the

Trusth, Fiend units are ondinarly valued & of the dose of regular trading on
the Mewe York Stod: Exchangs ("HTSE Close™). informaton that becomes
ko 1o the Funds or their agents sfter the time as of which NAY has been
calufated on a particular day wall not generally be wsed to refroacively adjust
the price of a security o the NAY determined earier that day Each Fund
Pesvies thee fioht 1o change e e & of whidh it NAV is calo ated i

the Fund doses earlier

For punposes of caloulating WAY, partfolio sequrites and other assets for
whech market quotes e readly avalable are valisd a1 merket value, Market
wale is generalty determined on the Dasis of offidal desing prices or the last
reported sales prices, o if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtained
from established market makers or prices (nduding evaluated prices) supplied
by the Funds' approved priing services, quotaion repoeting systems and
gither thard-party sounces (oogether, "Fridng Senvices ™). The Funds wil
mormally e pridng data for domestic equily Secuities recebed shorthy after
the W SE Clorse and do fof nommally Lake into account trading, dearandes o
setllements that take place after the NYSE Close. B market value pridng is
usied, a foreign (Ron-LL 5 ) equaty security raded on 3 foreign exchange o on
e Bam one exchange 15 recally vialued using pnang anfarmation from the
exchange omsidensd by PIMCO 1o be thi primay echange. A foen (bon-
115.) ety security will be valued as of te dose of rading on the forson
exchange, of the NYAE Close, if the Ny3E Close oonurs before the end of
tracing on the foreign exchangs Domestic and foreign inen-U 5.} fed
income seoaities, non-exnangs raded denvatives, and equity oplicas. are
nommaly valugd on the basis of quates obtaned from brobers and dealers o
Fricing Sesvices using such data reflecting the prindpal markets for those
securities. Prices obtained from Pridng Services may be based on, among
gither things, information peosided by market makers of estimates of market
walubers cbtamned from yeeld da1a nelating 10 invesImishls oF Lecurifed with
rnilar characerisics. Certain fined inoome seawrites purdeased on 4
delayededelivery hasis are marbed 10 market dady until sertlement at the
forward setement date. Exdhange-traded opfions, except edquity options,
futures and eplions. on futures e valued at the setement price detemmned
by the relevant exdnandge, quabes obtaned oM 4 quotataon Feporiing e,
el ablrhid marcel makers of prcng Seraces Swap agreements afe valed
o the Basat of market-based paioet wippled by Pricng Senioes of quales
obtained from brokers and dealers. A Fund's investments in open-end
Management imvestment compsanies. ofher tan exdhange-raded funds
{TETES™), e valiaed at the RANS of sach invesiments

It a foreign fnon- U 5. ) equity seamity’s value has materaly changed after the
dese of the security™s primary enchange or prindpal market but before the
WYSE Clase, the seaarity may b valued an firvalue based on prodedures

el ablihed and sapproved By the Manager. Foreign (non-U 5.) equaty

that do ot Irade when the HYSE is open are dlso valoed at Lai

ih tespet 1o foeeign (non-US.) equity seunities, a Fund may
determine the fair value of nvestments based on information privided by
Pruang Senvices and other therd-pary vendors, wheth may recommend far
walug oF Bustments with referende 10 other seduniies, mdsces o 35315 In
comsidening whether fair valuation & required and in determining faie
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vaues, a fund may, among other things, consider significant events (which
may be considered boinclisde changes in thevalve of 15 sequrities or
sequrilties indices) that occur after e dose of the relevant market and befiore
the NYSE Clode. A Fund mdy utiize modeling tools provided by tird-party
wenidons 1o deterrmine fair values of foreign (non-US ) seaxities. Fof these
pUrporsis, any miovement in Se applicable reference inda of irsFument

(" zeror trigger™) between the earlier dose of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be & sgnificant event, prompiing the
applicasion of the peidng rodel (effectvely recultng in daily fr

vauABon). Foregn exdh amdges may peral trading o fotegn (ron-1.5.)
EOUATY Secunies on diys wiven the Tiust is not open Bor busingss, whidh may
resultin @ Fund's portfolio imestments being affected when Unitholders are
unadie b bury or sl units

Senior seared flaating rate kans forwhich an adive secondany market exiske
to a reliable degree will be valeed at the mean of the last available bidfask
piices i the market for such loans, as provided by a Priong Serdce. Senicr
secured Aoating rate loans for which an active Secondany marken doss nod
exsl 10 a reliable deqres wall be valued at tar value, which 15 intended to
Appromimate marke valie I valung a serior secuned Boating rate loan at
fair value, the factors condidered mayindude, but an not limited to, the
Tidicwing: 1) the credisworthiness of the bomower and any intermediate
partidpants, (b the teems of the loan, (<) recent peices in the rmasket for
shvelas loans, if ary. and {) recem pices in the market for nstruments of
simalar quality, rate, period undil nextinterest rate reset and maturity

Fvestmenis valued in qurendies other than the functicnal currency

ol a Fund ane corverted 10 the funchional armenty wng exchange ranes
obitained from Pridng Services. As aresslt, he value of sudh investments and,
in fum, the MAY of the Fund™s units may be affected by dhanges in the valus
of crrencies in refation Bo the functional qumendy. The value of investments
trinded in Toreign maskets of denofminabed in cufrendies ather than

the functional currency mary be atfected significantly on a day that the Tasstis
fiail open hor busimess. AS a nesult, 1o the axent that 4 Fund holds foregn
{non-1 4 ) investments, the valee of those investments may change at times
when you cannol purchase, redesm of exchange s and the value of spch
irvesaments will be refleciad in the Fund's next calodated May

Ivestments for which market quotes or market-based valuations e not
readly avzlable are valwed at fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manager or persons acting at their direction The Manager has adopied
rrethods fof valuing seaunbes and other 258818 in ohmstanoss white
rharket quotes ae not readily avalable, and has delegated o PIMCO e
responsibility for apphing the fair valuation methods. In the event that market
quotes o market-fased valsations are not readly vallabde, and the sequnity
oF 35561 Candin b valued pursuant 104 Manager spproved valuaton
rreenodd the value of the seosiny o assetwil be detemnied in good it by
the Valwation Comnirathes. Markel quabes e aofvidensd not readly dailable
In droumstances where there & an absence of ourent or reliable markes-
based data {2 g, rade information, bidask information, indicative market
quotations. (" Broker Cuotes™), Fridng Serdces’ preces), induding where
events oooar after te dose of the refevant market, bt prior o the NYSE
Close, that materially affect the values of the Fund's securities or assels in
addition, market quotes are considersd not readily avatable when, dus o
extraprdinany droumrstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
securilies rade do ol apen Tor irading for he entine dy and no ather
rrarked prces are avalable. The Manager is responsstie hof monitnng
significant events that may matenially atfect the values of the Fund™s secunities
or assets and for determining whether the value of the applicable securiies o
Assets should e reevalusted i light of such Hgnificant events

When 3 Fund uses far valsation o deterrmime the valee of 3 portliolio Seunty
of other asset for purposes of caloulating its MAY, sudh imestments will not
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be priced on the basis of quotes from the pimary market in which they are
traded, bust rather may bé priced by another method that the Manager or
persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value Far valuation may
riegquine wubjective delenminasons aboul the vaiue of & waanity. While

the Tewst's policy 5 intended i result in 2 caboulasion of a Fund's MAY that
fairky reflects security values as of the time of pridgng, the Trust cannot endure
that fair values determined by the Manager of persons &Cling at their
directon winld dccurately refeq the price that & Fund oould obdain Tor 3
gecsiny if inwere o dapose of that seosity 55 of the dme of pridng (o
IFSRANCe, 0 A foroed of chbiressed sale). The prices used by 4 Fund mdy e
Trom thee walue that would be mealized if the seourites wene sold

) Fair Valus Himrarehy L5 GAAP dedcribes farvalue a5 the price that

a Fund wiould receive o sell a0 gaset of pay o transfer 3 hatalingin an orderty
ransacton Detaeen market partiopants a1 the messutement date 18
esiabbshes & fair valuwe ht"fd'l'}'l]' that pricritizes inguts i valuabon methods
and requires. dsdosure of Se fair valie Fierandny, separanely for eadh maor
category of assets and liabilities, that segregates far value measurements inlo
beveds {Lewel 1, 2, or 3} The inputs or methodology used for valuing sequrities
are nod necessanly an indicagion of the risks associated with investing in those
securites. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the far valioe heranchy are defined a3 bollows

= Lovel 1—{uoted pnces in active markets of exchanges for identical assets
and Rabiities

& Ll 2—Sagrificant other abervabie inputs, which may indude, but an
ok limited bo, quoted prices for similar assets of liabdities in markets that are
acive, quoted prices for identical or similar assets of liabilites in markets hat
are nod active, inpits other Bhan queted prices that are observable for the
assets or Babdlites (sudh 35 interest rates, yiebd ourves, volatlities, prepayment
speadds, |oss severitiey, credit reks and defsult rates) or other market
corroborated inputs

& Lind 3—"agraficant unoboenabie inputs based an the bedt informaton
aailatie in the droometances, o the extent cbservable inputs ane not
availabie, which may mclude assumpiions made by the Manager of pérsens
acting at ther direction that ane used in determining the far value of
ITWESIMEN 5

Assets or Babilifies categorized as Level 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
transfermed between Lewels 2 and 3 singe the prior peniod due to changes in
the method wtilized in valuing the imvestments. Transfers from Level 2 to Level
2 are 3 result of 3 change, in e normal course of business, from the use of
waluaticn methodk used by Pricing Senices (Livel 2) ta the e of & broker
quobe of walaation technique which utilizes g gnificant mobsensatde inputs
due to an sbeence of curent or refiable market-bated data (Level 3)

Framsters from Level 3 o Livel 2 afe 3 result of the avaslability of current and
Fidl abke: mruirke -t A3ta prowadied by Priang Seraces of other valu aton
technigues which utilize significant obsensable inpats

In accordance with the requirements of LIS GAAR, the amotnts of Tansers
i and cut of Level 3, i matenal, are dodoesd in the Mobes to Schedule of
Imeestments for each respective Fund

For fair valuations Wing ‘.jl,']!-lll:ill'ﬂ unobdenabie inputs, U S GAAPR requenes
todiscose trarshers into and out of Level 2 of the fair value hiersechy and
pundheirses and isaues of Level 3 assets and liabiliies dunng e period
Addonally, 115 GAAP requenes quantitatie infedmation regardng the
significant uncbservable inputs used in the determination of fair value of
assets of Bablifes categonzed a5 Lewel 2 in the firvalpe heranchy. in
ooondance with the requirements of LS. GAAR, a fairvalue hieradhy, and if
rraterial, details of significant uncbsenable inputs, haee been induded in the
otes to Schedde of Imvestments for each respedive Fund
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e Veluaton Techeiques and 1he Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lewel 1, Lewel 2 and Leval 3 trading assets and trading liahilities, a1

tair value The valsation methods {or "techriques™) and Sgnificant inguts
used in determining the fair values of portfolio secunities or other assets and
[kabilities categonized a5 Level U, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierasdhy
are as follows:

Fimad income securnities indwding corporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
and notes, US. goverenent agendies, LS. reasury obllgations, soveregn
riapes, bank loars, cormeertible prederred Seauites and non-LLS. bonds ane
nermnatly valsed on thie bass of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers. of
Fricing Services that use broker-dealer quotations, reported trades or
valuaton estimates from e intema I.TIICiH'-j migddels, The Fricing Senaces’
Intemal models use inputs that are cbservaile sudn a5 rsuer detalls, inberest
rates, yeld oanves, peepayment speeds, aredt dsksspresds, detalt rates and
quoted prices for mila assets Searities that use ssmillar valuation
technéques and inputs as desaibed above are categorized a5 Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Fousd nciorme sacunities purdhased on a delayed-daiesny batis or 35 3
repunchate comimitment in 3 saeduybadk ransaction are marked 1o market
daily until settiement at the fooward setfernent date and are categonized a5
Level 2 of she fair value hbesarchy

Mortgage-related and asset-backed securities are psually issued as wparate
tranches, or dasses, of seowities within each deal These sequrifies e also
nicemaily valheed by Pridng Sensces that use broker-dealer quotations,
reported trades of valuation estimates from their intemal pricing madels, The
pricing models fior thete secuntied usually consider ranchedevel attributes,
current market data, estimated cath fiows and marketbated yield spreads for
eath anche, and incorporate deal collateral performance, 35 available
Mortgage-related and asset-backed securities that wse similar valuation
tedhneques and inputs a4 descibed above are categonzed a5 Livel 2 of the
fair value hiersnchy

Comenon stodks, ETFs, exchange-iraded notes and finandd denvative
instnuments, sach as funires contracts, FIGhES 3dWaTants, of oplions on
funges that are raded on 3 nasonal securities exchange, are stated at he
Lexst reported sale or settlernent price on the day of valuation. To the extent
these seqmrities are actively traded and valuadon adustments are not appled,
they are categorized as Leved 1 of the fair valwe hierardhy

rvessimenits valued {denominated) in currendes other Bhan the funcional
cusrency of 4 Fund are coneerted B0 the functional aurency using exchange
rates {currency spot and fonward rates) obtained from Pridng Services. As 3
result, e WAV of 3 Fund's units may be affected by dhanges in the value of
cufrences in relation o the funcionsl curendcy. The value of securites raded
I PotEsgn Mdrkers of dendeminabéd in cuffences ofer than i fundonal
curmency may be affected sgnificanthy on a day that the Trust is not open for
business. Valuation adiustments may be spplied to certain securities that are
solely raded on a foreign exchange to gocount for he markel movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close Thess seqeiies
are wvalued using Friang Senvices that consider the correlation of the rading
patberns. of the foreign seaurity to the intraday trading in the L5 markets for
imeestments Secanities using these valuation adustments are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierardhy. Frefermed sequeites and ather equities
trachd on irgctive markets of valued by rebetence b Smilar insruments ane
also categoned a% Levell 7 of the Tar walue hieranchy

Equinyinked searines are valeed by referencing the last reponed Su_il". o
sertement price of the linked referenced equity on te day of valuation
Foresgn exchange adusiments are spplied 1o the |ast reponed price 1o

comvert the linked equity’s rading qurrency to the contracts settling cusmmency
These imvestments are cateqorized 2 Level 2 of the fair vaue hierarchy

Imeeshiments n regstensd open-end imiestment companies (olher than ETF)
wlll b vl e brbed upcn thie NANVS of such imvestments and are categonbed
a4 Liwel 1 of the fair value hierardy. Investments in enegistensd open-end
imneestment companies will be caloulated based upon the NAVS of sudh
Ieveesiments and ane considened Level 1 proveded ]atl te NAVS ane
ciervable, Ciloulated daly and sne the value &% which both purdhases and
Salies will e conducied

ValuaBon adqustments may be applied to certain exchange traded futures and
opdons e aooount for market movement between the eodhange settement
and the NYSE dose These weapities ae valuwed wan g quates obtaned from a
quitation reporting system, establiched market makers of pricing senddes
Finandal derivatives using these valuation adwstments are categanized a5
Leved 2 od thie B3ir vadue higrandhy

Eginty ecchanige-traded opBons and over the counter finandal demvative
ImsEnmeends, such as forward foreign cumency contracts and oplions contracs,
derive their value from underiing asset prices, indeces, reference rates, and
other inputs or 3 combsnation of tese faciors These contracts are mommally
walied on the basis of quotes obianed from a quatation Ternng Sysiem,
established market makers or Pricing Sendces (normally determined a5 of the
WrSE Close). Depending on the prodisct and the terms of the transacion,
finandal derivative instnuments. can be valued by Fridng Senvices wsing a
seimed of technigques, indindng simulation pnang madels. The priang model s
s ingus that ane cbeeneed from actvely quoted markets such a8 quoted
prices, kssuer detals, indices, badfask preadk, infenest rates, implied
wolatilies, vield curves, dvidends and exchange rates. Finanda derfvatie
irsenements that use simelas valuaton techniques and nputs as desoibed
ADOVE BTe CategnDed &5 Livel 2 wof the fair valwe hierandy

Centrally deared swags and ower the counter svaps detive their value from
underhying aset prices, indices, reference rates, and ofher inputs or 8
comibination of these facors. They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
dquotation of on markel-hated prices provided by Predng Senices ormally
determened as of the WY SE Closel). Centrally déaned swaps and ower the
counter svaps c@n be valued by Pridng Senices useng a series of techniques,
indudng simulation picing models The pridng modefs may use inputs that
arie obeanad trom Sotvely quoted muarkers sudh 58 the cvernighlindex Saap
rane (TOIS7), LBOR forwiand fase, inlerest ranes, yield durves and credin
spreads Thide sscurtes afe categonned a5 Lével 2 of the far valus eerandy

when a fair valuation method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unodserdable Inputs, evestments will be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
e Categonized & Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Primy piicandg prcuobcunes 561 e bade price of  foosd sncome security and
wbbegquenthy sdust the pice proportionaly o markel value changes of a pré-
determined secunty desmed 1o be comparabie in deration, generallya U%
Treasury of Sovensign note based on country of issuance The bate price may
e 3 broker-dealer quate, Bransaction price, of an intemal value a5 deved Ly
Nyl of market data The base price of the ey gy be reset on @
peridic buasds based on the avalability of market dats and procedures
approvied by the Valuation Ceeraght Cormimattes. Signelicant changes m the
unobservable inputs of the prosy pridng peocess (the base price) would result
in direct and proporticnal changes in the fak value of the sequnity. These
seqtites are cateqorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value Merarchy

If ghindparty evauated vendor prdng is not available of not deemed 10 be
indicative of fair value, the Manager may elect 1o obtain Broker
Cunoties, directly from the beoker-dealer of passed-through Broker Quate from
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a thirdparty vendor In the event that fair value is based upon a single
sourced Eroker Quote, these sequrities are categorized as Level 3 of the fair
walue hisrarchy. Broker Quotes are typically recehved from established market
partifpants. Although independently receiosd, the Manager dost not has
the transpanency b view the wnderhing inputs iwhich suppadt the market
quatation. Significant changes m the Broker Quate would hawe dnect and
propoetional changes in the far value of the seauity

Ehoet-tenm debl instrunen s (Such oS Conimer 038 paper) having 4 remaning
rnarurity of 60 days or less may be valued a1 amomsoed oos, solong as e
amortized oost value of such short-term debs instruments is approsdmately the
same a5 thie far value of e insirument & determined without the use of
amorized costvaluation. These secuities are categonzed as Level 2 or Level
2 ol the fair value hierandey depending on the sounce of the base pace

4. SECURITIES AHD OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a] Delayed-Delivery Transactions Certain Funds may pundhase o 44
seowities on 3 delayed-defivery basis These ransacSons involve a
coemeiment by @ Fund to purchase o sell securites for a predetermined grice
or yield, with payrnent and defvery taling plade binsond the custornary
settlement pericd. When delayed-delivery ransactions ane gutstanding,

4 Fundwall destgnate or recene 55 collaberal lquid a5sels in an amaunt
suffichent v et the purdnase proe of respective obgabord. When
purchasing & seqanity on a delaged-delivery bads, a Fund assumes the rights
and risks of emerdrip of thie seounity, induding the side of price and yield
fluctuasons, and fakes wch fluchsations into oot when detemining it
WAy A Fund may dispose of o renegaliate 4 delayed-delivery transaction
after it is entered into, wiech may resltin 3 realized gain of loss. Wihen

2 Fund has sold 3 security on a delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partidpate in future gains and loses with respedt to the security

k] Inflatignd ndexed Bends  Certan Funds may imvest in inflanonndeded
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fieed income sequrities whiose prindpad
waiue is periodically sdjusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
these bonds is generally fixed at isssance ata rate lower than hpical bonds
Ot the life of an inflation-indexed bond, hitwever, interestwill be pard
bazed on a prinapal valwe, which is adjusted for inflation. Any incease o
dedgrease in the prindpal amoent of an inflationndexed bond will be induded
asinterast income on the tatements of Operatons, even though imvestors do
ot recevie their prind pal uns mananity. Regeyrment of the orgna bond
pinicpal upon maturty (i adjusted fof inflatea) B quaranteed in the case of
LS. TIPS, For bonds that do not provide a simila guarantes, the adusted
pincipal value of the bond repaid st maturity may be less than the original
prindpal

Ied Loan Participa tions, Assignments and Originations  Certain Funds may
Irvestin dirext debt imstruments which are interests in amounts owed i
lendérs o lending syndicabes by corporabe, governimental, of other bommoeer
A Funeds mvestiments in boans may be in the lorm of pamadpatons in loans of
auspgnments of Al or a porticn of laans from thind paities of ifvetments @ of
onginations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by 3 bank or
ofer Ananaal institution (e "lender”) hat B05 &5 30en for &l holders. The
agent administers the terms of the losn, a5 spedfed in thie loan AresEnt

A Fund mury imeest in mulliple sies of randnes of & loan, whidh mary b
vanying terms and camy different assodated nsks When a Fund purdhases
asshgnments from lenders if aoguires direct fights against the bomowers of the
lpans. Thiese loans may indude partidpations in beidge loans, which ze kbans
taken out by bomowers for 3 short period (oyplcally bess than one year)
pencding arrangement of more permanent finandng through, for examgle, e
isarance of bonds, frequenthy high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
aoquisisons

The types of loams and related investments in which the Funds may invest
indude, among athers, senior loans, subordnated loams fndoding second
lien loans, B-Motes and mezzaning koans), whole kans, commengal real
eilabe and ofher comemescial laans and structured baans. A Fund may
arignate |oans of aoquare direct interests in loans thiough pamary [oan
disributions anddor in private ransactions. In the cade of wbordnated |loans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borrowen™s
obligatcn 1o the holdes of such 4 doan, indiding i @ event of the
boimower's insoheency. Mezzanine loans ie typlcaly seomed by 3 pledoe of
& eCualy INDERESTin the Momgage boimower thal owns the real estate rather
thah an inkerestin 3 mortgage

Envestmends i loans may indude unfunded boan commaments, whidh are
contrachual obdigatons for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may ndude
revolving dredit faglifes, which may obligate a Fund to supply additional cath
to the bomowver on demand. Unfunded loan commitments reprecent a future
obligaticn in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
il b usilied by the borrowesr When imvesling in 3 loan patiopaton,

A Fund has the Aght 1o recens: payments of prndapal, mterest and any tees to
winchit i entitled only from the lendeer selling the loan sgeement and only
upon receipt of pavments By the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
FenEn® 4 Commitment e based on the undrawn portion of the underying
line of credt pertion of 3 koan. In certain crcumstances, 3 Rund iy regEE 3
penalty fee wpon the prepayment of 3 loan by & boromer Fees eamed or
paid are recorded a5 2 component of intenest income of interest expense,
respecively, on the $tatements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
e refecied a5 a lability on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

b Morigage-Related and Oiker Asset-Backed Securities Centain Funds may
Ieviesst in morfgage-retated and othier B5et-badked seoum tes that deecdy of
indinecsty represent & pariidpation in, o ane seoured by and payable from,
lans on res property. Mortgage-related securithes are aeated from pools of
residential or commendial mortgage loans, induding morgage oans made by
savings and loan institutions, mortgage barkers, commerdal bankcs and
others. These sequriies provide a monthly payment which consists of both
interest and principal. Interess may be detemuined by fed or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underlying morgages wall atlect the pace and
wolatility of a mortgage-rel ated secwity, and may have the effect of
shortening of exteniding the effective duration of the security relaive towhat
wizs antaipated at the Gme of purchaze. The timely payment of prindpal and
interest of cemain morigage-rel sted sequntios is guaranteed with the full tath
and credit of the LS. Govemment Poold dreated and quarantesd by non
gemrmimental issuers, induding govemiment-sponsoned corpofations, may be
supported by various fiorms of knsurance or guarantees, but there can beno
Essurande el private NSurers of quararions cain meet thelr obligaticers under
thé insierance polides or guasanies arangements. Many of the risks of
Ieresting im mortaage-til dted seouities senured by commencal momgage
loans refiect the effects of Iogal and other economic conditicns on real estate
markets, the shility of tenants to make lexse payments, and the abifityof a
property i atiract and retan tenants. These sequries may be less liqued and
iy exhebit greater price wolztility than other types of morigage-related or
other asset-backed secunties. Other seetbadead secmitfies are aeated from
many types of agers, induding, but not limied fo, auto loans, accounts
receivable, such as aedt cand receivables and hospatal acoount receivables,
e quaty loans, student boand, boatloans, mobale Roms loard,
recreationdl vehide loans, manufacianed housing boans, anralt leass,
computer ket and yyndcated bank loans The Fund may investin amy v
ol the captal stacture of an issuer of morgage-badked or assel-hacked
seCurines, induding the equity of "Srst loss” ranche

I Collaterslized Marigage Obligatians ("CAC:") are debt obligations of 2
Il eniiny 1hat are collaterabped by whale mortgages boans of private
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micetgage bonds and divided into dasses . CMIOs are struchored inko muliple
dasses, often refered o a5 “tranches”, with eadh dass beaning a different
stated matunty and enfited to 3 different schedube for payments of prinopal
and interest, incuding prepayments. CMOS may be less liquid and may exhilar
greater pnce yvolatility than ofher fypes of mortgage-related of asel-baded
secilies

i Stripped Martg ege-Backed Securities (SMES") are dervatie multi<las
mortgage securiies. SMES are usually structured wath fao classes that receie
different proportions of the interest and prindpal distributions on a podl of
rcemgage assers. An SMES wall have one dass that wall necene all of e
Ineresl {the intered-only of ~I07 dass), while Bhe ather dass will recese the
enfire prindpal (the prindpal-only o "PO° dass). Payments received for K05
areincuded in inferestincome on the Satements of Operations. Becauie no
prinvcipa will be received at e matnity of g 10, adusiments e made (o
the cost of the seairity on a monthly bask untl maturicy. These adusmments
ané inchuded in interestingome on the Statements of Operatons Fayments
received for PO are eated as reductions to the cost and par value of the
senwilties

ig) Collateralized Debt Obligations ("C 005 7) indude Collateralized Bond
Obiigations ("CBOs™), Collaterakzed Loan Ciligations ("C10s™) and othes
simd aely stnpcmred seCurines. CBOS and CLOS are types of asset-badoed
securities. A CBO S & trust which is backed by & deversi§ed podl of high risk,
below mvestment grade foed income seamities. A CLO s a tast typically
collateralized by a podl of [oams, which mayindude, among others, domesiic
and foreign senior secured bpans, senior unseoured loans, and subordinate
corporate loars, indudng koans that may be rabed below inmvesiment grade o
exquivalent unrated loans. The rigks of an investment in 3 CDO depend Largely
on the type of the collaneral sacurities and the diass of the CD0 in whidh

a Fund imwests. in addition to the normal risks assodsed with fioed inoome
securities dhocussed eloeahens in thid repoet and B Finds' CIFefing
Mimnceandum (2.q., prepayment sk, oredit nak, ligudty nsk, maroet mk,
struechural ridk, legal rik and nberest rate ik dahich may be excerbated if
the interest rate payable on & stnactured finandng dhanges based on
multiples of changes in intenest rates of imversely to changes in interest
ratesh, CBOs, CLOs, and other COOS camy aoditoanal risks induding, bt not
fiemted b0, () the possitality Sat distributioes Fom collateral securites will pot
b adequate tomake interest or ofher payments, (i) e quality of the
coilateral may dedine in value or defaudt, fii) the sk that a Fund may insest
in CBOs, CLOs, or other C00s that are sbordinate to other dasses, and (i)
the complex: siracture of the sequrity may not be fully understond at the Sme
o imvestrmeent and may prodce disputes with the issue of unexpected
Irverstment results

{hl Payment In-Kind Securities Certain Funds may invest in payment indind
sequrities ("PIKs™). Plks may give the issuer the opSon at eadh interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor add Gonal
diebd securibes. Those addtional debt securimes wually hawe the same tems,
Induding ma ety dates and ebenest rates, and sisodated nisks a4 the
obginal bondts. The daily markel quotations of the crignal bonds mdy indisde
the socued interest (refemed to 35 2 “dirty price”) and require a pro rata
Adusbment fromm the wnrealized sppredation of depredation on imesments
o inkerest recenvable on the Stements of Asets and Latdites

i} Restricied Securities Cemain Funds muay hold sediments that ane subject
1o |egal or contrachudl redmicBond on retale Thede seosities iy be sold
prvwabely, bt may be redquined 1o be regetered of exempled from such
regustration bedore being sold 1o the public. Private placement secunities ane
generally considered to be restricted. Disposal of restricted investments may
IFvhve e -CONSLITHNG RegoBanans and expendes, and prompl sale atan
aoceptable price fay be GTS0AT W0 Schieve, Restricted imvesiments held by

the Funds at October 31, 2021, a5 applicable, are dsdosedin the Notes o
“chedule of Investments

§ Strctured Netes  Ciertam Fund mady imvest in straCiured notes and osher
il anesd v Arameris, wihiich ane prisvately negotiated debt obligatons in which
the principal and or interest is determined by reference o the performance of
& benchinark: asset, merket of Enferest rate (30 "embedded index”), such a5
sebecied sequnities, an index of sequnities o spedified mierest rates, of the
differential performance of b Je05 of markess, such & indexes reflecing
bonds. Stnuctured instruments may be issued by comporations, induding
banks, & well & by governmental agendies. The temms of such siruciured
imshurments normaly provide that their prindipal andfor inlerest payments are
1o e adusted upwands or downwands but ordinanby not below zera) to
reflect changes in the embedded index whike te stuctured instnoments are
outstanding As a result, the ingerest andfor prind pal payments that may be
made on a srudured product may vany widsly, depending on a variety of
factees, ndudng the volatity of the erbedded index and the effec of
chaanges in the embedded indes on prindpal andie mbened parments

i) 1.5, Government Agencies or Gavernssent-3porsared Enterprises

Certaln Flancs may invest in senuities of U5 Govemment agendes of
gevernment-sponsored enterpeises, U S, Government sequrities are
aibligatices of and, in certain cases, guaranteed by, the LS, Government, its
agendies of instnumentadities. Some U5, Govemment securities, sudh as
Treasurg bills, notes and bonds, and securities quaranteed by the Govemment
Hationa Morigage Awadaticn (TGNMAT o "Ginnie Mae®), e supoorted
By the Tl fath and credit of the U5 Governiment; others, dudh as thode of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ane supporied by the rght of the issuer i
bormow from the U5, Deparment of the Treasusy (the "US. Treatury™); and
others, such & those of the Federal National Mortgage Assodiation (“FNMA”
o “Fanmee Mae"), ane wippodated by the doethonany suthonty of the LS
Gorvernment (o punchase e s08ncys obligatons. LS. Gowernrmient Seouries
iy Enchude Zeno Coupon seaurlies, which donot detibute niterett on 4
current bacis and tend 1o be subiect 1o 2 greater risk than interest-paying
seurites of similar maturites

Govemment -related guarantors (i &, not backed by the full faith and qedt of
the L5, Govemment) indude FUMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Comporation (FHLMC" or "Feddie Mac™), FNMA B 2 govemment-sponsored
corporion. FHMA punchadses comventional § & . nal sfiured of guarantesd by
ary ovemment agency) ressdinial mortgages Trom 4 list of sppeoved
seliersfiervicers which ndude state and Tederally chartened savings and loan
associaBions, mutual sadngs banks, commendal banks and edit ursons and
morigage bankers. Pass-throwgh sequnties ssied by FNMA are guaranteed a5
1o himedy payment of prindpad and interest by ENIVLA, BiT are not Daddoed by
the full Taish and credit of e U5 Government. FHLMC issues Parmdipation
Cerfificates (TFCs™), which are pass-through seqmities, eadh representing an
wndivided inferest in 2 pool of residential mongages FHLMC guarantess the
timedy payment of interest and ulBimate collection of prindipal, but PCs @enot
padbed by the full faith and credt of the U 4 Govemment

I Jume 20119, FHMA and FHLMWC started issuing Undorm Morigage Badied
Securites (TUMES™) in plage of their cumrent offerings of TBA-eligible
seaufines (the ~Single Seourity milstive™) The Sngle Secanty Inibative seeks
Lo Supepecr® the cveral]l liqueding of the TBA markel and aligns the
characieristics of FMMA and FHLMC certificaces. Thie ellecis that the Singie
Security initi ztve may have on the market for TEA and other morigage-
backed sequrities are uncestan

Rl -Eming strategies can be wsed where 3 Fund sesks o extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, such as a TEA security on an underlying
asset, by dosing out the position before expiration and opening a new
position with respect bo substantialy the same underhang asset with alater
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expiralion date TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
“Hatements of Assets and Liabalities as an asset o liablity, respectively

il When-szued Transactions Certain Funcs may purchase or sell sequrites
o 3 when-ssoed basis. Thete ransactions are made condiionally because a
security, although authoriaed, has not yer been issued in the market
Tramsactions to punchate oe sl secwities on 3 when 4saed basis imohe

a commitmen? by 3 Fund 1o puncharce or sell these seauities for 3
predenermuned price of yield, wath payment and delvery Liking plae beyond
the aussomany seitlerment pesiod A Fund may Sell wisen-1saed seauntie
Brforee thiy ane detiverid, whach may resultin a realized gain oe hoss

im) Bank Obligatiens Eank obligations in which a Fund may imvest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceplandces, and Boed time deposits
Certificates of deposit are negotiatle certificanes issued against funds
deposited in a cormmerdial bank for 2 definite period of tme and eaming a
apecified el Bankers' scceplanoes sie negolutie dratts o bills of
exchange, normaly drawn by an importer of eporter 1o pay for speafic
mefchandee, which ane ~ accepied” by & bank, meaning, in eflect, thal the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the insrument cn
MATUriy: Fixed time deposits are bank obligations payable ar a stated
aturity date and beanmg inderest ot 3 Ted rate. Fooed Sime depotits may be
withdrawn on demand by the irveston, but may be subject 1o early
withdrasal penalties wiich vary dependng upon market condiions and the
remaining maturity of the chiigation

inl Perlormanca-Linked Notes Cierain Funds investin performance-inked
nates that ane issued by Credit Suisse intemational (the ~Fes Agent™) and
seek 1o radk the performance of the FAIMCO Bermuda income Fund (M)

(" Performance-Linked Noes™) In the case of !e JFY Performance-Uinked
Hotes Bssied, the perfomnance of sudh nates will b hedged 1o the Japanase
yen by Credt Suisse intemational using a progrietary formula, As explained in
greater detad in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the papment of placament
fees to certain Japanese deiibitons In order for the Fee Agent o hedge
certan of its exposures under e Fee Agent Appointment Agreement (a5
difined in Mate 9), itis eqecied that from Grme 5o ime certain Clatses of the
FIMICO Bammuda income Fund E will investin Perfoemance-Linked Mates in an
amount spedfied by the Fee Agent. Al the time of meent induding, but not
fienined o, any redemption of units of the FIMCD Bermuda income Fund E
amd & step-down of the applicable Percentage Conngent Defered Sales
Charge TCOACT), a0 defined in Mate 9, the Performance-Lisked Nates hdd
Ery thee Fund will b pastially redesmed acooedingly m ofder 1o marntan te
total walue of Performance-Unked Nates in the Fund's inves ment portiolio
equal 1o or below the amount of the COGC spplicable 1o the respecive
Classes of the Fund plus 0 2066 mudtiplied by the NAY of the respective
Classes of the Fund Perfoemance-Lnked Hotes afe valsed daily. Thelr viaiue |3
baved on the pior day NAY of the PIMCO Barmuda Income Fund (M} With
respect (o the value of the JFY Perfrmance-linked Motes, a propietary
hiedging formula is aleo apgifed The Fund cannce ransfer the Ferfomance-
Linked Nodes o any othes purty aside from the Fee Agentwithout the prcd
wiillén agreement of the Fee Agent

5. EORROWINGS AND OTHER FINAHCING TRANSACTIONS

The: follcwing disdosures contan informanion on the Funds” sbdlity to kend of
bcemowy cash of securies to the extent permitted under the Offering
Memioeandum;, which may be vewed & borowing or finandng transactions
Ery the Funds. The location of Sese instnaments is desaibed below. Fora
detaded descaiption of gredit and counterparty fisks that can be assocated
with bommving: and other fnanamg rarsachons, pleade see Note 7,
Prindpal and Other Risks

s} Repurchase Agresments  Cerfan Funds may engage o repurchise
SresEmeils Under the temms of a T,‘lil(nﬂ P chaes SEErNEnL,

& Fund puerchates a0 underling debl obigation (collatersl) sabject 1o an
cidigation of the seller to repurchase, and & Fund to resedl, the obfigation at
an agreed-upon price and sme. In an open maturiy reperchase agreement,
e Is no pre-determin ed repurchase date and the Fyeement Can be
termminated by the Fund o counderparty &t gy ime. The market value of the
collateral misst be equal ba or exceed the total amcamt of the repurchase
obligations, indudng interest Repurchase agresments, induding acaued
Imterest, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Ligtsliies nberest
eamed is recorded a5 3 component of interest income of the Statements of
Operaions. in periods of increased dernand for collateral, & Fund may pay a
fee for recapt of collaterd, whach may result in interes t expenie 1o the Fund

b Reverze Repurchase Agreaments Cerfan Funds may enter into reverse
repunchase agreements. In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
seqity in exchange for cash o a finandal instilu@on, the counterparty, with
& unrmlLafeous sgresrnent 10 fepuldhade the Saime of substantially thi Lame
secufity at an aghesd upon price and date. In a0 Open MBRUIATY riverse
repundhase sgreernent, there is no pre-determined repanchase date and the
Agreerment can be terrminated by the Fund or counterparty a1 anry time

A Fund |5 entitled 1o reehve prindipal and interest payments, if amy, made o0
thee: Seounty delivensd 1o the counterpary durng e e af e deEmEnt
Cash recenvid in eochange for secuntles delivened pius Somusd nterest
payments bo be made by 3 Fund to counterparthes. are reflected as a liabality
on the Statements of Assats and Lishilities Interest payments made by a fund
to counferparties are recorded & a component of inferest expense on the
Statements of Operations. in periods of increased demand for the sequrity,

a Fund may recee 3 fiee for use of the secunity by She counterparty, whidh
may rewlTin interest income i 3 Fund. A Fund will segregate assats
determined 10 be liquid by PIGCO or will ofhensise cover its obligatons
under reverse repurchase agesments

i Sale-Buybacks Certain Fends may enter into financng ransactions
refemed 10 a5 “sale-buybacks' A sale-buybadk financng vansaction congsis
of 3 sake of 3 wcurity by 4 Fund i a finandal instituSon, the counberpany,
with & smuiltaneoos agreement ta repunchase the same o substantialy the
same sequnity at an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is not entitled 1o
receret princpal and interest parenls, if Ay, e on e Security sold 1o
the countenparty dunrg the tenm of he agreement The Jgresd-upon
proceeds for securilies to be repurchased by & Fund ane neflecled at a liailiy
o the Sraberments of Assets and Liakalities. A Fund well recognie net indime
represented by the price differential between the price received for the
transfemed seourity and the agreed-upon repurchase price. This i commonly
refemmed 10 35 the ‘price drop’, A price drop consises of §) the faregone interest
and inflazionary incoeme adusiments, if ary, & Fund woulkd have othenwise
recefved had the security nof been sold and i) the negotiated finandng terme
between 2 Fund and counterparty Foregone inferest and infladonary income
adius ments, if 2y, are recorded as components of Enterest income on the
Statements of Operatons, Interest payments based updn negotiated finandng
Temres meacke by & Fund Lo coumnberparties ane redonded 25 2 companent of
Interest eqense on the Statements of Operations, In penods of increased
demand for the searity, a Fund may receive a fee for use of the saqurity by
e Comnienparty, which mdy resdtin intenest Roome 0.4 Fund. A Fund well
Segregate ey determenid o be lguid by PIMCO o will ofenwite oover 13
ciligancas wnder sale-buybad: wansschons

i Short Salex  Certain Funds may eniter inlo short takes ransactions. Short
sales ane ransacions in which the Fund sells 3 security that it may not cen
A Fund may make shoet sabes of sequnities to () offseq potenta dedines in
bong pesations in sirilar securities, (1) o Indease the flexitbiliey of the Fund,
(i or imvesment rewm, {iv) as pan of a nisk arbivage srategy, and (v} &
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part of its overall portigio management sirategies imalving the use of
dervalive instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the sequnity sold short and deliver it to the @unterparty. The Fund will
ordinadity have 10 pdy 3 Bee o prermium bo bormow 2 security and be cbligated
10 fegray the lender of the security any dividend or inferest that accrues on the
sicur by dirineg the pericd of the loan Sedurities sold in short sale Iransackions
and the dvidend or inferest payable on wdh cecunties, if any, are reflecied a4
prayable for shiort sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabdities. Short sales
expod s Funed b the rsk: thatit wall be regquined by ooves 1t shor pesion
Al tamee when The Secunty of affer as5et has appreaited in value, thus
fiesultng in bosses 1o the Fund A short sale 15 " against the baox™ it

thee Fund hiodds in its portfolio or has the right 1o aoquine the seosity sold
shot, of sequrities dentical 1o the security sold shoe, atno additional cost

A Funedwill be subject 10 addiional fsks to the extent thatit engages in shor
sales that are not "aganst the box ™ A Fund's [oss on a short sale coubd
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund & unable, for whateeer
reason, fo dose aut its shoet posibon

{ed Lirme of Cradit FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered info 2 364-
dhay sendor unsecured revaving aredit agreement wath the Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishd UE), (td & MUEG™) and other comemencial banks to be wiilized for
temporany purposes to fund Unstholder redemplions of for other short-tenm
Toquickty purporses. MURG senves 3¢ both abank and & an agent for other
banks that are parties to the agreement PIMCO Bemuda Bank Loan Fund
(M) s Sendnding dharges Dased an & ooribinason of LIBDR-based wanable
plus a oredit spread. The Fund also pays a fee of 0 275% per annum on the
unirsed cormitment amounts. The agreement was renewed on Augest 21,
2021 and expires on August 21, 2022 unless exdended of renswed Theneis a
i avallable comenitment amoont for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund {4 egual to $45,000.000. Frior 1o August 21, 2021, the maxmunm
arvalable comratment smcunt for the Fund was §55, 000,000 and the Fund
paid & fei of 0.275% per annum on the urased commREIMEnt semoants
Commitment, upfront and interest fees of $736,435 paid by FAIMCO Bermuda
Eank Loan Fund (M) e inglieded in interest expense in the Statements of
Operations

Dring the period, there were no Borrowings on tis Bne of aedt

6. FINAHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMEATS

Thie bl cwaig discersures oontaen informanon o how Endwiny the Funds use
firanciad diernvative instruments 2 hos financal devaive insruments.
affect e Funds’ finandal position, results of operasions and cash flows The
location amd fair value amouns of these insruments on the Statements of
Asgets and Lisbelinies and $he net resbzed gain (loss) and net change in
unrealized spprecation (depredstion) on the Statemwnts of Operatons, sacth
categoeized by type of finandal derivative conract and redated risk exposure,
are indudad in a table in the Nodes to Schedule of Investments The finandal
derwative insruments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
realized gain Joss) and net dhange inunrealized appredation Heprediation)
an finandal derrvative instruments during the period, a5 disdosed in the
Hotes b Schedule of vesiments, senve 2 indcatons of te volurme of
financal derivalive acivity for the Fundt

|&) Forweard Foresgn Currency Contracts  Cerfain Funds may engage in
forward foreign cumency contrads in conneciion with seting planned
purchases of sxles of secufites, i hedge the Curtency expasure xsodated
with sofme of all of & Fund's securities of a5 part of an investrment strategy. A
forwand foreign cumrendy contrad is an agnesmment bebwieen bvo parties 1 buy
and sell @ qurency at 4 sel price on a future date. The market value of a
fomward foreign oarendy contrad flectuates with changes in forsign ourmency
xchange rates. Fonwvand fonesgn ourmency contracts afe mardked 1o market
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daily, and the change in vaue is recordsd by a Fund a5 an unrealized gain o
hoss, Bealized gans or losses are equal to the difference between the value of
the contract at the Gme it was opened and the value at the time itwas dosed
and are redonded upon delroeny or receipd of the curency These confracs
iy imvohve market risk in excess of the uniealized gasn or lo2s refected on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbelities. In addition, & Fund could be expoged
to risk: if the counterparties are unable 10 meet the tenme of the contracts or if
the: wakue of the curmency dhanges unfavorably ro e functional asrendy. To
ritigane such nak, cash of ssquntes may be exchanged & oollaneral pursiiant
Lo the termns of te undeshying CoNKRCEs

Certain Fnds, having a hedged Class, may also enter into forward foreign
CUrrency Contracts designed o offset the effect of hedging at the Fund fevel in
arider. 10 leave the hedged Class with an expasine to arrendes other than the
functional asmency There can be no guarantee that these Class spedific
forwrand foreign aurrency contracts wall be successful

i) Futares Contracts Certin Funds may enter nto futures confracts. A
futures confract is an agreement to bury or sell 3 sequnity or other asset for a
set price on 2 future date and is raded on an exchange A Fund may use
futures contracts to manage its expasure (o the sequnties markets of
Frvements in interést rates and curmendy values. The primany risks aisodated
with the use of hubures contracts ane the imperfect comelation between the
change in market value of the securiies held by a Rand and the prices of
fubures contracts and the possibility of an illiquid market. Fubares confracts
arie walped barted upon thise quoted daily setderment prices. Lipan eflefing
inbt & futures contract, 4 Fund is redquired 1o deposit with it futures boker an
amount of cash, LS. Govemment and Agency Obligations, of select sowefesgn
debit, in acoordance wilh the indtial mardgin requinements of the broker o
-E'Jtl'}'l&‘-:?é Futures confracks are marked 1o market {ﬁh‘ and based on swch
mcyements in 1he price of the conmacts, an appropn#e payable of receivable
for the change in value My be posied of ooll ected tey the Fund (TFulres
WaraBon Margin ™). Futures Vaniation Margns, if any, are dsdosed within
cendraly deared finandal desivative instruments on the $1alements of Assets
and Listelities. Gains or losses are recognized but nod considered realized unbl
the conbracts expine of dose. Rutunes contracts imabve, 1o varying degress,
rick of bogs in matess of the Futures Vanation Margn induded within
exchange raded or centrally deared financal dervative insruments on the
Statements of Assers and Liabdifies

el Optiors Contructs Cérlain Funds may wiihe or purchase aptiond 1o
erfance refums of i hedge an existing position or fubre invesiment. Certain
Funds may write call and put opfions on securites and financial derrvative
irshnements they own or by which they may invest Wiiting put optices tends
o indease a fund's exposune 80 the underdying instrument. Writing call
options tends to dedreaze a Fund's expodure bo e underhing instrument
Wien a Fundwrites a call or put, an amount equal f0 the premium received is
recorded and subsequenty marked to market bo refiect the cument value ¢f
U it on wiritten. Thse amounts ane indoded on she Satements of Assits
and Lisbelities. Premaune recened fnom writng opions which apine ane
treated as reslized gams. Presmiumms receivid from writing options whidh ane
exengised or doged are added to the procesds of ofset against amounts pasd
on the undethang fustures, swap, SECUINTY o QUITENCY Tansaction Lo delermrne
the: realized gan of 1065, Céfimh ApUONS May be wrilten with premiums 1o be
determened on 4 fulere dase. The premiums for thse opions an tased upan
implied wodatility parameters at spedfied lerms. A Fund as awriter of an
option has no confrol over whether the underhing kvstnament may be soid
call ") or purchased "put”y and a5 a result bears the market risk of an
unfavorable change in the price of the insrument underying the wiitien
option. There is the nsk & Fund may not be able 1o enter into adosing
tranzacion because of an ilquid marker
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Certain Funds may also puschase put and call opSons. Purchasing call options
tends to inrease a Fund's exposure to the underdying instrument, Purchasing
put cpSons tends to dedrease a Fund's exposure to She underhying instrument
A Fund gt prernium which & indudéd a4 an asset on the Saternents of
Assers and Listalimes and subsequently marked to market 1o reflect the
current value of the option. Fremiums paid for ponchasng aptions which
expure ane treated &5 realized lodses Certain opticers may be purdchased with
premiums 10 be determaned on 4 fulare date. The premsunms for hese opons
are Dased upon irpbed vosatlity parameners an sped fied temms, The sk
Aot yted wath purchaang put nd call opoons & Bmebed to the prefmium
paid. Fremiunme paid for purdhasing aptions which ane exerdsed or dided ane
added i the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underlyng
irvesement transaction to detenming the reakzed gain of loss when the
umderhying Farsachon is expoyted

Credit Delault Swaptions Cemain Funds may wote of purchase aédin kel
Sevapiticans. i hdge axposure e e el sk of an imeestment wikioul
Fraking & cofrrritment 1o hie wnderhing insrument A onedit default swaption
s an optcn to sell o buy credt protechon to 4 spealc reference by entenng
intg a pre-defined awap agreement by some spedfed date in the future

Faraign Currency Optens Certain Funds may wnte o purchase foreign
currency apbors to be uvsed a5 a shortor long hedge against possible
wari a%ons in foreign exchange rates of 1 galn exposure [0 forsign umrendes

InflationCappad Options Certain Funds maywrite or purchase infladion-
capped options to enhance refums of for hedging opportunities. The purpose
of purchasing inflation-capped oplions is to probec 2 Fund from infaton
ercrsion abowe 3 certain rate on 3 gven notional wposune. A floor can be
used B give downiside profecon o investments in inflationdinked products

Interest Rate Swaiptions Certan Funds mdy witle of purdhase intenest rale
wvapticens which are opions to-enter into a pre-defined avap agreement or
to shorten, extend, cancel or ofhersise modify an existing awap agreement,
bry somme specified date in the future The writer of the swaption becomes the
counserparty o the seap if the biyer exercises, The Enberest rate swapBon
agreemment wal spedify whether the buyer of the seapion will be a foed+ ate
receroer of 3 fied-rate payer upon exerdse

Dptiors on Exchange: Traded Futures Contracts  Certien Funch may weite of
purchase options on exdhange-raded fununes contracts (" Fulures Opdion ") 1o
hedge an edsting position o future investment, for speoulative purposas or fo
manage exposre o maket movements. A Fetuzes Oplion is an option
contract in whidh the undertying insrument is 2 sengle futures contract

Optiors on Secwrities Certain Funds maywiile or purchase options on
senuities toenhance refms of 1o hedge an exsting positon of future
IrvESEMEnT. AN Spbon on A ety uses & ipeahed sequnity i the underhing
instrument for the option conrad

id] Swoup Agreaments Certan Funds imdy imaesl in Swap sgréements Swap
Agreementy ane bilaterally negatsed agreementy bedween 3 Fund and a
counterparty 1o echange o Swap imvestrment cash Sows, aseets, foreign
cymrencies of market-linked renams 31 spedfied, fture intervals. Swap
AEEENLS My be privatedy I‘-E‘Qﬁ]—‘.:-’l[éﬂlﬂ the OTC market ar Iy b cleared
thecaunh a third party, known & a central countemarty of delivatives dearing
onganization ("centrally deared ssaps™). A Fund may enter into asset, gedt
detault, ooss-qumendy, interest rate, tota retum, variance and other forms of
WWED ageements. (o manage its exposire to gedi quimendy, interest rate,
commodity, equity and inflation risk In connection with these agresments,
securilies of cash may be identified as collateral or mangin in accondance with
the terms of the retpective avap agresments 1o prosade assets ol waloe and
recourse in the event of defiault or bankruplopinscbwency

Centrally deared swaps are marked 1o market daily hased upon valuatcns a5
determined from the underbying oontract or in accordance with the
requisements of the central coenterparty o dervatives dearing crgarization
Changes in macket value, i sy, ae reflatted 35 2 component of net dhangs
In undeal 2ed appredaton (deprécaton) on the Stabements of Operaticns
[esly changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps {™Ywap Vanation
Margn™), if aryy, are disdosed within centrally deared finanda dervative

IFS RTINS Of (e Statemends of Assets and Liabilitses. OTC Swvap payments
receteed OF pid a1 the begneeng of the measiremint pefod are induded an
e Statements of Assets and Lisbeltied and repretent peemmirrs pad of
Fieciieed U PN enlering into thi fwap Sgneerment i comperdate fof
differences between the stated tems of the svap agreement and prevalling
market condtions (aedit spreads, aumency exchange rates, interest rabes, and
other relevant factors). Upfont premiumes received (paid) are intially recorded
a5 liskelities (assets) and subsecuently marked to market to reflect the oument
wale of the swap. These upfont premiums are recorded & realized gains or
hosses, on the Statéments of Cperations upon termination or matunity of he
awap A liquidstion payment received or made at the termination of the swap
s reoonded 3 realized gain or lods an the Statements of Opératons. Net
periodic payments recened of paid by a Fund afe sncluded as pant of reall 2ed
gains of |osses an the Stabements of Operations

Fee purposes of applbying cemain of 8 Fund's investment polides and
FEGITORONS, vl Bgrements, Foe ol dermainoe snstnuments, may be
walwed by & Fund at market value, notional valee or full exposure value In the
case of a oredit default swap, in apphing certain of the Fund's invesiment
polickes and restrictions, the Fundwill value the gedit default swap atits
rioona value of Hs full exposisre vaue § e, the sum of the notional amount
tor the contract plus the marked value), but may value the credt default swap
at rarket valoe $or purposes of apphing certain of the Fund's other
imeestment potides and restrictions. For examphs, the Fund may value gedit
default aaps at Ul exposure value for purposes of e Fund’s credit quality
auidlinves. G any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
AUl enomIC expoiure duing the term of the dedit default saap
agresmment. A5 4 result, A Fund may, at rmes, have notional spoiune 10 an
asset dass (before ﬂ-é'l'iﬂlj] a3 15 greates of besser Bhan the stated it or
restiction nodedin the Fund's Offering Memorandum, in this context, both
the notional smount and e markel vadue may be |IIS.iPM-} of negative
depervdng on whether the Fend i selling o buyng prodecton through e
credit default swap The manner inwhich certain securities or other
Imsinements are vaued by the Fund for purposes of applyving investment
policies. amd restrictions may differ from the marner in which those
imeestmente snevalued by other types of invedtons. Entering into swap
Agreements imeohes, 1o vaning degrees, elements of interest, dedit, market
and docurnentation risk in axcess of the amounts recognized on the
Slatements of Assets and Liabdities. Sudh rigks immbee the possibility that
there wall b rd Bgad market tor thede agreements, Ml e Counterparty o
this agresrmenrs may defat on i cbligaton 1o perlom of diagre: 05 1o the
Freanang of contractual terms in the sgresrments and that there may be
wnitavorabde charges in intenestrates o the wabues of the as4e1 upon which
thee: swvap 15 based

A Fund s muagsmum sk of boss Fom counterpamy aredit risk is the dscounted
et vabue of the cash flows 1o be receied from the counterparty over the
confracts remaining life, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
be matigated by hawing a master neting amangsment between a Fund and
thie coamterparty and by the pesling of collateral 0 3 Fund to cowver & Fund’™s
exposire 10 the counterparty

T the extent a Fund has a polscy 10 limit the net amount owed o of o be
receied from a single counterparty under exsting avap agreements, wdh
famitation ondy appliss bo counterparties 10 OTC swaps and does not apply bo
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ceniraly deared swaps where the counterparty is a central counterparty o
derivatives dearing organizaBon

Credit Detauln Swap Agreemers Certain Funds may enter into aedt default
WA ON oporate, [oan, sovereign, LS. runicipal or LS. Treasury issues to
provide 3 measure of protection against defautis of Se issuers (e, o reduce
risk where a Fund owres of has expodure 1o the referenced obligation) or o
Lake an active long of shord position with respect 1o the Bkelihood of a
particular issuer's default, Credit default swap agresments invobve one pary
rreakineg & Strearn of pannents freferred to ad the barper of protection) 1
ancithr party (the seller of profection] in exchange for the Aght 1 recevie 3
spedfied return i the event that the referenced entity, obligadon of index, &%
spedfied in the svap agréement, undergos 3 certan dedit evert As a wiler
of prosection on credit default swap agreements, 3 Fund will generally receive
from the buyer of probecthon a fixed rate of income troeghout the tem of the
wiap provided that thee is no oredt event. As the seller, a Fund would
effectively add leverage to it portfolio because, in addition 1o its total net
aszets, the Fundwould be sbgect to imvestment exposare on the nofional
amount of the svap

It a Fund is a seller of protection and a aedit event ooours, a5 defined under
the terms of that particular swvap agresment, 3 Fund will either (i) pay to the
buyer of protection an amount equal 1o the notional amount of the swap and
Tk delivery of the referenced obligation, ofer deliverable obfigations o
undertying seounities compeising the referenced index oo () pay 3 net
setement amount in the forn of cash or seouities squal to die natons
amcunt of the svap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation o
undezlying seoanities compeising the referenced index. If & Fund is a bayer of
proteciion and 3 credit event goours, as defined under the ferms of tha
partiodar swap ageement, a Fundwill either () receive from the seller of
profecion an amaunt equal to the national amount of the swap and deliver
the referenced cbligation, other dediverable cbiigadons or underhying

secui ties comprising the referenced index or (i) recesve a net settlement
amount in thee fom of cash o sequrities equal to the notional amoant of she
wevap Biess thie recovery value of the referenced obligation or underdying
securilies comprising the referenced indsx. Redovery values are estimated by
markel makers considering sither industry standard reddwery rales of eniity
spedific faciors snd corsiderasions untl & oreckt evend ooours. If @ aredit event
has oocudmed, thie reCoveny valiee i5 determrened by a fadlitated auction
wiheretey a rankrum number of allcrable broker bids, fogether with a
specilied waluation rethod, ane used o caloulate th setmement value. The
abiliey to defiver ather obligations may result in 3 chespest-to-defiver opSon
{the baryer of profection’s right 1o dvaose the defverable abligation with the
lowrestvalise following 4 oedt event)

Credt default awap sgresments on aedit indicet imwobve one party making 4
stream of payments 10 another partyin exchangs for the right 1o recelve a
specified retum in the event of @ write-3own, principal shortfall, interest
shoetiall or defaultof 8 or partof the referenced entities comprising the
credit index. A creditindex 14 4 baskel of et nsmnaments of axposines
designed o be repretentatene of some part of the aedit market 2 3 whadé
These indices are made up of reference qrecits that ate judged by a poil of
dealers 1o be the mest lbguid entities in the aedit default swap market based
oft e Sectar of M index Companents of the Indices sy andide, but ane
ot limated ba, imeestment o bde Sedunities, high vield seourities, aaset-badoed
securilies, emerging markets, andfor various credit ratings within eadh secior
Credt indiges are raded using credit default swaps with standardized tems
indiuding a fixed spraad and stendard maturity dates. An index creckt defaudt
vevap refenences all the names in the index, and if thene is 3 defaule, the cedit
event it settied based on that name’s weight in the index. The composition of
the indices changes periodically, wsualy every st monthe, and tor mast
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index. A Fund may use gedt

default smaps on greditindices 1o hedge a portfolio of qedit default waps o
bonds, whidh is less expensive than it would be o buy many cedt default
awaps o achieve a similar effect Credit default awaps on indices are
IFtEnRens for pranecing imeeshans owning bonds agaanst default, and
trackers use them 1o speaula%e on dhanges in aredit quality

Implied gedin spreads, represented in absolute terms, wilized in determining
the market value of aedit dedault wap AgreEments on Cofporate, loan,
sovereign . LIS monidipal oe LS. Treasury kswes 3 of period end, If any, are
dicdoried an the Notes to Schedde of Investments. Thisy Serve 25 an indoatod
of the aament slatus of paymentiperfomance risk and represent the likelihood
or risk of dedault for the referenced enlity, The impled gedi spreadof 2
particular referenced entity reflects the cost of buingsalling protection and
may indude uptront paymnents required 10 be made to enter into the
agreement Wider aredit spreack represent a detencration of the referenced
entify’s gedit soundness and a greater likelihood or risk of default or other
credit event ooouming a5 defined under the terms of the agreement. For credit
el Il S ap dgreements on esel-backed Leamibi. s aedil indoes, the
quobed frarkel prioes and resid ing values senok a5 the sndcator of the oument
status of the payrnentiperformance nidec Indreasng marketvalues, in absoliste
terri when companed 1o the nofional amount of the awvap, represenl a
deterionation of the referenced eniinys aredhil soundness and a Eealer
Iikelitond o sk of default or other medit event QCOUmInG i cefimed undier
e terre of the Sgneement

The madmum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) that

a Fund & a seller of protecton could be required to mabe under a credit
delault a4 ap agreement equats e nobonal amownt of the agresment
hational amounts of each ndividual credit default swap agreement
quistanding as of period énd for which a Fund is the seller of protection are
dsdased in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. These potential amounts
wioild D parally affoet by anny recovery values of the respective referenced
G A DS, Upront punyTnen s recenaed upon entering mio the apeement, o
L amounts neceved froom thee settlement of buy pratecton aedit detauls
swap agreements entered into by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity or
entiies

Imerest Raie Swap Agresmane Certain Funds are srbject fointerest rate
risk exposure i the nomal course of pursuing teir investment chjecives
The vakae of the fimed rate bonds that o Fund halds Iy decrease il inbenes
raes rise. To help hedge agasnst Bhis nide and B0 maintain it abality o
generati oome at prevaling market fates, a Fund may enter inlo intest
rate Swap agresments. Inferest rate swap agresments inviolve the exchangs
by a Fured with another party for ther respedtive commament bo pay o
reoen inferest on the notional amaunt of prindpal Cenain forms of interest
Fale Sl SOPEEments may indude () interest rate Caps, under whidh, in
refum for a premium, one party agrees 1o make payments to the ather i the
extent that interest rates excesd a spedfied rate, or “cap”, (1) interest rate
floors, under which, in retum for a premium, one party agrees to make
payments b0 thie other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, of “Hooe”, (i) interest rate collars, undar which & party sells & cap and
purchases a floor of vice versa in an attempl to protect (tself aganst interest
rate mdreements exceeding given minimum o madmum lewels, (v) callable
Ieierest rate swaps, under whidh the buter panys a0 uplront fee in
considerasion for the Fight 1o ardy lerminate the swad ansaction in wiole,
Al 2erg 0ot and At a peedetemmined date and G pror 80 e maturitg @,
W) spreadlocks, whidh dlow Bhe inberest rate Svap wser o lod: in the
forwand differential (o spread) between the intenest rate swap rate and a
spedfied benchmark, of () basis swaps, under which two pariies can
exchange vanable interest races based on different segments of mon ey
Fraaels
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Totel Aeturn Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into ol return
Fwap agreements bo gain or mitigate exposure o the underying reference
TRl renam Swap Jgresments mvahve QORI e S wiiene single of mulliple
cath Bowd are exchanged baced an the pce of an underhing referemce Jise
and of a Soed or viariable interest rate Tolal return Svap agresments may
Irvdve Commiiments 1o Py nienest n exchange for @ market-linked return
e countenparty pays out e tobal retum of 5 spedfc underhying reference
assel, which may indude 3 single Security, & basket of securties, of an index,
and in resurn peceivis 3 fooed of vanistle rate. AL the ity dabte. 3 net Cish
flow is exchanged where the fodal retum is squivalent i the returm of the
underhing rederence asset ks a finendngrate, i any. As a receiver, a

Fund would receive payments based on any positiee total retumn and would
dwe paymenls in the event of a negative total retum . As the payer, a

Fund would cwe payments on any positive toal retsm, and would receive
payments in the event of  net negative fotal retym

1.PRIRCIFAL ARD OTHER RISKS

{a) Primcipal Risks b the normal course of business, the Funds (or Acqured
Fund{s), if appdicable) rade finenda instuments and enterinto finangal
transactions where it of potential boss edsts due to such things a8 changes
in e market {markeet risk) or failure or inability of the other party 1o a
trancsaction to perform {oredit and counterparty idk). See befow for a detailed
desaiptan of select prindpal nisks

Fund el Funds To the extent that certain Funds imeet substantially all of dhea
respective asets in Acquired FundiE), the ricks assodated with investing in
theeses Fumis will be dosely related 1o the risks assodated with the sequrities
and ofher investments held by the Acquired Furdis) The ability of the Funds
1o achiewe hedr respectiee imrestment objectives may depend upon the abslity
of the Acguired Fund{s) to achieve their respecive mvesment objectives
Theré Can be no asturance Sis the irmeesirment olpecinee of any Acquered
Furd{s) waill b achiisved The BAY of an Af_qn.'mg Fuimd wall fluctuane
fiesnonrsi W0 changes in the respecie NAY of the Acquened Firdis) in whadh it

13} 313

In the nommal course of business, Aoquired Fund(s) rade Snandal insmements
and enter into finandal ransactons where risk of potential loss exdsts die to
changes in e market (market nisk), or falure or inabidity of the other party fo
a ransaction to perform (credit and counterparty risk)

Perfermance-Linked Notes Risk To the sxtent each of the B 1605 JP), B-)
1605 (UG, B0 1605 (FY), B 1609 (U0, B-) 1682 OPY) and B-) 1612
(LED) Classes of the PIMKCO Bermisds Income Fund E invest in Performance-
Linksed Motes, they will forego ather imvestment oppormunities, which could
negatvedy mpact the performande of such Class. n additon, sudh
Performance-Linked Mobes are unsecured obligations of Credit Suisse
ntemational and so the Classes are exposed bo the cedt sk of Credt Suisse
ntenationa Furthermore, the Performance-Linked Motes will be adeersaly
aftected m the seent of a delault, reduosd dedi rasng. of delerioration m e
sobvency of Credit Suisse Infemationa

Market Risks A Fund's imestiments in finandial derivative instroments and
ather fnandal instruments expose the Fund 1o varkows fsks such a5 butnot
liemi bed R, interest rate, foreign {ron-U 5 ) currendy, equity and commodity
figks

inteesl £ate ritk i% the rigk that foced incoeme securities and ather insruments
Field by a Furd may dedime in value Because of a0 indease in interest rates o
nioerinal inberedl rates rise, the value of certan fided mcome secunties held by
& Fundwioukd Rkely decrease. A nomnal interest rate can be desanbed a5 e
s of 3 real interest rate and 30 expected inflation rate. nteret rare
changes cian be sudden and unpredctable, and a Fund may lose money i

thete changes are not antidpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
ahle o hedge against changes in inferest rates or may chodse not 1o do 5o for
cost or other reasons. InaddiSion, any hedges may not work as intended

Curatan i% & mieasise uied o determine the senutily o  Ssuritys price 1o
changes in inferest ratés that inoorporates a security™ yield, coupon, final
mnatunity and call features, Mg other charactensiie, Comexty i an
addbonal measure used o undersiand & seaunity™s of Fund s intenest rate
sensithvaly that measures the rate of change of duration in respanse to
changes o inteesl ranes. Fined mooime Seowities wath donger durations tend
lo be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, ysually making them maore
wolatile than securites with shorter durations. A wide vaniety of factoes can
catpse Inerest rates oryiebds of LS Treasury sequnities for vields of ather
types of bonds) to fse (2., cendral bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
general economic comditions, ebc ) This is espedally tnue under curment

condi Bons because inferest rates and bond yields are mear historically low
lewels Thus, the Funds cumenthy face a heightened bevel of nisk assodiated
wath riseng imberest ranes andior bond yields. This cousd be diven by 3 variety
o Tactons, indluding but nat Bmited 1o central bank monetary polioes,
changing inflaton of real growth rates, gereral economic condions,
Incréasing bond istaances or reduced maret démand Tor [ow yielding
imeesiments. Funher, while U 5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past Sree decades, dealer “mark eimaking™ abling has remained refatnely
stagnant Ghen the importance of intemmediary “market making” in ceating
a robyst and active market, fized income securites are curmenty

fagng increased volatikty and liquidity risks. Al of these factors, colfecively
anckor individually, could cause a Fund to hose value, B the Fund lost encugh
walue, the Fund could face inoreased Unitholder redemplions, which could
turther empair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affected
wihen a large Unitholder purchases or redeems Barge amounts of wnits, which
can ooor at any tirme and may imipact the Fund in e same manner a5 a high
wolume of redemption requests. Large Unitholder transactions may impact
thee Fund's liquadity and met sssed valie. Sudh FnSscions may 840 ndeate
the Fund's ransaction oosts of obherwse cause B Fund o perfoem
difterently than intended Mansdver, 1he Fund is sbgect to the risk: that

gther Linitholders may make investment deasions based on the choices of 3
large Unithalder

A Fund may have significant exporsure 10 issuers in the United Kingdom. The
United Kingdom's withdrawal from the Ewropean Union may impact Fund
refums This decision may cause substantial volatility in farsign excthange
rrardeets, lead towedmeds in the axchange rate of the Brish pound, medlten
A apstaned period of market uncertanty, and destabedize some of all of the
otver Furgpean Linion mémber countries andfor the Eunozone

Ferign (non-L0.5 ) securites in this report are dassied by the country of
incoeporation of 2 holichineg i CEraR IMSEANGES, & SeCuRty’s country of
nCeepiFation rdy be difterent Tom s country of E0onmc exposure

If & Fund Emeests direcily in foreign (Ron-U S ) cumendies o in securities. that
trade in, and receve revenwes in, foreign {non-U S ) cumendes, o in finandial
derivadee instruments thak prowide exposure to fregn (non-LUS) axrendes,
Itwaill be asbject 10 the isk that those anrendies wall dedling in value relative
to the base cwrency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedgng positions, that
the Fund's base currency will dedine in value refative bo the arrency being
Fresdged. Clamendy res in foreagn countes may flichaate dgrificantdy g
shoet periods of time Tor 8 number of reasons, indudng changes in interey
rated, indenasntion (o the Riliere b intenaene) by L5 of foreidgn ooverniments,
ceniral banks or supranational enties such as the Internationd Monetany
Fund, or by the impsiton of qurrendy controls of other potifical developments
I the United States or abroad. As a resalt, a Fund's investments in forelgn
CurtenCy-Gendrminatad seouiies may redace he Fund's relums
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The market values of equithes, wch & common stocks and prefemed securities
or aquity related investments ssch as futures and options, have histonically
risen and fallen in periodic oydes and may dedine due fo general market
condson which aré nol peaScally related 1o a parSodar comparny, such a5
reall or percerved adverte edonamic conditions, changes n the general
outlook for corporate eamings, changes in nlerest of Gurmency rates, pubi:
health emergendes, sudh & the spread of infechiows liness or dseate, or
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may 5o Gedine due o facons
which affect a partiodar inds Sy of indusiries, sich a5 [abor shortages of
Inedbed produchon costs and oompientve condtions vathin an indesry
Different types of equity secunities may react dfterenty o these
developments. Eguity secuniies and equity related Invesiments generally have
greater marker price wokatility than fixed income securities

The Fumnds may irvest in cestain instraments Bat rely in some Tashion upon
LIBOR: LIBOR is an average mierest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge one another for e wse of short-tem
ey Thie United Kingdaen's Fanand sl Conduct Aushority, which reguiates
LIEOR, b announced plans 1o Wtimatéy phate oul the use of LIBOR There
Tmding uncertainty regardindg future uiilization of LIBOR and the nature of
amy replacement rate (e.q, e Secured Overmight Finandng Rate, whidh is
intended to replace U5 dollar UBOR and measures the oost of ovemight
D'Eﬂ{?-'\-'il‘-gﬁ through regunchase dgpeemment Tansackons ooll aterdized with
LS. Tremsury seunties) Ay pobential effects of te ransition iy Tom
LEBOIR on @ Fund o on certan insiuments in which a fund invests can be
difficult fo ascertain, and ey may vary depending on avaniety of factors, The
tramsition may also result in areduction in the value of certain instruments
hield by 2 Fund or a reducion in the effecivensess of related Fund ransactions
sunch a5 hedges. Any sucdh effects of the transition away from LIBOR, a5 well
a5 other unforesesn affects, could rewlt in kosses to 3 Fund

Bagnning in lansany 20240, global francial maroe s have experienced and
Py conBnie to experience sonificant volatlity resulting from the spread of a
ol coronanirus known a8 COVID-19. The outrest: of COVID- 19 has
resulted in fravel and border resirictions, quarantines, supply chan
digruptions, lower consumer demand and general markel uncertainty. The
global econamy, the economees of certain nations. and indvidud Baers have
beens Bnd masy continue bo De achersely affected Ky COVID-T9, partioutany in
light of the interconnecivity between sconomies and fmandal markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds’ performance, In addition, COVID-19
and governmental responses to COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabiliges of the Funds’ service providers and dsrupt e Funds” operagons

Credit and Counterparty Risks & Fundwill be egosed 1o gedt sk 1o
parties with whom i rades andwill also bear the risk of setlement default

A Fumsd minimi 25 concentr asons of cred 1 sk by undensang ransamon
with alarge number of customer s and counterparties on recognized and
reputable exchanges, whene applicable OTC desivalive rarsactions e
subgect to the risk that a counterparty to the transaction will not fulfill its
contractual obligations (o the osher party, as many of the protecticns afforded
1o centrally desred demvative transactions might nat be svailable fior OTC
denvative Bransactions. For derivatives traded on an exchange or through a
cenlral counterparty, aredit nsk resides with the deditsorthiness of

the Fund's dessing beoker, of the dearinghoute itsef, rather than with &
COUNRETEArTY i an OTC derivatee ransacion. Changes in regquiation relating
10 & Funl's e of dertvatives and relaced instrusments could patentally limst
of impact the Fund's ity W investin defrvafives, il the Fond's abelity to
empioy Certain srabegies that use defivatives andir adversely affect the valpe
of pericemande of derivatives and the Fund A Fund could lose money If e
issieer or guarantor of 3 fed income Sequrity, of the COURETRArTy 104
financal dervative inTIruments coniract, repurchase Jgresment or 4 loan of
povifolio sequrities, is unable or unwilling to make timely principal andéor

imterest payments, of b othenwise honor its obligations. Sequrities and
financial derivative instruments. are subject 1o varying degrees of gedit isk,
wiich may be reflected in gedit ratings

Sirnilar 1o dedl rigk, A Fund may be epated o counberpaty risk, of the nidk
that an institution of oler enSibywith which 4 Fund has unsettied or open
transactions will default PIMCE), &5 the Manager, minimizes counterpany
risks 1o e Funds firough 3 number of ways. Prior iy ENETNG M0
ransacBons with & new counterparty, the PIMCO Counterpanty Risk
COmmaies Conducts 3 extente redt review of Sisth countempanty and must
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, purssant o the terms of
the underying contract, to the extent that unpaéd amounts owed 1o a Fund
expeed 3 predetemined threshold, such courtespary shall advance collateral
to 3 Fured in the form of cash of searities equal in value 1o e unpaid
anoant owed o 3 Fund. A Fund may invest sich coflateral in securities of
other instruments and will typically paryinterest to the countérparky on the
collatera receved If the unpaid amount owed 10 a Fund subsequenty
decreasit, & Fundwould be requaited Do relum B0 e counbérparty all or 3
porton of the collateral previcusly adwanced  FIMCO attempls 1o finimebe
counBerparty fisk may, howeser, be uwmsacoesshul

Contingent convertible secusities CCoCos™) ane  form of nbid debt security
Issuped primanily by non-U S issuers, which have loss absoption medhangsms
Euilt inbo Heir terms. Colos have no stated matunty, have fully dsretonary
coupoers and are bypically iswed in the form of subcrdinated debt
Irstrments CoCos generally sither convert into equity of the isser o have
tedr principal waithen dosm upon the ooouerence of cestain Triggening eents
(" trgpgers ™) Bnked 1o requlatory capmal thresholds or requlatony achions
relating to the issuers conBnued vialility. As arewlt an investment by a
Fund in Cood is aubject to the risk that cougon (e, nterest) payments may
be cancefled by the issuer or a regulatbony authority n crder to help the issuer
asorh losses. An irvestment by & Fund in CoCos is also subjec ta the
that, n the évent of the liquedaBion, @Soluion of windng-up of an 15
Eride 10 4 [mgoer event, 2 Fund’s nghts and dains will generally rark: junsor
to the daims of holders of e issuer's other delot obligations. In addtion, if
Cotos Meld by a Fund are comvented inta the isswers underying equity
securivies following 2 rigger event, the Fund's hoding may be furher
wbordnated due 1o the conversion from a debit 1o equity instument, In
certain scenarios; investors in Colos may suffer a loss of capital shead of
equity holders or when equity holders do nol. There is no quarantee that a
Fund will recerve 3 retum of prindpa on CoCos. Anyindcation that an
SUBOALE write-Gown Of ComsTion event may oo Cin be opedted B hane
an adverse eflecton the maket price of CoCos. CoCos ane often rated below
imeestment grade and are subject to the risks of high yield eecuriies. Because
Colog are issued primarily by finanda institutions, Colos may present
Subsbanially ingeased nsks at imes of fnandal urmod, which cold affed
frnandal insaions moee thasn companies in oher Secions and industnel
Further, the value of an insesament in CoCed & unprediciatie and will be
influenced by many factors and risks, indluding interest rate fisk, credit risk,
market risk and ligaidity risk An investment by a Fund in CoCos may resulf in
lesses b the Fund

Al transactions in listed seqmisies are setfledipaid for upon delvery using
pproved couniemparties. The disk of default is considered minimal, a5 defavery
of seamiBies sold is only made once 3 Fund has received payment Payment &
Fridcd o A punchade onoe the seaunties ive been ddiversd by he
countesparty. The trade will Ll if either party Rk to meet it cbingaton

bl Onteer Rishs In general, each Fund may be subject to additional risks,
imclsng, Dut not limited o, risks related bo govemment regdation and
intervenBon in fnandal markets, operational risks, msks assodated with
fnandial, economic and global market disruptions, and ojbersecanity s
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Fease refer toeach Fund's offering docurnents for a more detailed
desaiption of the risks of investing in the Fund

Market Disruptions Fisk The Funds are subject 10 mvestment and
operasonal fisks ssodated with finand s, economic and cther global market
developments and dissuptions, enduding those arising fromwar, emorism,
arket manipudanon, govemment intenenticons, defaults and shutdowns,
political changes of dplomaic developments, public beslth emergendes
{such as the spread of infectios diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
niaturalienwironmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the sequities
markets, interest rabes, auctions, secondary trading, rafings, oedt risk,
inflaticn, deflation and ather factocs refating to the Fend's investments o the
Managers operations and cause 3 Fund B0 lase wvalue. Thess events may have
acverse |ong-term eflects on the U5 and world economees. and markets
generally. These events can akso impair the technology and other operational
Systems upon which 3 Funds senace providers, incisding FIMCO a5 the
Funds imvestment advider, rely, and could ofenerse dsnupt 3 Fund's sensoe
prrembdders” abaliny 10 Tul il theer cbliganons to the rdevant Fund. For example,
the speread of an indectious resparatony illness caused by a novel siran of
coronavings nown a5 COVID-19) has caused volatlity, severe market
dislocadons and liquidity constraints in many markets and may adversely
aftect 4 Fund's imvestments and operations

Government Intervention in Finarcial Markets Fedensl, s1ate, sd omer
Qwernments, their rl!l;u?dl(‘l’j' e, lill".ul':”'l-‘."gi:'ﬂll.'ll']' OF QT T 00N S iy
1k actions that affect the reguaation of te instuments in which a Fund
IFvts, of the isuers of udh indmumeents, in ways that are unforeseesbie
Legrslation of requlation may ko change the way in which a Fund itself is
regulated Such legslaton of reguiation oould et of predude a Fund s
abilivy 1o adviewe i1s Investment objective. Furthermore, volatle finencal
markets can expose 3 Fund 8o greater market and Bauidity sk and potential
difficuity in vauing portfiolio ins uments held by e Fend. The vaue of 3
Fund’s holdings & Joo generaly subject to the risk of future local, national, or
global econoimic disturbances based on unknoswm weaknesses in the markets
i which a Fund imvests, In addition, i1 is not certam that the U5 Gowernment
wall i Berveni® in responte b 3 fulure market distwrbance and the effect of any
such Ruture inderven ion cannol be predicted. 1 is diffiout for issens to
prepare for the impact of future finanaal downiyme, aithough companees. can
seek 10 deEntify and manmnage fubse uncertantoes trough fsk management
oG anTs

Regulatory Aisk Financial entiSies, such as investment companies and
irvestment advisers, e generally subject to extensive government regulation
and intenvention. Govemment requlation andfor mleneention may change the
weay 3 Fund is requlated, affect the expenses inourmed directly by a Fund and
the vaiue of ité invesiments, and Bmit and'or predude a Fund's hility 1o
Adwedt 1S imvesiment abjectie. Governirent regulasion may change
Trequeenitly 3nvd eay have SigniBcant adverse consequences. Morecwer,
givernment requiation may have unpredictable and unintended effects

Opsrational Risk An investment in 2 Fund, like gy fund, can invobee
operagonal risks arising fom factars such as prodessing ermons, human emons,
inadequate or failed intemal or extemal processes, falures in systems and
technabogy, changes in personnel and errors caused by thirdparty service
providiers. The acourende of Sy o thiese Talures, arors of breaches coutd
fesilt i & Boss ol information, requiatory scrumiy, reputationsl dirmage or
afher swnis, amy of which could hive 3 rraternisl adverse efect on 3 Fund
while a Fund seeks to minimize such events through controks and oversight,
thiese may 54l be falluees that oould cause ksses to te Fund

Cyber Securioy Rigk A the wse of technology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become posentially more suscepsile
10 operational andinformaton sensity fsks resuling from bredches in oy

security. A breach in oyber seqanity refers to both intentional and
unintentional cyber events that may, among other things, cause a lond to
hose proprietary infomation, suffer data comupon andior desiruction or lose
operatonal capadty, result in the unauthonzed releade of other risurse of
conhidential anformation, of athenwze darupl nofmal busines operabons
Cyber security failures or breaches may result in finandal kasees to 3 Fund and
its Unithodders. These failures o breaches may also résultin disruptions to
Eusinss operatons, pobentally reaslong in finanoal osses, interlenence with
& Funed's ability 10 Cahoul 308 185 mel Hset value, process Unithalder
ransacBond of olferwite BEnact business wilh Linisholders, impedments o
rading violations of appicable privacy and other |avs; regulatory fines;
penales; reputational damage; reimbursement or obher compensation costs;
addtonal complance and oyber sequnity risk management oosts and omer
aiverse conseaquences. n addition, substantial costs may De inoured in order
to prevent any cyber incidents in the future

B. MASTER NETTIHG ARRANGEMERTS

The Furd. iy bee Subpedt b vanous neltng amandgements {"Masher
Agreements”) with select counterparied. Master Agréements govermn the
terms of certain transactions, and are intended 10 redace the countemparty risk
arsenec] aved with relevant Tansactions by spedfying aredt profection
Fechanums and Lfth'llflﬁ’,‘ snandardzamon that i intended 1 improve legal
Certainty. Exch bype of Master AGreement Quwems Certan types of
ransacons. [ifferent types of ransactions may be traded out of different
legal entities or affiliates of a particular orgarization, resdting in the need for
midiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the baster Agreements
are pedific o unique operasions of dfferent asset types, they dlow a Amnd
clcee out and net its total exposure to 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respact 1o all the transacBons gowernad under 3 ngle Master
Agreement with a counterpaety. For finanaal repoeting purposes the
Staterents of Asters and Liskeiges generally present defhvative assets and
fiatafties on & gross base, which neflects the Tull s and spasures prior io
nELling

Matter Agreernents Can also help bl counterperty nsk by Slik'(lf'r'll'lg
collateral posting arangements &t pre-arrenged eposure levels, Under most
Master Agreements, collateral is routinely transferred if the tolal net epoure
to certain fransactions (net of existing codlatera already in place) governed
unier the relevant Master Agreement with a counterparty in a given account
expeeds 3 spedied threshold, which typically ranges from zeno to $2 50,000
dependng on the courterpany and te nype of Master Agreement. Uniled
States Treatury Bills and LS. dollar cath are generally the preferred boms of
ctllaterd, dthough other Secprifies may be used depending on the terms
ufmed in the applicable Master Agreement . Secwities and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected a5 atsets on the Statermnents of Asgets and Liabilites a5
enther & component of Frvessments at value Seaurited or Depodits with
counterpany. Cath collateral recaved iS not typically heldin 4 segreganed
acoount and as such is reflected as a liability on the $tatements of Assets and
Liabilties a5 Deposits from countenparty. Thie market value of any sequrites
recedved as coll steral is not reflected 45 a component of NAY. The Fund’s
overall exposire 1o countermparty ik can change substan tally witken 3 shom
periced, s it is affected by each Wansacion subgect bo the relevant Master
Adresmant

Matter Repunchade Agresnnts snd Global Masler Repundhase Agrismints
(mckidually and collectvely = Master Répo Agreerments™) given repundhase,
rineirde repunchace, and sabetavback ransactions bedween the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agresments maintain provisions fir,
amaong otfver things, inktlaion, income payments, events of defaull, and
rnaingenance of coll steral The market value of mamactions under the Master
Repo Agreemenl, collateral pledged or receved, and e nel expasure by
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9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

= at the dollowing arnual rates {stated a5 a percentage of the average daily net assets of each Fund, or Class, if

Fund Managemsnt Adiisory Adminisirative Agency Disributian
PIMCO Bermusda Emerging Marke Band Fund I

+  IrepPY 0 36%
*  Imar P, Hadged 0 36%
PIMCD Bermuwda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund B 0 35%
PIMCD Bermuda Income Fund A

& FLPY)

* FQS0

L JF - = - =

. LIS - = 2 =

= K[UED) - = = L

+  MUPY Advang 1 76% - - 0 6% DEE%

« M ony | 16% [ 06% IES

s

- o

.

. 165% BB

& 0Of

w R - - = =

* SUM = = -
170%™ = = = ;
i = = =

0 EE% 00 - -
1ED
n4E%™ -
L] IFY - - = - =
» LS = -
= LSD = = = - =

-2

020%™

PIMOD Bermuwda U5, High Yield Fund B [N = 158
PIMECO Care Inceme Carparate Bond Fund 2020-10

= LISh 0 40% [N 5% NE%
PIMOCO Shart-Term Martgage Income

- | - | 45% 5% 0 a0%™

. LIFY, Hetged]

w I5%™ 6% I 80%

s UsD ] 455 Y 6% 0 20%
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Fees

Fund Management Acisory Administrative Agency Destribution
PIMCO Warld High Income 0in% - = o et DEE%™
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B Ay PRGN L O A R M N S 1 L R 1 R T

® AR Sl & 5 Fpt st Rl 11 Gl I 5 el A O i AT B 1 i Bl o el 0 a1 R T 8 14 I F R N TR T T AT N R R AR 8 O RS 0
B e T i 1O ke 0 0 o B B B et 10 il

. T iy o Al F o e e e T v N O O i ik SR ey S araid By i e waie Cnis’ Cand Bla Spitemci g (livinosy ANyt St i 6T S ried o B Rk r i ke it S ® I ol e iy
g o Ao 5% rioi iy i a0 0 S ey i i i doikad ek e (e O S 1 PR i i e e 0 LR i T o i i iy v o drae | M PR i pi e el B 0 00 S Tl
Friv e gl oy @ O 38D O % s B e il B R 00T e o e s gty i o B e T o M b e O V% Ul S VR e 0 T SBT3 R R T i ¥ e o o
iy ol e ATy

* T 8 AT 7 2 ST e O Y R 2 P SR S T e T B 20 0 [ i AL (e g (IR Ao ey VA I (N P O ST R VX0 Pt WY (125 8 iy
¥ Foba 0 7%, phem ri o il e T 0 ey e ey i il ey e o e veem 1 A, riem vl o el B 8T o e ey o Sl Ry v o B | e T TR 2w i Gyl e 3 X7 O Dl e e F
b et I S 3 T riem e e e S 3F% 0O B AT 0 ELa AR BV 2PN paere rive i by el 0 0% Y Sl agy v F e el e el Ol o st st ot Ky vl ol e g by
SIS ST

™ P e o T o g e Tl vl MDA B T AR R A Iy Sl i By e el o e Lo Sty i i i e phead i i ey o0 pverar ik Y ot v ey G o ke S
o b b ol B (1 0 i e iy iy o it A R o el O SR T . v pi it el e 5 1T o e i it - o T Y iy G el 1SR 5 o ri e el i 70 % i S e i oF S i A
O b [ e G i ot i sl B 0 0 i e o R g R 3 T e, ot e el G T e ey iy o e 8 (it iy i i o 1T i ety oy
¥
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The management, advisory and adminsirative fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in ameses (o PRMCO for providing of amangng for the provision of sdvisony,
administrative and third-party senvices indudng audit, qetodal, rustes, portholio accounting, roitine lega, ramsfer 2gent and pinting sendces. The agency and
distribuBon fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in amears. to reimburse finandal intermediaies that provide services and dstibation relaling to the units of e
applicabde Fund (or Clase thereof, as applicable). In exchange for this fee, PRMCO will bear the costs of certain third-pasty services required by the Funde, induding
Audil, Oestodial, truste, poctfolio accounting, legal, ransder agent and prnting serdces. PIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit Fom any price decnease in the
{ such third-party senvices, induding decreases re g from an indexie in net 252t In addition, with regpect 1o Funds that s subjed 10 an ddministratee
MCO generdly makes a profit on such 3 fes

As mofed in the table above, certan Fundk and Classes of Funds are not sulgec 10 management, aMsory, admmnisrative, agendy of dsmbistion fees, PIMCO Japan
Led, PRVCO's affiliate in Japan, 55 paid & fee from the lapanese rvestment Tists or ofer investment vehides that invest in guch Funds of Classes and & portion of
sudh fee is then dlocated bo FRCO 10 compensabe i1 for its serdees

Faor the first five years following the launch of each of the B-J 1605 (JFY), B-J 1605 (LEDY, B-1 1609 (IFY), B-1 1609 (UL, B0 1602 (JFY), and B-J 1612 {USE) Classes
of the PRMCO Bermuda inocene Fund E. an Asset Based Sales Charge (TABSCT) of 0 76% will be Emposed on the awrage daily net asset vaipe of each Class and
payable monthly 1o the Fee Agent. Addinonally, i any smts of the B 1605 (PY), B-) 1605 (USD), B=1 1605 (IFT), B-J 1609 (USDY, B-) 1612 (Y), and B 1612 (LGD)
(lasses of the PIMCO Bermuds income Fund E ane redeemed or exchanged for one o mone unats i anather fund within the tme periods spedtfied below, a COSC will
b imposed an the amount of sudch redernption af the applicable Percentage CDSC
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Years Sinoe lnoegSen of Exch Cass Percantage COSC
1 [anciuding stk Somatsand 3 0%
2 [inciuding) ssvond vl snwes oy 240r%
3 [enciyding vhtd vt oo mary] 1 B
4 [aciuging lourth year aeniversany] 1.20%
B [encduding Hilih yaar snirersang] 1 B%
Tharsatter 0 007

With resped (o the caloulaBon of the CBAC the valee of the redempion amount will be the Sen-oument MAY of the units being repurthased. Furthermore, any
Appletabde COMCS wil b deducied from the repunchate prooeeds and will be payable 16 the Fee Agent. For the year ended October 31, 2021, the B-) 1605 (IFY), B-)
1605 (USEY, B} 16059 (9, B 1609 (LSEY, B-J 1612 (PYY and B-J 1612 (USD) Classes of the PIMCO Berrruda income Furd E paid ¥117,397 218 in ABSC and
V14,519 804 i COAC 1o the Fee Agent

The Funds {of Classes tereod, 35 applcable) many bear olher expenses reated to therr operation it are nol oovered by the management, advsony, sdmirasrative,
Agenoy o damibution Pk, indud ng bt ot lireted b0 () taxes and govemmentsl fess; i) b Lol Bt fees and commissons and otber portiolio ransaction egenses
(i) consts of bomowing money, induding interest expense; (W) extracednany expenses, induding oosts of liigation and indemnification expenses; and (V) any expenses
alocated or allocable b 2 spedfic Class of units, PIMCO has paid the crganizational expenses assodiated with the qeation of the Tnust, except for PIMCC Shoet-Term
Mortgage income. FIMCD has paid the orgardzational expenses sssodatedwith the geation of the Trust. FIMCO has paed the organizational expenses assodatedwith
PIVICC) Cove Ircofme Corporate Bond Fund 2020-100% initial satup, extept fiof the formation epentes aseadated with PIMCO Core income Comparate Bond Fund
2020-10" initid public offesing of Units and related Secunities Registration Statement filings, which indude costs of printing the prospectus and the sales materials
that are related to the PIMCO Core income Corporate Bond Fund 2020- 107 sale of Units in Japan. Sudh fomation expenses are reflecled a5 Organization Costs in the
Statement of Operations

The Trustes and thie Manager hive appointed Credil Suwisse ntemational a5 the agent for the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E for purposes of Snandng placement tes
10 b i b certain diatmibutors. Under & fee 30ent appoentment agreement entered nta amondg the Tnees, the Manager, and Cradin Suivse nitemational (the "Fee
Agent Appointment Agresment ), Credit Suisse internafional has been appointed bo: () effect payment of certan distribution fees to the lapenese distributors in
aoaordance with the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement and the terms of vanious upfront fee letters, and (i) mace all calosdations and detemmenations required Lo be
made pnder the Fee Agent Appoiniment Agresment

PIMICC) andior its affifanes will initially advance 1o the PFIMIO Bamuda income Fund E legal expenses incurmed in connection with exscuting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and associated legal agreements fior the B-0 1605 (IFY) and B-] 1605 (LUS0) Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermisda income Fund E (the "Fee
Aenl Legal Experdes™) AUthe end of these Classes” manal offening perods, the Fund will be requsned ta: () remburse 10 FINCO andior its sffikates the greater of: (4)
VIO mdlon o () 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts smvestid in Sich Classes dunng their inital offening pericds (uech amount not to exceed e Fee Agent Legal

i st dcdvanced), and () amortize sixch Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses 1o the relevant Class ower the first fscal vear of its operations All of a parion of the remainng
Fee Acenit Legal Expertes advanced may be expensed fo future B share dauses added 10 and offered by amry seres of the Tnist, FIMCO Bermida Trust, FIMCO
Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andior PIMCO Caymen SPC Umitedwithin one year from the end of the initial offenng periods of the 81 1605 (IFY) and B-)
1605 (S0 Classes of units of the FAMCO Bermuda income Furd E o such other pericd of teee that the ivestment Adviser determings in &5 disoretion

In addigon, PIMCO andior its affiliates will inifially advance to the MMCO Bermuda income Fund E legal expenses inaamed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appornbrent Agreement and Jssocied legd agesments for the B-J 1609 {IFY) and B-§ 1609 (LSD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Biernoda noome fund E (il a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expented). AR the end of the Bd 1609 (P and B-J 1609 (S0 Classes’ initial oMering periods, the FIMCO Bemeds Income Fund Ewall
B riquared bo: (1) reimibur e 1o PIMICO andfor its affisates the greater of: {a) V10 million of (0) 0 20% of the aggregate amounts invested in such Clastes dunng thesr
finithal offering periods (wich amont not o enceed the totzl of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses pvan ced and the unreimbursed poetion of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previcusly svenced in connection with the areation of any B share dass of any series of the Trust, PIMICO Bermuda Trust, PIMICO Berrouda Trust IV, FIMCO Cayman
Trwst andior PIMCO Cayrnan SPC Limited wathin ong year o the respeciive ends of the initial o-.*fer.m;-‘_u such ofer penod of orme tal the nestment Adviser
dedermenes in 18 disreton), and §i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expencies 10 the relevant Chass ower the first fiscal wear of It operations. Al or 3 portion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added to and offered by any series of the Trust, PRACO Bermuda Trusk,
PIMCO Bamuda Trast IV, PIRACO Cayman Trust andfor FIMCO Cayman $PC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial ofiering periods or wch
ather penpd of ime that the Investment Adviser determines in its disoretion

PINICO anedfor its affilates will alo intially advance 1o the PIMICO Bermuds income Fund E legdl expentes incurmed in connsction with execting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agréement and astodated legal agresments fior the B-J 1612 (IFY) and B-J 1612 (LED) Classes of units of the PIMCO Bemusda income Furd E{alwo 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). Ax the end of the B-J 1612 (v} and B-) 1612 (USD) Classes’ inimial offering periods, the PIMCO Bermida income Fund E will
b repmred b0: (1) redmiur e 10 PIMICO andtor k05 affiBianes the greater of: {3) V10 mallion of (0) 0 20% of the Sregate amounts invested m sach Classes dunng thest
Inital offening penods (udh smodnt not 10 exoked the sl o thie Fiee Adpend Ll Expentes sdvanced and the unreimburssd portion of amy Fes Agent Legal Bxpenies
previousdy sdvanced in comnect on vath the areaton of any B share dass of Sy seiiey of the Tast, FIMCO Berrmoda Trest, PIMCO Berruda Trist IV, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andior PIMCO Capman $PC Limited within one year fom the respective ends of the initial offering or such other period of ime that the Imestment Adviser
determmines in its deaeton), and (i) amartize such Fee Agent Legal Expences 10 the relevant (lass over the first fiscal year of |t operations. Al or 3 portion of the
remaimr.; Fee Agent Legal Expenses sdvanoed may be expensed o future B share dasses gdded to and U*-f'éﬂ?'ﬂtr:.' anvy sedies of the Trust, PIMCO Bermmuda Truse,
PIMCD Bearnuds Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limiiedwithin coe year from the respecive ends of the inkitlal offering periods or such
afer penod of fme that the investment Advwser determines in its disgetion. For the year ended October 31, 2021 there were no more Fee Agent Legal Expenses
remaining

By P | Dovibar 1, R0 Fo
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2022 10
29,322 3,825,641
10,594 1,382,199
18,728 2,443,442
1,788,823.353
10.47 1,366
2022 10
520 73,611
188 26,613
332 46,998
36,121.519
9.19 1,301
2022 10
1,635,146
590,765
1,044,381
110,989.374
9,410
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
2023 798,537,475.45
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2023
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)
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(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2023 336
728,990,289,310

118 437,089,313,555

21 14,026,292,980

15 20,142,357,723
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70 174,266,625,547
9 8,048,065,719
30 18,342,792,643
36 18,614,823,651
15 22,677,551,066
4 812,290,767
5 2,336,004,508
13 12,634,171,152
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
130.47
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2(d),3 29,741,057 3,880,316 30,870,470 4,027,670
2(e) 993,957,179 129,681,593 798,701,996 104,206,649
2(e) 317,540,465 41,429,504 314,822,326 41,074,869
47,497,769 6,197,034 45,702,592 5,962,817
2(e) 21,577,432 2,815,208 23,912,871 3,119,912
2().,7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
6 33,463,658 4,366,003 17,306,918 2,258,034
54,848,716 7,156,112 64,128,683 8,366,869

2,252,075,213 293,828,253  1,986,106,194 259,127,275

2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31
213,677,355 2(0),4 111,294,054 14,520,535 121,111,682 15,801,441

2(1),9 173,842,283 22,681,203 195,322,419 25,483,716
2(j).7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085

2(h) 30,865,176 4,026,980 30,865,176 4,026,980
2(9),5 32,984,825 4,303,530 35,265,467 4,601,085
2(b) 36,988,617 4,825,905 14,710,139 1,919,232

8 61,620,430 8,039,618 51,541,356 6,724,601

1,588,420,674 207,241,245  1,303,871,691 170,116,140

3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020
444,187,520 57,953,146 398,802,753 52,031,795
7(c) 301,432,498 39,327,898 216,289,372 28,219,274
81,689,779 10,658,065 122,043,872 15,923,064
2(i).9 31,437,762 4,101,685 33,157,779 4,326,095
6 95,602,945 12,473,316 37,379,146 4,876,857
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
10,676,405 1,392,951 4,928,294 642,995
997,277,754 130,114,829 832,356,498 108,597,552
2(r),7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085
2(i),9 182,746,288 23,842,908 204,137,201 26,633,781
7(c) 138,931,408 18,126,381 152,799,181 19,935,709
4,046,469 527,943 4,306,979 561,932
1,466,549,454 191,340,707  1,216,298,813 158,690,506
2,463,827,208 321,455,536  2,048,655,311 267,288,058
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346)  (103,214,782)  (13,466,433)
150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619  1,308,035,518 170,659,394
2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,082,096 43,399,986 5,662,396
2021 12 31
102,231 2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,265,505 37,843,422 4,937,431
2(0) (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  (44,741,570)  (5,837,433)
1,376,668,679 179,613,963  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(e) 4,520,575,834 589,799,529 4,012,403,139 523,498,238
2(e) 1,166,893,208 152,244,557 1,095,151,513 142,884,418
2(e) 1,272,072,660 165,967,320 1,155,727,878 150,787,816
2(e) 350,424,117 45,719,835 360,487,808 47,032,844
2(e) 32,477,418 4,237,329 46,057,465 6,009,117
7,342,443 ,237 957,968,569 6,669,827,803 870,212,433
7 2,695,488,619 351,680,400 2,283,500,614 297,928,325
666,590,135 86,970,015 777,771,809 101,475,888
2(s) 633,462,121 82,647,803 605,822,180 79,041,620
233,154,167 30,419,624 235,901,474 30,778,065
4,9 179,499,423 23,419,290 168,804,503 22,023,924
2(n) 105,285,247 13,736,566 108,835,693 14,199,793
47,627,284 6,213,932 43,316,136 5,651,456
48,672,649 6,350,321 44,512,301 5,807,520
4,609,779,645 601,437,950 4,268,464,710 556,906,591
2,732,663,592 356,530,619 2,401,363,093 313,305,843
126,921,569 16,559,457 52,168,123 6,806,375
2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (723,492) (6,676,919) (871,138)
2(b) (1,327,780) (173,235) (1,321,069) (172,360)
2,852,712,104 372,193,348 2,445,533,228 319,068,720
8 107,478,838 14,022,764 103,991,820 13,567,813
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
2(0) (7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
2,737,266,088 357,131,107 2,355,418,532 307,311,456
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2021 2020 12 31

2019
12 31
850,000  (683,902,349) (89,228,739) 150,000 1,288,040,853 168,050,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,777,476
1,694,470,162 221,077,522 520,315,348 67,885,543 126,755,898 16,537,842
(1,133,305,426) (147,862,359) (500,320,683) (65,276,840) (116,146,639) (15,153,652)
12,785,179 1,668,082
PINMCO
6,737,652 879,061 3,837,895 500,730
2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (13,466,433) 150,000 1,308,035,518 170,659,394 58,608 43,399,986 5,662,396
1,942,092,906 253,384,861 614,678,821 80,197,146 188,461,539 24,588,577
(1,861,825,611) (242,912,387) (589,207,643) (76,873,921) (171,157,203) (22,330,880)
8,451,432 1,102,658
PINCO
8,062,808 1,051,955 8,906,282 1,162,003
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
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2019 12 31
PIMCO
2020 12 31
PIMCO
2021 12 31

2021 2020 12 31
153,400 32,591,945 4,252,271 (58,618,694)  (7,647,981) 607,064,587 79,203,717
2,341,541,408 305,500,908
(1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
12,785,179 1,668,082
15,827,024 2,064,952 15,827,024 2,064,952
(10,575,547)  (1,379,792)
13,877,124 1,810,548 13,877,124 1,810,548
148,726 37,843,422 4,937,431  (44,741,570)  (5.837,433)  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
2,745,233,266 358,170,584
(2,622,190,457)  (342,117,189)
8,451,432 1,102,658
11,819,042 1,542,030 11,819,042 1,542,030
(16,969,090)  (2,213,957)
(7,967,178)  (1,039,478) (7,967,178) (1,039,478)
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
11,600,078 1,513,462 15,508,853 2,023,440
65,880,266 8,595,398 65,464,604 8,541,167
5,545,277 723,492 6,676,919 871,138
1,327,780 173,235 1,321,069 172,360
1,665 217 12,114 1,581
29,028 3,787 (44,308) (5,781)
4,206,963 548,882 14,256,907 1,860,099
15,036,589 1,961,824 15,010,423 1,958,410
(13,788,912) (1,799,039) (11,695,316) (1,525,888)
(108,645,764) (14,175,013) (146,673,050) (19,136,433)
(5,545,277) (723,492) (6,762,761) (882,337)
(194,961,547) (25,436,633) (130,819,174) (17,067,978)
(18,406, 245) (2,401,463) (25,708,793) (3.354,226)
180,065, 741 23,493,177 103,679,079 13,527,009
63,479,303 8,282,145 10,538,563 1,374,966
2,751,058, 211 358,930,565 2,252,306,537 293,858,434
(144,367) (18,836)
6,500,203 848,081
(17,229,114) (2,247,883) (7,078,726) (923,561)
(4,902,545) (639,635) (13,730,247) (1,791,385)
(23,500, 150) (3,066,065) (18,000) (2,348)
(45,776,176) (5,972,418) (14,326,770) (1,869,214)
337,000,000 43,968,390 416,000,000 54,275,520
(337,000, 000) (43,968,390) (644,000,000) (84,022,680)
(2,622,190,457) (342,117,189)  (1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
8,451,432 1,102,658 4,984,931 650,384
(33,282,796) (4,342,406) (30,720,464) (4,008,099)
(2,647,021,821) (345,356,937) _ (2,003,508,281) _ (261,397,725)
(7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
50,293,036 6,561,732 248,348,610 32,402,043
670,905,056 87,532,983 422,556,446 55,130,940
721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2,547,664 332,394 1,300,045 169,617

305/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2021 12 31 74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31

0.00319 0.00206
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA
PIMCO 2021
PEG
PIMCO
AREO0A
1ASB IFRS

IFRS

307/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 25
PIMCO
PIMCO
AAM LP
2021 2020 12 31 323.9 347.1
2021 2020 12 31 807 2.3
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FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021 2020

12

12
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IFRS

PIMCO

2021 2020 12
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IFRS

IAS 19
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IFRS
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
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2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2021

PIMCO

2021

24.7

PIMCO

PIMCO
31

90
PIMCO

PIMCO
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2020 27.0 27.8
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825
2020 7.2 8.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 23.6
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 2020 12
21.5 8.6
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020
AAM LP
PIMCO 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 102 373
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2021 12 31 10
2020 822.6
2021 2020 55.9
52.4
PIMCO
2021 2020
7.3 7.8
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2021
PEG 400.4 2020 147.3
PEG 41.6 2020 55.1
PEG 2021 PEG 85.8
2020 41.3
2021 12 31 26.2 2020

13.5 PEG 74.1 2020 28.8 PEG

AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20

2021 12 31 0.264
LIBOR LIBOR

AAM LP PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2021 2020 12 31 102,231 148,726
74,205 2021 12 31
2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1

11.1
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0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
20,924 2021
17,806 2020 2021 41,017
2021 31 2021 28
15,597
2021 12 31 73,774 431
AAM LLC
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2021 2020
11.6 15.5

2021 12 31 2025 12 31

317/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12.7
AAM LP
401
100
2021 2020 59.1
55.1
AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2021 2020 12 31
12 874.8
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)

107,478,838 103,991,820
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40.9
2021 12 31
12 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
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2020 12 31
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32.8 23.2
2021
54.8 44.8 2021
285 247

12 31

2021 2020

31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813

(19,310,763)

214,184,050
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2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2021 12 31

AAM LP
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2021 12 31 2021 12
31

P1 LLC

11

PIMCO

2020 CovID 19

covib 19

12
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2021 2020
3.3 731
12 31
2021 2020
2,408,685,532 582,606,016
567,143 222,021
13
2022 25
38,253 PIMCO
2022 31
16,727
2022 LIBOR

SOFR

2022
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent ligbilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitdl:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,280977,885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members Class M members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December
31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive
income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December
31, 2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000  1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422 (44,741,570) 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive
loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December
31, 2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 ¢ 1,333,506,696 74,205¢ 69,610,604 102,231 ¢ 32,693,374 $ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) -
Cash acquired through acquisition - 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office egquipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandlation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) - (7,183187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 - - 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 billion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020

(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820
(Continued)
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.
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The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.
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Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and globa markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment
advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:
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December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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30

1,117,718,214 145,828,695
22,187,248 2,894,770
583,419,002 76,118,677
296,058,867 38,626,800
48,191,354 6,287,526
16,822,230 2,194,796
24,264,674 3,165,812
32,472,086 4,236,633
86,134,876 11,238,017
2,227,268,551 290,591,728
102,056,187 13,315,271
158,562,406 20,687,637
1,006,816,397 131,359,335
30,865,176 4,026,980
29,986,888 3,912,389
32,907,785 4,293,479
58,124,696 7,583,529
1,419,319,535 185,178,620
3,646,588,086 475,770,348

349/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

419,088,130 54,678,428
578,771,182 75,512,276

64,870,656 8,463,674

33,834,936 4,414,444

81,830,157 10,676,381

24,264,674 3,165,812

4,490,265 585,845

1,207,150, 000 157,496,861

1,006,816,397 131,359,335

164,933,641 21,518,892

115,010,504 15,005,420

3,615,936 471,771

1,290,376,478 168,355,419

2,497,526,478 325,852,280

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198)
150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467
90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439
(91,076, 155) (11,882,706)

1,149,061,608 149,918,068

3,646,588,086 475,770,348
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2022 30

1,918,013,768 250,243,256
538,043,676 70,198,558
607,567,041 79,269,272
150,045,251 19,576,404

20,791,015 2,712,604

3,234,460,751 422,000,094
958,156,841 125,010,723
239,330,399 31,225,437
321,577,100 41,956,164
117,015,533 15,267,017

90,846,357 11,852,724
55,319,442 7,217,528
17,426,195 2,273,59%
21,870,339 2,853,423
1,821,542,206 237,656,612
1,412,918,545 184,343,483

(175,838,837)

(22,941,693)

(2,646,132) (345,241)
(4,080,832) (532,426)
1,230,352,744 160,524,123
49,153,693 6,413,082
1,181,199,051 154,111,040

(38,367,407)

(5,005,796)

1,142,831,644

149,105,245
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2022 30
2021 12
31
850,000  (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
820,500,299 107,050,674 263,510,464 34,380,210 97,188,288 12,680,156
(954,645,277) (124,552,569) (315,561,904)  (41,171,362) (105,822,415) (13,806,650)
2,254,593 294,157
PIMCO
4,605,550 600,886 10,228,137 1,334,465
2022
30

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198) 150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467 90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
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2022 30
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
1,181,199,051 154,111,040
(1,376,029,596)  (179,530,581)
2,254,593 294,157
PINCO
3,336,288 435,285 3,336,288 435,285
(14,833,687)  (1,935,351)
(38,367,407)  (5,005,796) (38,367,407) (5,005,796)
2022 30
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439  (91,076,155)  (11,882,706)  1,149,061,608 149,918,068
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2022 30

1,181,199,051

154,111,040

3,290,743 429,343
35,746,934 4,663,902
2,646,132 345,241
4,080,832 532,426
1,007,455 131,443
13,890, 086 1,812,240
(7,530,911) (982,558)
(73,464,851) (9,584,959)
(2,646,132) (345,241)
436,774,977 56,986,031
(27,259,715) (3,556,575)
284,964,118 37,179,268
(20,389,461) (2,660,213)

1,832,309,258

239,061,389

(5,216,311) (680,572)
(636,025) (82,982)
(5,852,336) (763,554)
579,000,000 75,542,130

(579,000,000)

(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593

(17,794,390)

(75,542,130)

(179,530,581)
294,157

(2,321,634)

(1,391,569,393)

(181,558,059)

(38,367,407) (5,005,796)
396,520,122 51,733,980
721,198,092 94,094,715

1,117,718,214

145,828,695
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2023
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
2022 12

2020 PIMCO

PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
2021 18 PIMCO
2021 12
2023
22
CDO
CDO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2022 29 PIMCO PIMCO
FGMC
FGMC
FGMC
PIMCO
PIMCO FGMC PIMCO

12 31
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Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC

2023 798,537,475.45 1,041 8,518

1971
1940 PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2023 25 3,262

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2023 10 6,000 1,382 9,820

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2023 1,209 15 7,738

361/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1989

2023 405

Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2001

60
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Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

60

45
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30

60

45

30

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

AML
KYC
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1981
LLC

IF

31

2000
SAC 2019 1SAC
SAC ISAC

SAC SAC
SAC SAC
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IF

IF IF BMA

LLC
2016 LLC
LLC LLC
LLC
LLC LLC LLC
LLC

LLC LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
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LLC
BMA

BMA
BMA
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2006

IF

BMA

AML  ATF BMA

20

BMA
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BMA BMA
BMA
IFRS
GAAP BMA GAAP
IF
200,000
300,000
1,000,000

500

500

LLC
2003
BMA
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GAAP BMA
GAAP BMA
IF
2003
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IF
LLC LLC
100,000
2019
50,000
BMA
BMA
2012
BMA

2012
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BMA
BMA

2006

IF
31

1,040.00
1,040.00
1,870.00
1,250.00
1,870.00
1,325.00
1,860.00
1,170.00
1,170.00
1,870.00
1,250.00
1,870.00
1,325.00

2019

BMA

2019

375/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

376/398



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IFRS GAAP BMA
GAAP
1SA
GAAS BMA GAAS

BMA
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BMA
BMA
20
14 BMA
BMA
LLC
BMA

BMA

BMA

1999 2001 2003
BMA

IF BMA
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IF
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1997
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POCA 2008
AML

POCA

IF

POCA

POCA
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BMA

BMA
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BMA

IF BMA

BMA

IF 500,000

50,000
200,000

POCA

POCA

ATF
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LLC

LLC

2035 31
1966

LLC

1972
LLC
BMA BMA 1972

LLC
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23 25 13

15 3 13 2 2
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PINCO ™ PINCO 2020 109
o1CO W PINCO
@
PINCO @ PINCO @
PINCO PINCO
@ Q@
PINCO
() @
PINCO PINCO
@ Q@
PINCO BICO @
@
PINCO PINCO
@ Q@
PINCO PINCO
@ @
PINCO @ PINCO @
PIMCO & PIMCO ()
o11ICO W PINCO
@
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2022, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 )

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @
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@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2022
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 31, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) @) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) Y

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
©)

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
@

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @)

e

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

31, 2021

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October

(@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from
October 30, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2021, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financia highlights for the period from October
15, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 25, 2022
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